NON-CONFIDENTIAL

Marmion House,
Lichfield Street, Tamworth,
Staffordshire B79 7BZ.

Enquiries: 01827 709 709
Facsimile: 01827 709 271

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

23 May 2017

Dear Councillor

A meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be held in Committee Room 1 -
Marmion House on Thursday, 1st June, 2017 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee
are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

AGENDA

NON CONFIDENTIAL

Appointment of Chair
Appointment of Vice-Chair
Apologies for Absence

Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 6)

a Hh W N =

Declarations of Interest




10

11

12

13

14

15

To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-
pecuniary) in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting.

When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in
respect of which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of
such interest. Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or
non-pecuniary interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.

Presentation on the Role of the Audit and Governance Committee

Presentation by Grant Thornton (External Auditor)

Fee Letter 2017/18 (Pages 7 - 10)
The Report of Grant Thornton (External Auditor)

Audit and Governance Committee Update

Verbal Update to be given by Grant Thornton (External Auditor)

Proposed Changes to the Constitution and Scheme of Delegation (Pages 11
-12)

(The Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer)

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Quarterly Report June 2017 (Pages 13 -
16)

(The Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer)

Standard Allegation Complaint 1 (Pages 17 - 18)
(The Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer)

Standard Allegation Complaint 2 (Pages 19 - 20)
(The Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer)

Annual Governance Statement & Code of Corporate Governance (Pages 21
- 92)

(The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

Counter Fraud Update (Pages 93 - 116)
(The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

Financial Guidance (Pages 117 - 214)



16

17

18

19

20

(The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

Internal Audit Annual /Quarterly Report (Pages 215 - 232)
(The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards/Quality Assurance & Improvement
Programme (Pages 233 - 278)

(The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

Risk Management Update (Pages 279 - 284)
(The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services)

Audit & Governance Committee Self-Assessment (Pages 285 - 288)

For Information only

Audit and Governance Committee Timetable (Pages 289 - 292)

(Discussion Item)

People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting. We can then endeavour to ensure that any
particular requirements you may have are catered for.

To Councillors: J Chesworth, C Cooke, J Faulkner, R Ford, M Greatorex, R Kingstone

and M Summers



This page is intentionally left blank



58

59

60

61

Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

UDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
HELD ON 30th MARCH 2017

PRESENT: Councillors J Chesworth (Chair), C Cooke, J Faulkner, M Gant,
R Kingstone and J Oates

OFFICERS: John Wheatley (Executive Director Corporate Services), Stefan
Garner (Director of Finance) and Angela Struthers (Head of
Internal Audit Services)

VISITORS: John Gregory and Joan Barnett (Grant Thornton)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor M Summers
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2017 were approved and signed
as a correct record.

(Moved by Councillor J Faulkner and seconded by Councillor M Gant)
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of Interest.

INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT FOR TAMWORTH BOROUGH
COUNCIL

The Report of Grant Thornton (External Auditor) was considered
RESOLVED: That the Members endorsed the report of the External

Auditor informing of the Audit Risk Assessment for
2016/17 for the Council

1
Page 1



62

63

64

Audit and Governance 30 March 2017
Committee

(Moved by Councillor C Cooke and seconded by
Councillor J Chesworth)

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE FOR TAMWORTH

BOROUGH COUNCIL PROGRESS REPORT AND UPDATE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2017

The Report of Grant Thornton (External Auditor) was considered

RESOLVED: That the Members received the report of the External
Auditor informing of the Progress Report and Update for
Year Ended 31 March 2017

(Moved by Councillor J Faulkner and seconded by
Councillor M Gant)

THE AUDIT PLAN FOR TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Report of Grant Thornton (External Auditor) was considered

RESOLVED: That the Members endorsed the report of the External
Auditor informing the Audit Plan for 2016/17 for the
Council

(Moved by Councillor J Oates and seconded by Councillor
M Gant)

REVIEW OF THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT,
MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL
INVESTMENT STATEMENT 2017/18 AND THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY MID-
YEAR REVIEW REPORT 2016/17

The Executive Director Corporate Services reported on the review of the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Statement and
Annual Investment Statement 2017/18 and the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Mid-year Review Report 2016/17
approved by Council on 21% February 2017 and 13" December 2016 respectively
was considered

RESOLVED: That the Members considered the Treasury Reports

2
Page 2



65

66

Audit and Governance 30 March 2017
Committee

detailed within the Executive Directors Report

(Moved by Councillor C Cooke and seconded by
Councillor M Gant)

FINAL ACCOUNTS 2016/17 — ACTION PLAN

The Director of Finance provided an outline of the corporate requirements that will
need to be achieved in order to produce the Council’'s Annual Statement of
Accounts for 2016/17 (including deadlines but not including detailed
responsibilities) and to obtain corporate commitment to the action plan.

RESOLVED: That the Members approved

1 the target of 26™ May 2017 for closure of the final
accounts and production of the Draft Statement of
Accounts for 2016/17;

2 staffing resources be committed to the provision of
appropriate information and support in order to meet
the published timescales and the Committee receive
progress updates;

3 Corporate Management Team (CMT) to receive a
fortnightly update until completion of the audit; and

4 that the Audited Statement of Accounts be presented to
the Audit and Governance Committee on 27" July
2017.

(Moved by Councillor J Faulkner and seconded by
Councillor J Chesworth)

CHANGES TO THE CIPFA CODE OF PRACTICE AND PROPOSED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2016/17

The Director of Finance advised Members of the changes to the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) and the
proposed Accounting Policies for 2016/17.

RESOLVED: That the Members

3
Page 3



67

68

69

Audit and Governance 30 March 2017
Committee

approved that the changes to the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom were considered; and

proposed Accounting Policies for 2016/17 are approved

(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by
Councillor J Faulkner)

STANDARDS ALLEGATION COMPLAINT

The Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer advised Members on a recent
complaint received in relation to an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct which
occurred under the local arrangements that were put in place to deal with
Standards allegations in terms of the Localism Act 2011 by Council on 19 June
2012.

RESOLVED: That the Members endorsed the findings of the contents
of the report.

(Moved by Councillor J Faulkner and seconded by
Councillor M Gant)

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE SELF ASSESSMENT

The Head of Internal Audit Services completed a self-assessment of the
effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee and produced an
improvement action plan

RESOLVED: That the Members completed the self-assessment
checklist

(Moved by Councillor J Chesworth and seconded by
Councillor C Cooke)

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND PLAN 2017-18

The Head of Internal Audit Services advised Members of the proposed Internal
Audit Charter and Plan for 2017-18 and provided Members with assurance on the
appropriate operation of Internal Audit.

4
Page 4



70

7

Audit and Governance 30 March 2017
Committee

RESOLVED: That the Members endorsed the Internal Audit Charter
and Plan 2017-18.

(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by
Councillor J Chesworth)

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TIMETABLE

The Committee reviewed and agreed the timetable.

THANKS GIVEN

RESOLVED: To thank Grant Thornton and officers providing reports
and to the staff working in the Accountancy and Audit
Sections of the Council

Chair

5
Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7
&Y GrantThornton

Tony Goodwin

Chief Executive

Tamworth Borough Council

M. . H Grant Thornton UK LLP

armion riouse The Colmore Building

Lichfield Street 20 Colmore Circus
Birmingham B4 6AT

Tamworth T +44 (0)121 212 4000

Staffordshire F +44 (0)121 212 4014

B79 7BZ DX 13174 Birmingham
grantthornton.co.uk

18 April 2017

Dear Tony

Planned audit fee for 2017/18

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides the framework for local public audit.
Under these provisions, the Sectetaty of State for Communities and Local Government
delegated some statutory functions from the Audit Commission Act 1998 to Public Sector
Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) on a transitional bass.

PSAA will oversee the Audit Commission's audit contracts for local government bodies until
they end in 2018, following the announcement by the Department for Communities and
Local Government (DCLG) that it will extend transitional arrangements until 2017/18.
PSAA's responsibilities include setting fees, appointing auditors and monitoring the quality of
auditors' work. Further information on PSAA and its responsibilities are available on the
PSAA website.

From 2018/19 PSAA has been specified by the Secretaty of State as an appointing person for
principal local government and police bodies, and will make auditor appointments and set
fees for bodies that have opted into the national auditor appointment scheme it is developing.

Scale fee

PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees ate based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to
provide the auditor with complete and matetially accurate financial statements, with
supporting wotking papets, within agreed timescales'.

There are no changes to the overall work programme for local government audited bodies for
2017/18, following the tecent CIPFA/LASAAC announcement that their planned
introduction of the Highways Network Asset Code into the financial reporting requirements
for local authorities in 2017/18 will no longet proceed. PSAA have therefore set the 2017 /18
scale audit fees at the same level as the scale fees applicable for 2016/17. The Council's scale
fee for 2017/18 has been set by PSAA at £49,838.

The audit planning process for 2017/18, including the tisk assessment will continue as the
year progtesses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessaty as out work progresses.

Scope of the audit fee
Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit
Office (NAO) is responsible fot publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice and

Chartered Accountants P Q’ ag @ Z

Grant Thomton UK LLP is a fimited liability partnership registered in Engtand an . NG.0C307742, Registered office: Grant Thornion House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.
Alist of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Lid {GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwids parinership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and
its member firms are not agents of, and do not ohligate, one another and are not fiable for one another's acts or omissions. Please see grar .c0.uk for further details.




guidance for auditors from April 2015. Audits of the accounts for 2017 /18 will be undertaken
under this Code, on the basis of the 201718 work-programme and scales of fees set out on
the PSAA website. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is available on the
NAO website.

The scale fee covers:

e our audit of your financial statements;

e out work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in yout use of
resources (the value for money conclusion); and

e our wotk on your whole of government accounts return (if applicable).

PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an
objection as valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee.

Value for Money conclusion

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as
the Value for Money (VEM) conclusion.

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on value for money wotk in November 2016. The
guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion
on whether the Council has put propet atrangements in place.

The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the andited body had proper arrangements to ensure it fook properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable ontcomes for taxpayers and local

peaple.

Certification of grant claims and returns

At the request of the Department for Work and Pensions, auditots appointed by PSAA will
continue to cettify local authotity claims for housing benefit subsidy for 2017/18.

The Council's indicative fee for this certification work has yet to be set by PSAA. We will
write to you to confitm the fee when this has been confirmed.

Assurance engagements for other schemes will be subject to separate atrangements and fees
agreed between the grant-paying body, the Council and outselves.

Billing schedule
Fees will be billed as follows:

Main Audit fee £
September 2017 12,459.50
December 2017 12,459.50
March 2018

12,459.50
June 2018

12,459.50
Total 49,838.00

Housing Benefit Certification
To be announced when PSAA sets the fee

Page 8



Outline audit timetable

We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in December 2017 to
Match 2018. Upon completion of this phase of our wotk, we will issue a detailed audit plan
setting out our findings and details of our audit approach. Our final accounts audit and wotk
on the VM conclusion will be completed in June/July 2018; and work on the whole of
government accounts return at the same time (subject to receipt of documentation from
Communities and Local Government).

Timing Outputs Comments
Phase of work
Audit planning December 2017 to  Audit plan The plan summarises the
and interim audit  March 2018 findings of our audit
planning and out approach
to the audit of the
Council's accounts and
VM.
Final accounts June/July 2018 Audit Findings This teport sets out the
audit (Report to those findings of our accounts
chatged with audit and VIM work for the
governarce) consideration of those

charged with governance.

VM conclusion  January to June Audit Findings As above

2018 (Report to those
charged with
governance)
Whole of June/July 2018 Opinion on the This work will be
government WGA return completed alongside the
accounts accounts audit.

Annual audit letter Autumn 2018 Annual audit letter The letter will summarise
to the Council the findings of all aspects
of our work.

Grant certification Januaty/February =~ Grant certification A repott summarising the
2018 (dependent  report findings of our housing
upon Audit benefit certification work
Committee date)

Our team
The key members of the audit team for 2017/18 are:

Name Phone Number E-mail

Engagement Engagement John Gregory 0121 232 5333
Lead Lead

Engagement Joan Barnett 0121 2325399  joan.m.barnett(@uk.gt.com
Manager

In Charge Denise Mills 0121 2325306  denise.fmills@uk.gt.com
Auditor

Additional work

The scale fee excludes any wotk requested by the Council that we may agree to undertake
outside of our Code audit. Fach additional piece of work will be sepatately agreed and a
detailed project specification and fee agreed with the Council.

Page 9



Quality assurance

We ate committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve out service, please contact me in
the first instance. Alternatively, you may wish to contact Mark Stocks, our Public Sector

Assurance regional lead partner, via mark.c.stocks@uk.ot.com

surs sincerely

John Gregory
Engagement Lead
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Page 10



Agenda Item 9

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
01 JUNE 2017

REPORT OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL AND MONITORING OFFICER
CONSTITUTION AND SCHEME OF DELEGATION

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None
PURPOSE

To consider the proposals put forward as amendments to the Constitution and
Scheme of Delegation at Council on 16 May 2017 in terms of Article 16 paragraph
2.16.12.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Committee consider the Constitution as endorsed
and adopted at Council on 16 May 2017.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Article 9 of the Constitution provides inter alia that the Audit and Governance
Committee maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution. Article 16 requires
inter alia changes to the constitution to be approved by full Council subject to
consideration of any proposals in relation thereto by the Solicitor to the Council and
the Audit and Governance Committee.

Under the Localism Act the Authority remains under a duty to promote and maintain
high standards of governance and exercise all its powers and duties in accordance
with the law. The Constitution and Scheme of Delegation assist this process.
Accordingly the Audit and Governance Committee has been asked to consider the
amendments made as per the appendix attached to this report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Amendments as required to the Constitution and the Scheme of Delegation
ensure that the authority operates intra vires and implementation will be carried out
as part of the duties of the Council, the Solicitor to the Council and staff with no
additional resource implications for the Authority.

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

To have a Constitution that is not fit for purpose could lead to the Council making
decisions that would be ultra vires. In addition an effective Constitution and
Scheme of Delegation provides the rpt&jé'ng_fction necessary to ensure that the



Council’s legal obligations are met and further provides officers with the required
functionality to ensure that the Council’s obligations under statute are fully met.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in this instance. In approving the
recommendations it is envisaged that the citizens of Tamworth will benefit from
robust governance which supports the active involvement of citizens in the process
of local authority decision making and an open and transparent delegation regime
for its officers.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Each year at the first business meeting of the Council the Constitution and Scheme
of Delegation as reviewed require to be adopted to ensure probity and legal
compliance. On 16 May 2017 it was agreed that the Constitution and Scheme of
Delegation be adopted with the amendments proposed put forward by the Leader of
the Council at the meeting on 16 May all of which is of course subject to further
consideration by Audit and Governance Committee as required in Articles 9 and 16
of the Constitution. Please see the link below

REPORT AUTHOR

Jane M Hackett Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer Tel 709258 if you
would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

Local Government Act 1972

Localism Act 2011

Link to the Constitution as adopted at the Council meeting on 16 May 2017
http://tammodgov.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD366&ID=366&
RPID=1542519

Page 12


http://tammodgov.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD366&ID=366&RPID=1542519
http://tammodgov.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD366&ID=366&RPID=1542519

Agenda Item 10

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
01 JUNE 2017

REPORT OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL AND MONITORING
OFFICER

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000

Purpose

The Council's Code of Practice for carrying out surveillance under the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) specifies that quarterly
reports will be taken to Audit & Governance Committee to demonstrate to
elected members that the Council is complying with its own Code of Practice
when using RIPA.

Recommendation

That Audit and Governance Committee endorse the quarterly RIPA
monitoring report.

Executive Summary

The Office of the Surveillance Commissioner (OSC) conducted an inspection
into the RIPA policy, procedures, documentation and training on 6 October
2014 utilised at the Council. The outcome of the inspection was reported to
Council on 16 December 2014. The recommendations arising from the
inspection have been implemented and reported back to the OSC. The policy
at that time was updated in line with the recommendations of the
Commissioner and has since been updated further on two occasions as a
result of changes to legislation and the Codes of Practice published by the
Home Office. Training took place in January 2015 for officers who previously
had no RIPA training and for members with refresher training being delivered
for those officers previously trained. Further training is being considered for
the autumn of 2017. Training is also delivered through Netconsent.

At present the RIPA policy is up to date and reviewed to take account of
changes in legislation and government guidance. The policy was submitted
for approval and adoption by a separate report and the Council re-adopted the
RIPA policy on 16 May 2017. The revised policy has been published and a
questionnaire will be issued through Netconsent for all staff with training to
take place later in the municipal year. The practice that quarterly reports on
the use of RIPA powers be submitted to Audit & Governance Committee will
continue.

Page 13



Options Considered

Obligations arising under RIPA for the authority are statutory therefore the
only option is compliance.

Resource Implications

Support for the RIPA obligations and functions are met from existing budget
and existing staff resources.

Legal/Statutory and Risk Implications

The recording of applications, authorisations, renewals and cancellations of
investigations using covert surveillance techniques or involving the acquisition
of communications data is covered by the Regulation of Investigatory Powers
Act 2000.

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act was introduced to regulate
existing surveillance and investigation in order to meet the requirements of
Article 8 of the Human Rights Act. Article 8 states: Everyone has the right for
his private and family life. His home and his correspondence. There shall be
no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right except such
as in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic society in the
interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the
Country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or
morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others.

RIPA investigations can only be authorised by a local authority where it is
investigating criminal offences which (1) attract a maximum custodial
sentence of six months or more or (2) relate to the sale of alcohol or tobacco
products to children.

There are no risk management or Health and Safety implications.

Sustainability Implications

The legislation requires the Authority to record and monitor all RIPA
applications, keep the records up to date and report quarterly to a relevant
Committee.

Background Information

The RIPA Code of Practice produced by the Home Office in April 2010
introduced the requirement to produce quarterly reports to elected members
to demonstrate that the Council is using its RIPA powers appropriately and
complying with its own Code of Practice when carrying out covert
surveillance. This requirement relates to the use of directed surveillance and
covert human intelligence sources (CHIS).

Page 14



The table below shows the Council’'s use of directed surveillance in the
current financial year to provide an indication of the level of use of covert
surveillance at the Council. There have been no applications under RIPA in
the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 March 2017.

The table outlines the number of times RIPA has been used for directed
surveillance, the month of use, the service authorising the surveillance and a
general description of the reasons for the surveillance. Where an investigation
is ongoing at the end of a quarterly period it will not be reported until the
authorisation has been cancelled. At the end of the fourth quarterly period for
the financial period 2016/17 there were no outstanding authorisations.

There have been no authorisations for the use of CHIS.

Financial year 2016/17

Month Service Reason
No applications

Background papers

None

“If Members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting
please contact Jane M Hackett Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer on Ext.258”

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
01 JUNE 2017

REPORT OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL AND MONITORING
OFFICER

STANDARDS ALLEGATION COMPLAINTS
Purpose

To advise Members on a recent complaint received in relation to an alleged
breach of the Code of Conduct which occurred under the local arrangements
that were put in place to deal with Standards allegations, in terms of the
Localism Act 2011, by Council on 19 June 2012.

Recommendation

Members are requested to endorse the findings of the contents of the
report.

Executive Summary

The current complaint was lodged by a member of the public on 2 March
2017.

In terms of the Policy for dealing with complaints of this nature the Monitoring
Officer reviewed the complaint and applied the preliminary tests required.

In relation to the complaint the Monitoring Officer consulted with one of the
Independent Persons. Additional information was required and the
complainant contacted with a request for further information. This would have
enabled the matter to be considered. A response was sought by 5 April 2017,
the information was not forthcoming. On 20 April 2017 the complainant was
written to and advised that the matter was being closed. No further contact
has been received.

The action taken in relation to the complaint was in accordance with the
Arrangements for Dealing with Standards Allegations under the Localism Act
2011 that were adopted at Council on 19 June 2012.

Thus the complaint was dealt with as follows:

The file was closed on 20 April 2017. The complainant was advised in writing.

Options Considered
The procedure for dealing with complaints against a Councillor for an alleged

breach of the Code of Conduct requires the Monitoring Officer to report
Informal Resolutions to the Audit and Governance Committee for information.

Page 17



Resource Implications

As the matter has been resolved using the informal resolution process the
resources utilised have been totally contained within the corporate core cost
centre.

Legal/Risk Implications

Without a process to deal with complaints of this nature against members the
authority would be operating ultra vires and risk legal action and/or damage to
reputation. The cost in financial terms could be significant.

Sustainability Implications

The process and policy for dealing with complaints of this nature provides as
robust a system as possible in the current legislative climate. The process and
policy is kept under review and amended in line with Council protocols.

Background Information

Since the establishment of the new arrangements from June 2012 | can
confirm that the system adopted in relation to Standards allegations has
operated satisfactorily and high standards of conduct are being maintained in
the authority. The legislation does not give the Council any powers to impose
sanctions, such as suspension or requirements for training or an apology, on
members in relation to a breach of conduct. Accordingly, where a failure to
comply with the Code of Conduct is found, the range of sanctions which the
authority can take in respect of the member is limited and must be directed to
securing the continuing ability of the authority to systematically discharge its
functions effectively, rather than “punishing” the member concerned.

Report Author

Jane M Hackett, Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer (Extn: 258)

List of Background Papers

Localism Act 2011

Report to Council dated 19 June 2012 — Changes to the Standards Regime

Procedure for dealing with the making of complaints against a Councillor for
an Alleged Breach of the Code of Conduct.

Page 18



Agenda Item 12

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
01 JUNE 2017

REPORT OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL AND MONITORING
OFFICER

STANDARDS ALLEGATION COMPLAINTS
Purpose

To advise Members of a recent complaint received in relation to an alleged
breach of the Code of Conduct which occurred under the local arrangements
that were put in place to deal with Standards allegations, in terms of the
Localism Act 2011, by Council on 19 June 2012.

Recommendation

Members are requested to endorse the contents of the report.
Executive Summary

The current complaint was lodged by a member of the public on 28 March
2017.

In terms of the Policy for dealing with complaints of this nature the Monitoring
Officer reviewed the complaint and applied the preliminary tests required.

In relation to the complaint informal contact was made with the member
against whom the complaint had been lodged.

A resolution was proposed which was accepted thus it invoked the procedure
to resolve the issue without resorting to the investigation process.

The action taken in relation to each complaint was in accordance with the
Arrangements for Dealing with Standards Allegations under the Localism Act
2011 that were adopted at Council on 19 June 2012.

Thus the complaint was dealt with as follows:

On 20 April 2017 the member sent to the complainant a written apology. The
complainant also received a written response form the Monitoring Officer
dated 21 April 2017 setting out the resolution.

Options Considered

The procedure for dealing with complaints against a Councillor for an alleged

breach of the Code of Conduct requires the Monitoring Officer to report
Informal Resolutions to the Audit and Governance Committee for information.

Page 19



Resource Implications

As the matter has been resolved using the informal resolution process the
resources utilised have been totally contained within the corporate core cost
centre.

Legal/Risk Implications

Without a process to deal with complaints of this nature against members the
authority would be operating ultra vires and risk legal action and/or damage to
reputation. The cost in financial terms could be significant.

Sustainability Implications

The process and policy for dealing with complaints of this nature provides as
robust a system as possible in the current legislative climate. The process and
policy is kept under review and amended in line with Council protocols.

Background Information

Since the establishment of the new arrangements from June 2012 | can
confirm that the system adopted in relation to Standards allegations has
operated satisfactorily and high standards of conduct are being maintained in
the authority. The legislation does not give the Council any powers to impose
sanctions, such as suspension or requirements for training or an apology, on
members in relation to a breach of conduct. Accordingly, where a failure to
comply with the Code of Conduct is found, the range of sanctions which the
authority can take in respect of the member is limited and must be directed to
securing the continuing ability of the authority to systematically discharge its
functions effectively, rather than “punishing” the member concerned.

Report Author

Jane M Hackett, Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer (Extn: 258)

List of Background Papers

Localism Act 2011

Report to Council dated 19 June 2012 — Changes to the Standards Regime

Procedure for dealing with the making of complaints against a Councillor for
an Alleged Breach of the Code of Conduct.

Page 20



Agenda Iltem 13

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 1 JUNE 2017

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT & CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
EXEMPT INFORMATION
None
PURPOSE

To inform Members of the Committee of the process followed in producing an Annual
Governance Statement and revised Code of Corporate Governance in accordance
with statutory requirements, and to approve the proposed draft Annual Governance
Statement and Code of Corporate Governance.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the proposed

a) Annual Governance Statement be agreed by the Committee as
appropriate for presentation to the External Auditor and for inclusion in
the Annual Statement of Accounts; and

b) Code of Corporate Governance be agreed.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the
Authority conduct at least once in a year a review of the effectiveness of its system of
Internal Control and include a statement reporting on the review with any published
Statement of Accounts. This statement on the review of the effectiveness of its
system of Internal Control is the Annual Governance Statement.

The preparation and publication of an Annual Governance Statement in accordance
with “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)
(CIPFA/SOLACE)” — The Framework would fulfil this statutory requirement. The
Account & Audit Regulations 2015 stipulate that the Annual Governance Statement
must be “prepared in accordance with proper practices in relation to the accounts”.

The Framework defines the principles that should underpin the governance of each
Local Government organisation. It provides a structure to help individual Authorities
with their approach to governance. Authorities should test their governance
structures and partnerships against the principles contained in the Framework by:

¢ Reviewing existing governance arrangements;

e Developing and maintaining an up-to- date local code of governance, including
arrangement for ensuring ongoing effectiveness;

Page 21



e Reporting publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis and
on how they have monitored the effectiveness of their governance
arrangements in the year and on planned changes.

The term “local code” essentially refers to the governance structure in place as there
IS an expectation that a formally set out local structure should exist, although in
practice it may consist of a number of local codes or documents.

To achieve good governance, each authority should be able to demonstrate that its
governance structures comply with the core and sub-principles contained in the
Framework. Each Authority should therefore develop and maintain a local code of
governance/governance arrangements reflecting the principles set out in the
Framework.

Authorities are required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement in order to
report publicly on the extent to which they comply with their own code of governance,
which in turn, is consistent with the good governance principles in the Framework.

The key elements of the structures and process that comprise the Authority’s
governance arrangements do not need to be described in detail on the Annual
Governance Statement if they are already easily accessible through the Code of
Corporate Governance.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the Statement should be
approved by a Committee of the Council — the Audit and Governance Committee is
charged with this function.

The proposed Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 arising from these processes
is attached as Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration. It should be noted that the
Annual Governance Statement only includes significant governance issues.

To achieve good governance, the Authority should be able to demonstrate that it is
complying with the core and supporting principles contained in the Framework and
should therefore develop and maintain a local Code of Corporate Governance
appropriate to its circumstances and comprising the requirements for best practice as
set out in the Framework. As such the Code of Corporate Governance 2016/17 has
been reviewed and is attached as Appendix 2. The Code indicates what is expected
as per the Framework (what assurance do we want) and what we have in place
(what assurance do we get) to ensure that the principles of good governance are
met. The review has identified minor areas for improvement which had already been
recognised by the Authority and action plans to address these are already in place.
Appendix 3 provides a summary of these areas. The Authority can demonstrate that
it complies with the core and supporting principles and complies with best practice.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
None
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS

Failure to produce an Annual Governance Statement would result in non-compliance
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. There is a risk that failures in
Governance would not be identified.

Page 22



SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers, Head of Internal Audit Services
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

Managers Assurance Statements

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Annual Governance Statement 2016/17
Appendix 2 Code of Corporate Governance 2017/18
Appendix 3 Action Plan Arising From The 2016/17 Assurance Process

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

What is Governance?

Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the
intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved.

To deliver good governance in the Authority, both governing bodies (Members)
and individuals working for the Authority must try to achieve the Authority’s
objectives whilst acting in the public interest at all times.

Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for
society, which should result in positive outcomes for service users and other
stakeholders.

The Core Principles of Good Governance

The diagram below, taken from the International Framework: Good
Governance in the Public Sector (CIPFA/IFAC. 2014) (the “International
Framework”), illustrates the various principles of good governance in the public
sector and how they relate to each other.

G. Implementing good - ‘ C: Defining outcomes

practices in transparency, in terms of sustainable

reporting, and audit, to economic, social, and

deliver effective environmental benefits
accountability

A\. Behaving with
integrity, demonstrating
strong commitment to ethical
values, and respecting
the rule of law

F. Managing risks D. Determining the
and performance through B. Ensuring openness interventions necessary

robust internal control and comprehensive to optimize the
and strong public stakeholder engagement achievement of the
financial management intended outcomes

\ B
Developing the

entity’s capacity,
including the capability
of its leadership and the
individuals within it

1
Page 25



Responsibility

The Authority is responsible for ensuring that its business is completed in line
with the law and statutory legislation, and that public money is spent wisely and
properly accounted for. We will ensure that we continually improve the way we
provide our services whilst taking into account value for money.

We will ensure that we put in place proper arrangements to ensure our risks
are managed, and that controls and the governance process are in place.

We have approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is
consistent with principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government. The Code demonstrates the supporting
principles which underpin the core principles and identifies the assurance as
outlined in the Framework. It also demonstrates what level of assurance we
get and thus, identifies any areas for improvement. This forms the assurance
framework for good governance and demonstrates that we know our
governance arrangements are working. Links to all supporting evidence
identified in the assurance framework are contained within the Code of
Corporate Governance and are not repeated in this statement.

Our Outcomes

Our desired outcomes for 2017-20 are detailed in the Corporate Plan. The
Corporate Plan details our Vision and sets out our Thematic Priorities.

Our Vision is:

“One Tamworth, Perfectly Placed — Open for business since the 7™ century
AD”

Our thematic priorities are:

Living a Quality Life in Tamworth

Growing Stronger Together in Tamworth

Delivering Quality Services in Tamworth.
Under each thematic priority, we detail our ambitions and how we are going to
realise these. All outcomes we aim to achieve, along with changes we want to

see and supporting information are detailed in the Corporate Plan.

For each activity or process we complete, we ensure that the appropriate
governance arrangements are in place.

2
Page 26



3
Page 27



Annual Governance Statement (AGS) Published

Assurance Map Components
Ongoing assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of controls over key risks

1st Line of Defence
(Management Control)

e Strategies, plans, risk registers,
policies and procedures

e Performance Management and
reporting at functional/
operational level

e Financial Management and
reporting at functional/
operational level

e Operational risk registers

e Management/team meetings

Managers Assurance Statements

4
Page 28



What have we done to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of our governance
arrangements during 2016/17.

The Authority has the responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of
its governance framework including the system of internal control.

The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

The work of internal audit which is detailed in the Head of Internal Audit Services Annual

Responsibility of Corporate Management Team for the development and maintenance of the
internal control environment;
Reports received from our External Auditors and any other review agencies or inspectorates.

During 2016/17, the following actions have contributed to the evaluation of the effectiveness of the
governance arrangements;

The Governance Group has reviewed and updated against the Code of Corporate
Governance in line with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government;

Both the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Finance Officer and the CIPFA
Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit were reviewed and updated.
Both officers comply with expected roles;

The Head of Internal Audit Services reports to the Audit & Governance Committee
on a quarterly basis and provides an opinion on the overall effectiveness of the
system of internal control based upon the work completed. The statement for the
2016/17 financial year is as follows:

“I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow us to
draw a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes.

Overall in my opinion, based upon the reviews performed during the year, the
Authority has:

- adequate and effective risk management arrangements;
- adequate and effective governance; and
- has adequate and effective control processes.

From the 1% April 2013, Internal Audit is required to comply with the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards. As part of this requirement, Internal Audit are required to
complete an annual self-assessment against the Standards and produce a Quality
Assurance & Improvement Programme(QAIP) which identifies areas for
improvement both to ensure compliance with the Standards and other quality
areas. The self-assessment against the standards and the QAIP are reported to
the Audit & Governance Committee. An external verification of the self-
assessment has been completed in 2016/17 and confirms that the service
complies with the Standards;

Our External Auditor’s report to each Audit & Governance Committee. In their
Annual Audit Letter, they gave an unqualified opinion on the Statement of

5
Page 29



Accounts, an unqualified conclusion in respect of the Authority securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness, and an unqualified opinion on the production of the
Whole of Government Accounts;

The Ombudsman report on the enquiries and complaints they received in 2015/16
was reported to the Audit & Governance Committee;

Managers Assurance Statements have been completed by Directors and Heads of
Service and have not identified any significant control issues;

The Corporate Risk Register is owned and reviewed on a quarterly basis by the
Corporate Management Team and reported in the Quarterly Healthcheck to
Cabinet and also reported in the risk management update to the Audit &
Governance Committee. There are no significant risks on the Corporate Risk
Register;

The Performance Management Framework ensures that the Financial
Healthcheck is reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis and made readily available
on the Authority’s website;

The Authority retained The Code of Connection Certificate after completing an
annual assessment against the Code which included assessments against
governance, service management and information assurance conditions.
Compliance with the Code of Connection ensures access to the Public Services
Network;

In July 2014, the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner completed an
assessment of the Authority’s RIPA policy and procedures, the results of which
were reported to Council. In May 2015, staff were issued the Policy for acceptance
and understanding. The Policy was reviewed and updated and approved by full
Council in February 2016. A quarterly update report is presented to the Audit &
Governance Committee on the use of RIPA powers. During the 2016/17, no RIPA
authorisations were made;

Financial Regulations, Contract Standing Orders and Financial Guidance are
reviewed on a regular basis with the last review being approved by the Audit &
Governance Committee in March 2016 and issued to staff;

No issues were raised through the Counter Fraud and Corruption and
Whistleblowing Policies;

There were no data security breaches/lapses during the financial year;

To assist in a more co-ordinated approach to managing projects, a Corporate
Project Management template and process has been devised and made available
to Officers;

The governance framework for Information Services has been reviewed and
updated,;

6
Page 30



We have put in place an action plan for the introduction of the General Data
Protection Rules which come into force in 2018;

A self-assessment of the Audit & Governance Committee’s effectiveness was
completed on the 30™ March 2017;

The Chairs of the Audit & Governance and Scrutiny Committees submitted their
Annual Reports to Full Council;

The Authority complies with the Transparency Code;

Counter fraud work continues to be completed with the retained expertise of in-
house staff to investigate corporate fraud;

Internal Audit completes an annual assessment of the risk of fraud which is
reported to the Audit & Governance Committee. Assessments against the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption, the Fighting
Fraud & Corruption Strategy & Checklist have been completed. Having
considered all of the principles, we are satisfied that the Authority has adopted a
response that is appropriate for its fraud and corruption risks and commits to
maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud;

The Authority has both a moral and legal obligation to ensure a duty of care for
children and adults with care and support needs across its services. We are
committed to ensuring that all children and adults with care and support needs are
protected and kept safe from harm whilst engaged in services organised and/or
provided by the Council. We do this by:

e Having a Safeguarding Children & Adults at Risk of Abuse & Neglect
Policy and procedures in place;

¢ Having Safeguarding Children & Adults Processes which give clear,
step-by-step guidance if abuse is identified;

e Safeguarding training programme in place for staff and members;

e Carrying out of the appropriate level of Disclosure and Barring Service
(DBS) checks on staff and volunteers;

e Working closely with Staffordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board &
Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Adult Safeguarding Partnership.

The Authority recognises that it has a responsibility to take a robust approach to
slavery and human trafficking. In addition to the Authority’s responsibility as an
employer, it also acknowledges its duty as a Borough Council to notify the
Secretary of State of suspected victims of slavery or human trafficking as
introduced by section 52 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015. The Authority is
committed to preventing slavery and human trafficking in its corporate activities
and to ensuring that its supply chains are free from slavery and human trafficking.
The Authority has included modern slavery and human trafficking information
within the corporate safeguarding policy and training. The Council will continue to
develop and strengthen its approach to modern slavery and trafficking in 2017/18.

.
Page 31



Declaration

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of
the Governance Framework by the Audit & Governance Committee and that the
arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose. The significant governance issues
highlighted in the 2015/16 Annual Governance Statement still remain the significant issues
during 2016/17 and are detailed at Annex 1 with actions completed to date to address the
issues. Other minor issues highlighted through the assurance gathering process have been
noted with planned actions to address these issues. Monitoring of the completion of all these
issues will be completed through reporting to the Audit & Governance Committee.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address those matters raised to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the
need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor
their implementation and operations as part of our next review.

Signed

D Cook A E Goodwin
Leader Chief Executive
Date

On behalf of the Authority

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages. Please contact Internal Audit Services on
01827 709234 or email enquiries@tamworth.gov.uk

This is an electronic copy without an electronic signature. The original was signed as dated
above and a copy can be obtained from the Executive Director Corporate Services

8
Page 32



cc abed

Significant Governance Issues 2016/17

Annex 1

The significant governance issues identified in relation to the Authority achieving its vision in 2016/17 are:

No

Issue

Action 2015/16

Update 2016/17

1

Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS)

Whilst actions have been
taken to ensure that the
MTFS remains balanced, this
is still a significant risk to the
Authority. Revenue Support
grant will be removed around
2020. Opportunities and risks
associated with the 100%
Business Rates Retention will
need to be identified. The
increasing demands of our
customers also need to be
considered.

Review on a regular basis the plans in
place to deliver the MTFS to ensure
that plans remain realistic and
achievable including development of
the Sustainability Strategy to address
future financial constraints.

Work with the Local Government
Association (LGA) responses to the
Department for Communities & Local
Government (DCLG) on how the
Business Rate Retention Scheme will
work.

Sustainability Strategy savings targets approved as
part of the Policy Changes on an annual basis are
reviewed as part of the MTFS and Budget setting
process each year.

Quarterly updates are also provided to Cabinet as
part of the Performance Management Framework and
include the delivery of planned savings, additional
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) income and
government grants.

The development of the 100% Business Rate
Retention scheme is progressing — with regular
briefings / meetings held with the LGA and DCLG.

Technical consultations are expected during 2017/18.
The impact for the Council will become clear when
the scheme is finalised during 2018 (in preparation for
implementation from 2019/20).




7€ obed

Action 2015/16

Update 2016/17

No |Issue
2 Regeneration/Capital
Projects

The Authority needs to ensure
that capital projects are
managed effectively to ensure
that they are delivered and
grant monies are spent
appropriately and timely.

There is a risk that developers
will not develop timely in
accordance with the Local
Plan need.

Maintain and review project plans on a
regular basis to ensure that they can
be delivered in accordance with the
Capital Programme.

Cabinet have received updates on the Commercial
Investment Strategy (CIS), and have approved a
steering group be formed comprising Members and
Officers to oversee the implementation of projects
delivered within the CIS. The initial meeting of this
group is in May 2017.

Cabinet have also received regular updates on
projects that sit outside of the CIS such as the
Tinkers/Kerria regeneration and the Enterprise
Quarter project.

Work has commenced on an inward investment
strategy which will assist in encouraging growth and
development within the borough.

10




G¢e abed

Issue

Action 2015/16

Update 2016/17

Better Care Fund &
Disabled Facilities Grants

There is a risk that the
Authority will not be fully
funded to deliver the need for
Disabled Facilities Grants.

Assessment of needs to be linked to
the grant money received.

Staffordshire County Council undertook to fund the
final year of the HIA Contract until 31.03.2017 as part
of the Supporting People arrangements.

A fundamental Review of the DFG Allocation process
is scheduled to be reported back to Leaders and
CEOs in April 2017.

Staffordshire County Council has been informed by
DCLG that it does not have the powers to top slice
DFG Funding.

The Council agreed to support a 12 month extension
of the HIA Contract in order to facilitate the review of
DFG Allocations. This review included ‘assessment
of need’ as a fundamental consideration.

11




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2
TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2017/18
Introduction

Good Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes
for stakeholders are defined and achieved.

The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector (CIPFA/IFAC, 2014) (the
“International Framework”), states that:

To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and individuals working for
public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s objectives while acting in the public interest
at all times.

Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for society, which should
result in positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders.

Our Commitment

The Authority is committed to upholding the highest possible standards of good corporate
governance, as good governance leads to high standards of management, strong performance,
effective use of resources, increased public involvement and trust in the Council and ultimately
good results.

Good governance flows from shared values, culture and behaviour and from sound systems and
structures. This Code of Corporate Governance is a public statement which sets out the
framework through which the Council meets its commitment to good corporate governance and is
based on the following principles;

» Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting
the rule of the law;

» Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;
» Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits;

» Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes;

» Developing the entity’s capacity of its leadership and the individuals within it;

» Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial
management, and

» Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective
accountability

This Code describes how the Council demonstrates its commitment to these seven principles and
indicates what the Council has completed to achieve the commitment. It shows our own
governance structure underpinned by the principles and demonstrated how we operate effectively.

1
Page 37



Core Principle 1: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the
rule of law

Supporting Principle | Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and lead culture where acting in the public interest is
visibly and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation.

What Assurance Do | Codes of Conduct

We Want Individual sign off with regard to compliance with code

Induction for new members and staff on standard of behaviours expected
Performance appraisals

What Assurance Do | There is a Members’ Code of Conduct which forms part of the Constitution and is approved on an annual
We Get basis. Each member is required to sign two copies of the Code, retain one for themselves and one is held by
Democratic Services. The Code of Conduct for employees is also in the Constitution. Members’ are
required to sing up to the Code of Conduct on annual basis. The Code of Conduct for officers is issued to
employees through NetConsent on an annual basis.

There is a protocol for Member/Officer relations detailed in the Constitution.

The Constitution details Rules of Procedures for Committee meetings. Codes and protocols are also
included in the Gifts & Hospitality Policy and Register of Interests.

Key Officers and Members are required to complete an annual disclosure regarding any related party
interests as part of the annual statement of accounts process.

There is a Corporate training matrix detailing mandatory training required for all officers.

Members have at least one training event each year which relates to Conduct. They have access to the
Monitoring Officer at all times.

Other protocols included in the Constitution relate to Pre-Election, Member involvement in Commercial
Transactions, use of Council facilities, printing and postage, Dealing with Planning Matters and Monitoring
Officer Protocol.

The Audit and Governance Committee remit includes review of Standards of Conduct for Members as
required by the Localism Act 2011 — reports are produced to the Audit and Governance Committee.
There is a Chief Officer conduct committee and a Statutory Officer conduct committee.

There is an E-induction programme in place which is currently being reviewed.

There is a personal development review process in place which is currently being reviewed.

g¢ abed

What is missing Review of E-induction programme to be completed (Low)

The Personal Development Review process is currently being reviewed (Low)



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481534
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481534
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481534

Supporting Principle

Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating principles or values for the
organisation and its staff and that they are communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven
Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles).

What Assurance Do
We Want

Communicating shared values with members, staff, the community and partners.

What Assurance Do
We Get

6¢ obed

The Members Code of Conduct is built upon the Seven Principles of Public Life. The Code of Conduct is
included in the Constitution.

The Corporate Plan identifies that corporate values will be co-designed by employees across the
organisation and customers service standards will be co-designed with service users and will be addressed
by the current development of a Unified Community Offer project and the revision of the Organisational
Development Strategy.

In addition to the activity planned for the Tamworth Listens process / State of Tamworth debate, consultation
is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to
achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.

The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.

The Customer Service strategy is under review. Survey in March 2017 to identify what can be done to
improve customer service.

What is missing

Nothing identified



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481534
https://issuu.com/tamworth_borough_council/docs/corporate_plan_2017-2020-issuu

Supporting Principle

Leading by example and using these standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision
making and other actions.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Decision making practices

Declaration of interests made at meetings

Conduct at meetings

Shared values guide decision making

Develop and maintain an effective standards committee

What Assurance Do
We Get

Rules of procedure for Committee meetings detailed in the Constitution. Report format set out to ensure key
information is provided to Members to inform decision making.

Declarations of interests completed at all Committee meetings and recorded on the website. Annual
declarations made by members — register of Interests. Nolan principles (values) detailed with the Code of
Conduct.

The Audit & Governance Committee takes on the role of Standards Committee and independent members sit
on the Committee for Standards matters.

my) Monitoring Officer dedicated to member issues with early intervention and resolution practised leading to
g good Member/Officer relationships.

) The Council’s commitment to equality and diversity is demonstrated in its policy and plan (2015-19)
\ghat iS missing Nothing identified



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481534
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgFindMember.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgFindMember.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=134

Supporting Principle

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values through
appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating
effectively.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Anti-fraud and corruption policies are working effectively

Up-to-date register of interests (members and staff)

Up-to-date register of gifts and hospitality

Whistleblowing policies are in place and protect individuals raising concerns

Whistleblowing policy has been made available to members of the public, employees, partners and
contractors

Complaints policy and examples of responding to complaints about behaviour
Changes/improvements as a result of complaints received and acted upon

Members and officers code of conduct refers to a requirement to declare interests

Minutes show declarations of interest were sought and appropriate declarations made.

What Assurance Do
We Get

T obed

The Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement, Strategy & Guidance Notes are reviewed and updated
on an annual basis. They are approved by the Audit & Governance Committee. The Policy is made
available on the intranet and issued through NetConsent for staff acceptance.

All staff and members are required to Register their interests. Members interest are made public on the
website.

Gifts and hospitality register is maintained by the Monitoring Officer. Reminders are sent to Members and
Officers on the requirement to Register Gifts & Hospitality.

The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed and updated on an annual basis and made available on the intranet.
The Tell Us Policy is made available on the website and details the comments, complaints and complements
process. The Tell Us Policy is currently being reviewed to include a feedback mechanism to ensure that the
action is completed. Training will be completed for staff on the adoption of the new Policy.

The delivering Quality Services programme identifies changes to working practices through customer
demand transformation.

Codes of Conduct require members and officer to declare interests

Committee meeting minutes detail declarations made

Ombudsman Investigations are reported to Audit & governance Committee.

There is an Anti-Money Laundering Policy in place that was reviewed and approved in October 2016.

What is missing

The Tell Us Policy is currently being reviewed to incorporate a feedback mechanism to ensure that action
has been taken (Medium)



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/governance-and-anti-fraud
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=134
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgFindMember.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/governance-and-anti-fraud
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/contact-us-about-us
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical standards and performance

What Assurance Do
We Want

Scrutiny of ethical decision making
Championing ethical compliance at governing body level

What Assurance Do
We Get

The Council has in place two Scrutiny Committees - Aspire and Prosper and Healthier and Safer which
provide effective scrutiny to the achievement of the strategic priorities. The Scrutiny Committees join
together to scrutinise the Budget.

The Scrutiny Committees have the right to “call in” decisions made by the Executive. The Scrutiny
Committee make use of the Forward Plan to shape projects and improve accountability and decision making.
The Scrutiny Committee function is currently being reviewed for effectiveness by the Constitution Working
Group.

Agendas and minutes for the Scrutiny Committees are made available on the Council’s website and reported
to the Full Council.

Each chair of the Scrutiny Committee reports annually to Full Council.

There is an Audit and Governance Committee with the roles as required by the CIPFA/Solace framework (as

n) well as the Standards function).

g The Deputy leader of the Council and Portfolio holder for Assets & Finance is the Governance lead in the
) Authority.

I

What is missing On-going review of the effectiveness of the Scrutiny Committees (Medium)



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=173
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=175
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and ensuring they permeate all aspects of the
organisation’s culture and operation

What Assurance Do
We Want

Provision of ethical awareness training

What Assurance Do
We Get

Members receive induction training which covers expected behaviours and ethics.

Complaints received about Members Conduct are administered by the Monitoring Officer. Following the
Localism Act, the Standards Committee has been abolished and all the functions relating to standards of
conduct as provided in the Localism Act are now dealt with by the Audit & Governance Committee. Two
independent persons have been appointed.

Training is provided on a periodic basis for:

Equalities (MERIT);

Situational awareness / HAT;

Customer Service;

RESPECT

What is missing

Nothing identified

%Upporting Principle
Q

Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values.

\What Assurance Do

\% Want

Appraisal processes take account of values and ethical behaviour
Staff appointments policy
Procurement policy

What Assurance Do
We Get

PDR’s take into account corporate priorities. The PDR process identifies training needs required by the
officer for continued professional development and in order to deliver the vision and priorities of the Authority.
A staff Annual General Meeting is held which is well attended and positive feedback is received from staff.
New and vacant post procedure in place.
Recruitment processes are carried out by trained officers.
Procurement Policy in place which requires compliance standards that apply to procurement, including:

e Compliance with National and European legislation; all procurement will be undertaken in accordance

with UK and European statutes and regulations;

e Financial regulations external and internal; all procurement will be undertaken in accordance with the
Council’'s Standing Orders and Financial Regulations;

e Health & Safety standards;



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

e Environmental Impact and Sustainability; the Council will aim to procure from suppliers and to use
goods and services which have the least impact on the environment and minimise energy
consumption whilst maintaining quality and value for money;

e Equality and Diversity — the Council is committed to eliminating inequalities in all areas of activity
including procurement, and the procurement process will not discriminate on the grounds of age,
disability, gender, race, religion or sexuality;

e Safeguarding Children & Adults at Risk of Abuse & Neglect standards

Social Value is included within the Procurement Strategy which requires Officers to consider social value
issues in the procurement of major works or services i.e. impact on local labour, local economy/businesses,
apprenticeships etc.

What is missing

Nothing identified

@pporting Principle
®

Ensuring that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity and
in compliance with high ethical standards expected by the organisation.

N
phat Assurance Do
We Want

Agreed values in partnership working:

- Statement of business ethics communicates commitment to ethical values to external suppliers
- Ethical values feature in contracts with external service providers

Protocols for partnership working

What Assurance Do
We Get

Conditions of contract for provision of service details bribery and corruption. This is available on the website
Partnership Guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems
of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved. The toolkit ensures that:

The Council is clear about its purpose and can clearly define its expected outcomes for the people of
Tamworth when entering into partnerships;

The Council’s own agreed priorities and objectives are being met;

There is clarity about accountability and responsibility for outcomes;

Partnership activity and outcomes are monitored, reviewed and evaluated,;

Risks for the Council and for the Partnership are assessed and agreed,;

8



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tenders-and-contracts

Each Partnership has a clear focus during its lifetime and has in place an effective exit strategy;
Partnerships are empowered and their legal status understood;

Reviews are undertaken to evaluate success and promote progression and improved effectiveness.

The Seven Principles of Public Life are detailed within the Counter Fraud & Corruption Policy Statement,
Strategy & Guidance Notes which has been issued to staff through NetConsent. They are also detailed in

the Members Code of Conduct.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Gy abed



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/governance-and-anti-fraud
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/governance-and-anti-fraud

Supporting Principle

Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to
relevant laws and regulations.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Statutory provisions
Statutory guidance is followed
Constitution

What Assurance Do
We Get

The Solicitor to the Council provides legal advice to the Authority and has access to additional Legal support
from neighbouring authorities and private practice. .

Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer roles in place — and review key decisions for legal and financial
compliance.

Legal updates from officers regarding changes to legislation, regulations, codes of practice, etc. are provided
Statutory guidance is followed by all departments.

The Constitution, which includes the Scheme of Delegation to Officers is reviewed and approved annually by
Full Council. Any substantial amendments required are approved by the Full Council.

What is missing

Nothing identified

?pporting Principle

«Q
®

Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders and members are able to
fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory requirements.

\Bhat Assurance Do
Want

Job descriptions/specifications

Compliance with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Finance Officer in Local Government (2015)
Terms of reference

Committee support

What Assurance Do
We Get

Job descriptions and personal specifications in place

Compliance with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Finance Officer in Local Government
Statutory officers terms of reference detailed with the Constitution

Democratic support provided for Committee including a Scrutiny Officer to support Members.

What is missing

Nothing identified

10



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481569
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481569

Supporting Principle

Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens, communities and other
stakeholders

What Assurance Do
We Want

Record of legal advice provided by officers

What Assurance Do
We Get

Details of legal advice provided to officers is recorded
Committee reports require legal and risk implications to be identified as part of the decision making process.
All Cabinet Reports are approved by the Monitoring Officer and the S151 Officer.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively

What Assurance Do
We Want

Monitoring officer provisions
Record of legal advice provided by officers
Statutory provisions

What Assurance Do
\g/'\lfé Get

«Q
@D

The Solicitor to the Council is the designated Monitoring Officer for member issues. The postholder is also
responsible for legal operation of the Council.
Committee reports require legal and risk implications to be identified as part of the decision making process.

Nothing identified

\#hat is missing

11




Supporting Principle

Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Effective anti-fraud and corruption policies and procedures
Local test of assurance (where appropriate)

What Assurance Do
We Get

The Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement, Strateqy and & Guidance Notes are reviewed and
updated on annual basis and approved by the Audit & Governance Committee. The document is made
available on the Authority’s website and the Intranet and has been issued to staff through NetConsent (Policy
acceptance system)

The Whistleblowing Policy is approved on an annual basis by the Audit & Governance Committee and made
available on the Authority’s website and the intranet.

Managers are required to complete annual assurance statements to confirm compliance or otherwise with
laid down expected principles and policy.

What is missing

Nothing identified

gy abed

12



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/governance-and-anti-fraud
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/governance-and-anti-fraud
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Core Principle 2: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Supporting Principle

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the organisation’s
commitment to openness

What Assurance Do
We Want

Annual report

Freedom of Information Act publication scheme
Online council tax information

Authority’s goals and values

Authority website

What Assurance Do
We Get

61 abed

The Corporate Plan is published on the website

There is a publication scheme in place. FOI disclosures are recorded on the website.

On-line Council Tax information is made available — as well as published financial information in line with the
Transparency Code of Practice (Accounts, budget, pay Policy etc.)

The Authority’s goals and values are detailed in the performance information and Corporate Plan.

The share vision “One Tamworth, Perfectly Placed” — Open for business since the 7" Century A.D. and
corporate priorities have been developed with our partner organisations so that the strategic priorities of all
organisations are more closely aligned to the needs of the community based upon the most recent data and
intelligence provided by each organisation. In addition, the views of Tamworth residents helped shape the
priorities. During 2015/16, the vision and corporate priorities and objectives were reviewed and updated to
give the Authority direction ad focus.

Each service area develops a business plan with outcomes, and performance indicators linked to the vision
and priorities.

The website is fully functional and has available information to aid citizens.

What is missing

Nothing identified

13



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/publication-scheme
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-tax
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/vision
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/vision

Supporting Principle

Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The
presumption is for openness. If that is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping s decision
confidential should be provided.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Record of decision making and supporting materials

What Assurance Do
We Get

All agenda items (reports) are made available on the website 5 working days prior to the meeting. Minutes
are published on the website;

All reports identify restrictions on publication;

An Annual Report from the Leader of the Council detailing any reports that have not met the required notice
is made in accordance with the Access to Information Regulations; and

The budget process aims to be open and transparent with an initial Process Plan approved in July, detailed
base budget in November and Policy changes to arrive at the following years budget approved in February.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

T

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and explanations to stakeholders
and being explicit about the criteria, rational and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the
impact and consequences of those decisions are clear.

@hat Assurance Do
\We Want

o)
o

Decision making protocols

Report pro-formas

Record of professional advice in reaching decisions

Meeting reports show detail of advice given

Discussions between members and officers on the information needs of members to support decision
making

Agreement on the information that will be provided and timescales

Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports is adhered to

What Assurance Do
We Get

All decisions are made in accordance with the protocol as per the Constitution

Report formats are set on ModGov including key information to make informed decisions

The report author is noted on the report and is normally an officer.

Reports require legal and financial sign off.

Portfolio holders / Cabinet are required to sign off the reports before publication / consideration — following
discussions / agreement.

A Forward Plan is produced detailing the key decisions that will be made over the following one to four
months. The forward plan is published on the 1% of every month.

A calendar of meetings is published annually.

What is missing

Nothing identified

14



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1&DM=0&DS=2&K=0&DR=&V=0
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0

Supporting Principle

Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective
interventions/course of action.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Community strategy
Use of consultation feedback
Citizen survey

What Assurance Do
We Get

TG obed

Tamworth Strategic Partnership in place

The Tamworth Strategic Partnership (TSP) brings together key local organisations from the public, private,
voluntary and community sectors. All organisations work together to address the often complicated
challenges needed to improve the quality of life for Tamworth communities.

The partnership provides a platform to discuss, debate and progress issues and it is structured to deliver our
Vision and Priorities for Tamworth. The TSP also works to the Tamworth Strategic Plan.

Various consultations exercises are completed throughout the year. Details of the consultations are made
available on the website and the results are published.

Citizens panel in place.

Tamworth Question Time event — an annual event which a panel of local leaders attend and members of the
public can ask questions. These are then fed into the State of Tamworth Debate

In addition to the activity planned for the Tamworth Listens process / State of Tamworth debate, consultation
is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to
achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.

The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.

The Customer Service strategy is under review. Survey in March 2017 to identify what can be done to
improve customer service.

Social media channels are being used to encourage more participation.

There is a Tenant Involvement Strategy in place and various forms of tenant involvement takes place
throughout the year.

Statement of Community Involvement in place for the Local Plan.

There is a Community Safety Website for the Community Safety Partnership

What is missing

Nothing identified

15



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/vision
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/environment_docs/TSP_Tamworth_Strategic_Plan.pdf
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/consultation
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tenant-involvement
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/statement-community-involvement
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/community-safety

Supporting Principle

Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended
outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and
sustainably

What Assurance Do
We Want

Communication strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

Tenant Involvement and Consultation Strategy in place in Housing

Communication Strategy currently being reviewed

Partnership guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems
of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved.

What is missing

Communication Strategy currently being reviewed (Medium)

o
glpporting Principle
D

o1

Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes
achieved more effectively.

\What Assurance Do
We Want

Database of stakeholders with whom the authority should engage and for what purpose and a record of an
assessment of the effectiveness of any changes

What Assurance Do
We Get

There is a citizen's panel in place and citizens can join the panel at any time. The panel is actively
encouraged to take part in consultation exercises throughout the year.

Partnership guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems
of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved.

What is missing

Nothing identified

16



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/housing_docs/Tenant_involvement_strategy_2013_2016.pdf
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/consultation

Supporting Principle

Ensuring that partnerships are based on:

- Trust

- A shared commitment to change

- A culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners
And that the added value of partnership working is explicit

What Assurance Do
We Want

Partnership framework
Partnership protocols

What Assurance Do
We Get

T

Memorandum of understanding Lichfield

Tamworth Strategic Partnership

LEP

Combined authority

Partnership guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems
of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved.

@hat iS missing

Nothing identified

SRipporting Principle
()]
w

Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve
individual citizens, service users and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is
contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes

What Assurance Do
We Want

Record of public consultations
Partnership framework

What Assurance Do
We Get

Results of Public consultations are made available on the website.

Tamworth Strategic Partnership

Partnership guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems
of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved.

What is missing

Nothing identified

17



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-strategic-partnership
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-strategic-partnership

Supporting Principle

Ensuring that communication methods are effective and that members and officers are clear about their roles
with regard to community engagement

What Assurance Do
We Want

Communications strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

G abed

Tamworth Strategic Partnership in place

The Tamworth Strategic Partnership (TSP) brings together key local organisations from the public, private,
voluntary and community sectors. All the organisation’s work together to address the often complicated
challenges needed to improve the quality of life for Tamworth communities.

The partnership provides a platform to discuss, debate and progress issues and it is structured to deliver our
Vision and Priorities for Tamworth. The TSP also works to the Tamworth Strategic Plan

Various consultations exercises are completed throughout the year. Details of the consultations are made
available on the website and the results are published.

Citizens panel in place.

Tamworth Question Time event — an annual event which a panel of local leaders attend and members of the
public can ask questions. These are then fed into the State of Tamworth Debate

In addition to the activity planned for the Tamworth Listens process / State of Tamworth debate, consultation
is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to
achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.

The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.

The Customer Service strategy is under review. Survey in March 2017 to identify what can be done to
improve customer service.

Social media channels are being used to encourage more participation.

There is a Tenant Involvement Strategy in place and various forms of tenant involvement takes place
throughout the year.

Statement of Community Involvement in place for the Local Plan.

What is missing

Nothing identified

18



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-strategic-partnership
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/vision
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/environment_docs/TSP_Tamworth_Strategic_Plan.pdf

Supporting Principle

Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences of communities, citizens, service users
and organisations of different backgrounds including reference to future needs.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Communications strategy
Joint strategic needs assessment

What Assurance Do
We Get

GG abed

There is a citizen's panel in place and members are invited to take part in surveys. Typically, those citizens
that will contribute to the survey are from the older generation.

Tamworth Strategic Partnership in place

The Tamworth Strategic Partnership (TSP) brings together key local organisations from the public, private,
voluntary and community sectors. All organisations work together to address the often complicated
challenges needed to improve the quality of life for Tamworth communities.

The partnership provides a platform to discuss, debate and progress issues and it is structured to deliver our
Vision and Priorities for Tamworth. The TSP also works to the Tamworth Strategic Plan

Various consultations exercises are completed throughout the year. Details of the consultations are made
available on the website and the results are published.

Citizens panel in place.

Tamworth Question Time event — an annual event which a panel of local leaders attend and members of the
public can ask questions. These are then fed into the State of Tamworth Debate which discussed securing
services for future generations

In addition to the activity planned for the Tamworth Listens process / State of Tamworth debate, consultation
is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to
achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.

The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.

The Customer Service strategy is under review. Survey in March 2017 to identify what can be done to
improve customer service.

Social media channels are being used to encourage more participation.

There is a Tenant Involvement Strategy in place and various forms of tenant involvement takes place
throughout the year.

Statement of Community Involvement in place for the Local Plan.

What is missing

Nothing identified

19



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/consultation
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-strategic-partnership
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/vision
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/environment_docs/TSP_Tamworth_Strategic_Plan.pdf
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens

Supporting Principle

Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how their views have been taken into
account

What Assurance Do
We Want

Communications strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

9G abed

Tamworth Strategic Partnership in place

The Tamworth Strategic Partnership (TSP) brings together key local organisations from the public, private,
voluntary and community sectors. All the organisations work together to address the often complicated
challenges needed to improve the quality of life for Tamworth communities.

The partnership provides a platform to discuss, debate and progress issues and it is structured to deliver our
Vision and Priorities for Tamworth. The TSP also works to the Tamworth Strategic Plan

Various consultations exercises are completed throughout the year. Details of the consultations are made
available on the website and the results are published.

Citizens panel in place.

Tamworth Question Time event — an annual event which a panel of local leaders attend and members of the
public can ask questions. These are then fed into the State of Tamworth Debate

In addition to the activity planned for the Tamworth Listens process / State of Tamworth debate, consultation
is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to
achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.

The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.

The Customer Service strategy is under review. Survey in March 2017 to identify what can be done to
improve customer service.

Social media channels as well as e-enabled services are being used to encourage more participation.

There is a Tenant Involvement Strategy in place and various forms of tenant involvement takes place
throughout the year.

Statement of Community Involvement in place for the Local Plan.

What is missing

Nothing identified

20



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-strategic-partnership
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/vision
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/environment_docs/TSP_Tamworth_Strategic_Plan.pdf

Supporting Principle

Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity

What Assurance Do
We Want

Processes for dealing with competing demands within the community, for example a consultation

What Assurance Do
We Get

Tamworth Listens includes consultation with residents, businesses, and the voluntary sector (including
budget consultation). Promotion of the consultation exercise is completed through press releases, active
promotion on the website, and through social media. The citizens panel are invited and businesses and the
voluntary sector are emailed to encourage them to participate.

The majority of the responses came from residents and were over representative of the over 55 age group.

What is missing

Supporting Principle

Taking accounts of the interests of future generations of tax payers and service users

What Assurance Do
We Want

Reports
Joint strategic needs assessment

What Assurance Do
We Get

)G abed

Citizens panel in place.

Tamworth Question Time event — an annual event which a panel of local leaders attend and members of the
public can ask questions. These are then fed into the State of Tamworth Debate

In addition to the activity planned for the Tamworth Listens process / State of Tamworth debate, consultation
is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to
achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.

The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.
There is a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JNSA) in place.

What is missing

Nothing identified

21



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens

Core Principle 3: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Supporting Principle | Having a clear vision which is an agreed formal statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended
outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators which provides the basis for the organisation’s
overall strategy, planning and other decisions

What Assurance Do | Vision used as a basis for corporate and service planning

We Want
What Assurance Do | The revised strategic framework is designed to ensure that the Authority is an “outcome focused”, efficient
We Get corporate identity where customers are key. It sets out our vision “One Tamworth, Perfectly Placed” — Open
for business since 7" Century A.D. and three strategic priorities aligned under “Living, Growing and
Delivering in Tamworth”
e Living a quality life in Tamworth
e Growing strong together in Tamworth
e Delivering quality services in Tamworth
9-? These priorities are underpinned by specific objectives, our core purpose, customer service standards and
Q corporate values details which can be found in the Corporate Plan.
a As detailed above, one of the three revised Corporate Priorities that will enable us to deliver the vision is
o0 ‘Delivering Quality Services in Tamworth’. This priority will be delivered primarily through a project that

will bring about the biggest change in the delivery of customer services that the authority has seen. Running
alongside the changes in customer services, work has begun on Tranche Il of Agile working. These two
projects are being delivered as part of a corporate Continual Improvement Programme (previously the
Corporate Change Programme).
From talking and listening to our customers, and from capturing the demand placed on our services we know
that:
we need to change the way we deliver customer services
customers want to access our services in a variety of ways and at a time and place that suits them
we have inconsistencies in the levels and types of service we provide to our customers
some of our high demand services are costly to deliver and we need to make them more efficient
we do not have a clear picture of the demand our customers place on us — what we do know is that
customers rarely come in with one single request, invariably they have multiple requests for service in
their ‘shopping basket’.

During the financial year, the “My Staffs” app was launched, providing people with another way to access
council services on the move and a time to suit them.

22



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/vision
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-app

6G abed

The Webchat service was also launched, so that anyone with an enquiry about a TBC service can get in
touch with the Council through the new “chat” window on the website.
Work is underway to capture the demand on services, which will give us a priority list for the development of
the CRM processes to ensure that the most appropriate processes are transferred first.
We will work with our partners through facilitation and challenge, to improve the customer experience
especially where the Authority is not the direct provider.
The Authority has seen an incremental shift away from the “command and control” top down management
style and culture to one of a fully empowered organisation with clear lines of responsibility and accountability
leading to a more outcome focused, customer driven and efficient way of working. The use of efficiency
models and demand management techniques has resulted in the Authority becoming a multi-economy or
hybrid organisation.
The Authority continues to work with others by using alternative delivery models for service provision. A
Memorandum of Understanding has been adopted with Lichfield District Council to replace an existing
informal arrangement for options of pursuing shared service arrangement with each other.
Every year, the Authority undertakes consultation with local people on a wide range of issues. During
2016/17, consultation was completed on the budget, Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme, Tamworth
Conservation Area Appraisal Management Plan & Listing Consultation and Target Hardening Policy.
“Tamworth Listens” is another consultation exercise of which the results feed into the “State of Tamworth
Debate”. The consultation exercise for the 2016/17 budget process was completed to gauge residents’,
business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to achieve the “Vision” considering
areas of spending or where savings could be potentially be made. As part of this consultation exercise, a
guestion time event was held for residents to attend and ask questions.
There are dedicated Business Advice and Visit Tamworth websites.
In terms of the Councils own housing stock and in compliance with the regulatory framework members have
approved a regulatory framework ensuring tenants are plugged into the democratic process and have the
opportunity to inform, share and influence key strategic decisions
There is a Tenant Involvement and Consultation Strategy in place. A Tenants Conference also took place in
March 2014 and normally takes place bi-annually. Due to the changes in welfare reform and the introduction
of services charges, local event have been organised around these issues. The next Tenant Conference is
scheduled for 2018. As part of the Tenant participation, there are formal groups for Tenant Consultation and
Tenant Involvement and several informal groups in place. Open House is now communicated by way of an
e-newsletter on a bi-monthly basis. It is still advertised on our website and will be available on request as a
hard copy. A small number of hard copies will be made available in prominent places i.e. reception/TIC etc
and a small number delivered to the 11 Housing Sheltered schemes around the Borough.
The Vision is used as a basis for the Corporate Plan and service delivery plans which are reviewed on an

23



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/consultation
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/consultation
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/state-tamworth-debate-2017
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/state-tamworth-debate-2017
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/business-advice
http://www.visittamworth.co.uk/
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/housing-policies
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tenant-involvement
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tenant-involvement
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/vision

09 abed

annual basis.

There is a Communication Strategy which details the way that the Authority communicates with the local
community to better informed regarding their needs and aspirations.

The Tamworth Strategic Partnership (TSP) is an umbrella partnership that brings together key local agencies
from the public, private, voluntary and community sectors. The TSP has terms of reference, vision and
priorities, workstreams, a commissioning framework. Agenda and minutes are made available on the
Authority’s website.

The Authority produces an Annual Review and Corporate Plan. Performance against the Corporate Plan is
reported on a quarterly basis. The Statement of Accounts and the Annual Audit Report are made available
on the website.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) outlines how finances will be used over the coming three years
detailing how capital and revenue expenditure will be used to support the delivery of the corporate priorities
and ensure that appropriate resources are focused on the Vision Statement, Priority Themes, Corporate
Priorities and Outcomes. The Authority has been proactive in the design and implementation of innovative
and effective measures for driving efficiency and reducing cost within the MTFS. In August 2013, Cabinet
endorsed “Planning for a Sustainable Future” as the overarching strategy for meeting the challenges forecast
for the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strateqgy and a series of workstreams designed to deliver savings &
efficiencies to mitigate grant & income reductions in the coming years. This includes exploring new and
innovative ideas and to be more commercial in our approach to business.

A quarterly performance report is presented to Cabinet which provides information on:

e  Corporate Plan scorecard of performance indicators

High level corporate plan actions

Performance Management Framework

Corporate risks

Financial matters.

Live performance data via the customer dashboard on the Councils website

What is missing

Nothing identified

24



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-strategic-partnership
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/our-accounts
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/annual-audit
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/budget-book-and-reports
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/budget-book-and-reports
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could
be immediately or over the course of a year or longer

What Assurance Do
We Want

Community engagement and involvement
Corporate and service plans
Community strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

T9 abed

Every year, the Authority undertakes consultation with local people on a wide range of issues. During
2016/17, consultation was completed on the budget, Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme, Tamworth
Conservation Area Appraisal Management Plan & Listing Consultation and Target Hardening Policy.
“Tamworth Listens” is another consultation exercise of which the results feed into the “State of Tamworth
Debate”. The consultation exercise for the 2016/17 budget process was completed to gauge residents’,
business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to achieve the “Vision” considering
areas of spending or where savings could be potentially be made. As part of this consultation exercise, a
guestion time event was held for residents to attend and ask questions.
There are dedicated Business Advice and Visit Tamworth websites.
In terms of the Councils own housing stock and in compliance with the regulatory framework members have
approved a regulatory framework ensuring tenants are plugged into the democratic process and have the
opportunity to inform, share and influence key strategic decisions
There is a Tenant Involvement and Consultation Strateqgy in place. A Tenants Conference also took place in
March 2014 and normally takes place bi-annually. Due to the changes in welfare reform and the introduction
of services charges, local event have been organised around these issues. The next Tenant Conference is
scheduled for 2018. As part of the Tenant participation, there are formal groups for Tenant Consultation and
Tenant Involvement and several informal groups in place. Open House is now communicated by way of an
e-newsletter on a bi-monthly basis. It is still advertised on our website and will be available on request as a
hard copy. A small number of hard copies will be made available in prominent places i.e. reception/TIC etc
and a small number delivered to the 11 Housing Sheltered schemes around the Borough.
The Vision is used as a basis for the Corporate Plan and service delivery plans which are reviewed on an
annual basis.
There is a Communication Strategy which details the way that the Authority communicates with the local
community to better informed regarding their needs and aspirations.
The Tamworth Strategic Partnership (TSP) is an umbrella partnership that brings together key local agencies
from the public, private, voluntary and community sectors. The TSP has terms of reference, vision and
priorities, workstreams, a commissioning framework. Agenda and minutes are made available on the
Authority’s website.
The Authority produces a Corporate Plan. Performance against the Corporate Plan is reported on a
guarterly basis. The Statement of Accounts and the Annual Audit Report are made available on the website.

25



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/consultation
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/business-advice
http://www.visittamworth.co.uk/
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tenant-involvement
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-strategic-partnership
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/our-accounts
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/annual-audit

Corporate and service plans are reviewed and updated annually. They include actions to be completed

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available

What Assurance Do
We Want

Regular reports on progress

What Assurance Do
We Get

29 abed

The quarterly performance report details performance indicators, collections rates, an update on the
sustainability strategy, progress against the corporate plan and the corporate risk register. The performance
report is reported quarterly to Cabinet.

The Authority has in place a Tell Us scheme which provides an avenues for service users to provide
feedback on the services provided. This can either be | the form of comments, compliments or complaints.
Guidance available about complaints refers to referrals to the Ombudsman. Guidance is made available to
members of the public if they wish to make a complaint against a member of the Council. Complaints
against members of the Council are dealt with by the Monitoring Officer in the first instance and ultimately
reported to the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Customer Service strategy is under review. Survey in March 2017 to identify what can be done to
improve customer service.

One of the three revised corporate priorities that will enable us to deliver the vision is “Delivering Quality
Services in Tamworth”. This priority will be delivered primarily through the on-going project that will bring
about the biggest change in the delivery of customer services.

What is missing

Nothing identified

26



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/contact-us-about-us
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of outcomes

What Assurance Do
We Want

Performance trends are established and reported upon
Risk management protocols

What Assurance Do
We Get

Performance trends are reported in the quarterly performance report.

Risks are identified at a corporate and operational level and are monitored on a regular basis in line with the
Risk Management Policy. The Corporate Risk Register is reported to the Audit & Governance Committee on
a quarterly basis.

The annual audit plan is developed around the audit risk assessment and through consultation with members
of the Corporate Management team who identify emerging risks within their service areas.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Managing service users expectations effectively with regard to determining priorities and making the best use
of the resources available

What Assurance Do
\79%!313 Want

An agreed set of quality standard measures for each service element and included in service plans
Processes for dealing with competing demands within the community

©
What Assurance Do

\@ Get

Each service plan has actions plans and performance indicators.

Corporate plan actions aligned to the strategic priorities have action plans in place which are updated on a
guarterly basis.

The council has implemented a Demand Management model which aims to eliminate waste in processes

What is missing

Nothing identified

27



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance

Supporting Principle

Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies, plans and
decisions when taking decisions about service provision

What Assurance Do
We Want

Capital investment is structured to achieve appropriate life spans an adaptability for future use or that
resources (eg land) are spent on optimising social, economic and environmental wellbeing:

- Capital programme

- Capital investment strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

There is a 3 year capital programme in place which identifies capital spend and financing. The Capital
Investment Strategy, Capital process guidance, full capital appraisal forms and outline capital bid forms are
available on the intranet.

Business plans are informed by Corporate Plan and take into account PEST impacts.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

o
jab)

(@)

Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk and acting transparently
where there are potential conflicts between the organisation’s intended outcomes and short-term factors
such as the political cycle or financial constraints

\What Assurance Do
\ge Want

Discussion between members and officers on the information needs of members to support decision making
Record of decision making and support materials

What Assurance Do
We Get

Full reports are prepared by officers and members Portfolio Holders) can discuss any issues prior to the
committee meeting with the relevant officer.

All agenda items and minutes are available on the website with the exception of restricted agenda items.
The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) Regulations 2012
requires that the Leader of the Council makes one report annually to the authority to include particulars of
each urgent executive decision made and a summary of matters in respect of which each decision was
made. For the period 1% may 2015 to 30™ April 2016, the Leader of the Council reported that no such
decisions had been taken by the Executive under Regulation 11, cases of special urgency.

Resource and Legal/Risk implications are identified in Committee reports

What is missing

Nothing identified

28



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/budget-book-and-reports
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Determining the wider public interest associated with balance conflicting interests between achieving the
various economic. Social and environmental benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to ensure
appropriate trade-offs.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Record of decision making and supporting materials
Protocols for consultation

What Assurance Do
We Get

All Committee decisions are recorded in the minutes. Minutes and agendas are made available on the
website. Where Officers have made decisions which are approved Portfolio holders, these are made
available on the website.

All consultation undertaken is made available on the website so that citizens can participate.

Protocol for Budget consultation approved annually by Cabinet.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring fair access to services

What Assurance Do
We Want

Protocols ensure fair access and statutory guidance is followed

What Assurance Do
e Get

@D
(©))
ol

Equalities assessments undertaken

Website accessibility W3C1.0 compliance

Font sizes can be changed

Alternate formats and languages.

Hard copies of Committee agendas are made available on request. Hardcopy of each agenda taken to the
meeting for public use.

What is missing

Nothing identified

29



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1&DM=0&DS=2&K=0&DR=&V=0
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/accessibility

Core Principle 4: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Supporting Principle | Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options indicating how
intended outcomes would be achieved and including the risks associated with those options. Therefore
ensuring best value is achieved however services are provided.

What Assurance Do | Discussion between member and officers on the information needs of members to support decision making
We Want Decision making protocols

Options appraisals

Agreement of information that will be provided and timescales

What Assurance Do | Leadership team meetings between members and officers are in place. (Executive Management Team).
We Get Regular updates with Portfolio holders in place.

The Constitution details the decision making protocols and format of reports.

U Various options are required to be detailed in the Committee reports so that members can make informed
g decisions.

) There is a set timetable in place for the production of agendas prior to the meeting taking place.

o Scrutiny Officer in place to support the Scrutiny function.

What is missing Nothing identified

30


http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481569
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions about service improvements or
where services are no longer required in order to prioritise competing demands within limited resources
available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Financial strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

abed

Budget consultation is completed on an annual basis with citizen input which informs the financial strategy
Tamworth Question Time event — an annual event which a panel of local leaders attend and members of the
public can ask questions. These are then fed into the State of Tamworth Debate

In addition to the activity planned for the Tamworth Listens process / State of Tamworth debate, consultation
is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to
achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.

The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.
MTFS approved annually takes into account budget consultation feedback — reported annually to Cabinet.

\What is missing

Nothing identified

Suipporting Principle

Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans,
priorities and targets

What Assurance Do
We Want

Calendar of dates for developing and submitting plans and reports that are adhered to

What Assurance Do
We Get

There is a performance management reporting cycle in place which timetables the performance reporting
cycle.

The Forward Plan is published on the website detailing the expected agenda items for the following four
months.

What is missing

Nothing identified

31



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0

Supporting Principle

Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services and other courses of action
should be planned and delivered

What Assurance Do
We Want

Communication strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

Tamworth Question Time event — an annual event which a panel of local leaders attend and members of the
public can ask questions. These are then fed into the State of Tamworth Debate

In addition to the activity planned for the Tamworth Listens process / State of Tamworth debate, consultation
is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s priorities to
achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.

The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.

my) Joint Scrutiny Committee (Budget) held annually to feedback Member concerns from residents.
Q
\®hat is missing Nothing identified

89

32



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/consultation

Supporting Principle

Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when working collaboratively including shared risks

What Assurance Do
We Want

Partnership framework
Risk management protocol

What Assurance Do
We Get

Partnerships risks are identified and monitored — risk registers are in place.

Partnership guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems
of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved.

Risks are identified at a corporate and operational level and are monitored on a regular basis in line with the
Risk Management Policy. The Corporate Risk Register is reported to the Audit & Governance Committee on
a quarterly basis.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

T

Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted
to changing circumstances

@hat Assurance Do
We Want

Planning protocols

@m Assurance Do
e Get

Protocols in place (constitution) to ensure annual delivery of:
1) MTFS;
2) Budget Consultation;
3) Tamworth Listens events;
4) State of Tamworth debate;
5) KPIs / Service Plans;
6) Corporate Plan

What is missing

Nothing identified

33



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify
how the performance of services and projects is to be measured

What Assurance Do
We Want

KPIs have been established and approved for each service element and included in the service plan and are
reported upon regularly

What Assurance Do
We Get

Key performance indicators are in place within Service Plans and the Corporate Plan and monitored and
reported on a regular basis through quarterly reports to Cabinet.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required to review service quality regularly

What Assurance Do
We Want

Reports include detailed performance results and highlights areas where corrective action is necessary

What Assurance Do
We Get

A quarterly performance report is reported to Cabinet. The report details progress against performance
indicators with a red, amber, green traffic light scenario to prompt remedial actions.

What is missing

Nothing identified

%Upporting Principle

«Q
@D

Preparing budgets in accordance with organisational objectives, strategies and the medium term financial
plan

at Assurance Do
e Want

Evidence that budgets, plans and objectives are aligned

What Assurance Do
We Get

Budgets are set following budget consultation with citizens. Budgets are aligned to the corporate objectives
A joint report is approved annually by Council which approves the Vision, Corporate Priorities and MTFS
aligning resource demands in support of the corporate priorities.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenues and capital
expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Budget guidance and protocols
Medium term financial plan
Corporate plans

What Assurance Do
We Get

Budget guidance and protocols are in place and approved annually by Cabinet in July each year. There is a
medium term financial plan in place with budgets balanced for 3 years (with a 5 year forecast position
reported to Cabinet and Joint Scrutiny Committee).

The Corporate Plan is reviewed and updated on an annual basis

What is missing

Nothing identified

34



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance

Supporting Principle

Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balance service priorities, affordability and other
resource constraints.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Feedback surveys and exit/decommissioning strategies
Changes as a result

What Assurance Do
We Get

Budget consultation completed on an annual basis

consultation is planned to gauge residents’, business and other core stakeholders’ views on the Council’s
priorities to achieve the ‘Vision’ considering areas of spending or where savings could potentially be made.
The consultation is carried out through 3 online surveys. A survey that is tailored for businesses, a full survey
aimed at residents and a survey that is tailored for the voluntary and community sector.

The online residents survey is promoted using social networking/media sites and through email contact
databases.

The business survey is promoted through business social networking sites and business email contact
databases. The voluntary and community sector survey is promoted through email contact databases.

Joint Scrutiny Committee (Budget) held annually to feedback Member concerns from residents.

What is missing

Nothing identified

&pporting Principle
(9]

\I

Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full cost of operations over the
medium and longer term.

V'V‘hat Assurance Do
We Want

Budgeting guidance and protocols

What Assurance Do
We Get

Medium term financial strategy

Budget setting process approved by Cabinet in July each year — including a robust process for capital
investment and policy changes which requires business cases to be prepared for consideration by EMT.
Budget consultation through Tamworth Listens

What is missing

Nothing identified

35



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/budget-book-and-reports
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tamworth-listens

Supporting Principle

Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing decisions on significantly delivery
issues or responses to changes in the external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in
order for outcomes to be achieved whilst optimising resource usage

What Assurance Do
We Want

Financial Strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

Medium term financial strategy and associated forecasts are considered by CMT, EMT and Cabinet prior to
review/scrutiny by Members at the Joint Scrutiny Committee (Budget).

These consider the need for any ongoing decisions on significant issues and appropriate budget changes
made through the policy changes process or capital programming process.

In year changes can be made using virements procedures (for both Officers and Cabinet) outlined within
financial guidance (as well as use of contingencies).

Financial impact assessment are included in reports to Committees.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring the achievement of “social value” through service planning and commissioning. The Public

o Services (Social Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional benefit to the community...over and above
2 the direct purchasing of goods, services and outcomes”

\What Assurance Do
\R‘JE Want

Service plans demonstrate consideration of “social value”
Achievement of “social value” is monitored and reported upon

What Assurance Do
We Get

Social Value is included within the Procurement Strategy which requires Officers to consider social value
issues in the procurement of major works or services i.e. impact on local labour, local economy/businesses,
apprenticeships etc.

What is missing

Nothing identified

36



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/budget-book-and-reports
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Core Principle 5: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Supporting Principle

Reviewing operations, performance use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Regular reviews of activities, outputs and planned outcomes

What Assurance Do
We Get

Quarterly reviews of operational business plans are in place which have performance indicators.

As part of the capital programme, annual consideration of need for asset maintenance e.g. use of office
space, regular stock condition surveys, asset usage (asset acquisition and disposal policies — e.g. golf
course).

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Improving resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as benchmarking and other
options in order to determine how the authority’s resources are allocated so that outcomes are achieved
effectively and efficiently.

What Assurance Do

Utilisation of research and benchmarking exercise

W Want

¥hat Assurance Do | Research and benchmarking exercises are completed in appropriate areas.
We Get CIPFA benchmarking for corporate services completed annually.

a Housing Benchmarking undertaken through Housemark.

Review of assets use through the One Public Estate programme and liaison with Staffordshire County
Council.

What is missing

Nothing identified

37




Supporting Principle

Recognising the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Effective operation of partnerships which deliver agreed outcomes

What Assurance Do
We Get

Partnerships are in place for the delivery of some services. There is a Memorandum of Understanding in
place with Lichfield District Council for the sharing of services
Partnership guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems

of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources.

What Assurance Do
V& Want

Workforce plan
Organisational development plan

What Assurance Do
\We Get

~
AN

There are training and development plans in place for members and officers. Officers training and
development is identified through the Personal Development Review (PDR).

The recruitment process ensures that skills and knowledge are measured and tested appropriately.
There is an E-Induction programme in place which is available to both officers and members.

Job descriptions and personal specifications are in place for all posts and reviewed as required.

All Statutory Officers are members of CMT.

Job descriptions for members are included in the recently revised Constitution. They detalil the purpose,
duties & responsibilities and skills required for all Councillors, Leader & Deputy Leader, Members of the
executive, Chairs of Committees and the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Opposition.

Service reviews are informed by the Delivering Quality Service process.

What is missing

Workforce plan to be presented to CMT May 2017. (Medium)
Organisational development plan to be presented to CMT May 2017. (Medium)

38



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481569

Supporting Principle

Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate their respective roles early on in
the relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is maintained.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Job descriptions
Chief Executive and Leader pairings have considered how best to establish and maintain effective
communication.

What Assurance Do
We Get

Job descriptions are in place for both members and officers.

The Chief Executive and the Leader hold regular meetings. Corporate Management Team and the Cabinet
form together to form the Executive Management Team.

Training and development plan which is developed through the PDR process. This process is in place for all
officers

Members’ training is provided on induction and in specialist areas.

Regular training is provided for the Regulatory Committees.

What is missing

Nothing identified

G, abed

39




Supporting Principle

Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the
collective decision making of the governing body.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Scheme of delegation reviewed at least annually in the light of legal and organisational changes.
Standing orders and financial regulations which are reviewed on a regular basis.

What Assurance Do
We Get

The scheme of delegation is reviewed at least annually.
Financial guidance is reviewed and updated on an annual basis

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring the Leader and the Chief Executive have clearly defined and distinctive leadership roles within a
structure whereby the Chief Executive leads the authority in implementing strategy and managing the
delivery of services and other outputs set by members and each provides a check and a balance for each
other’s authority.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Clear statement of respective roles and responsibilities and how they will be put into practice.

What Assurance Do
Wk Get

The Constitution details the roles and responsibilities of the leader and the Chief Executive

What is missing

Nothing identified

D

~
(®))

40



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481569

Supporting Principle

Developing the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve effective shared leadership and
to enable the organisation to respond successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as
economic, political and environmental changes and risks by:

- -ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that ongoing
training and development matching individual and organisational requirement is available and
encouraged

- Ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil
their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their knowledge on a continuing
basis.

- Ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including
lessons learnt from governance weaknesses both internal and external.

What Assurance Do
We Want

/] abed

Access to update courses/information briefing on new legislation
Induction programme

Personal development plans for members and officers

For example, for members this may include the ability to:

- Scrutinise and challenge

- Recognise when outside expert advice is required

- Promote trust

- Work in partnership

- Lead the organisation

- Act as a community leader

Efficient systems and technology used for effective support
Arrangements for succession planning

What Assurance Do
We Get

PDR process identifies training needs

CPD/membership of professional bodies for up to date information/changes to legislation
Networking and membership of professional bodies encouraged

PDR process in place for members and officers

Members induction and training programme in place (e.g. finance, treasury management, planning,
licensing).

e-learning solution to be rolled out which cover a number of areas

What is missing

Nothing identified

41




Supporting Principle

Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Resident’s panels
Stakeholder forum terms of reference
Strategic partnership frameworks

What Assurance Do
We Get

Tenant participation

Citizens panel

Community safety partnership

Partnership frameworks in lace for joint working

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to constructive
feedback from peer reviews and inspections.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Reviewing individual member performance on a regular basis taking account of their attendance and
considering any training or development needs

U Peer reviews

&

What Assurance Do | PDR process in place for members
\We Get

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development
needs.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Training and development plan
Staff development plans linked to appraisals
Implementing appropriate human resource policies and ensuring that they are working effectively

What Assurance Do
We Get

Training identified as part of the PDR process
Conduct and capability Procedures

Training for managers

HR policies in place and updated as required.

What is missing

Nothing identified

42



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/tenant-involvement
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/consultation
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/community-safety

Supporting Principle

Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support
individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Human resource policies

What Assurance Do
We Get

Health and safety policies

Healthshield benefits

Childcare vouchers

Counselling service

HR policies — some are out of date

Well-being policy developed

TBC signed up to national initiative ‘“Time for change’
On-site counselling service available for all staff

Mental Health First Aiders appointed

Mental Health champions to be trained

Robust management of attendance with support from Occupational Health Specialists
Regular updates with Trade unions and / or representatives

What is missing

Nothing identified

6/ obE

43




Core Principle 6: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial

management

Supporting Principle

Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must be considered in all aspects of
decision making

What Assurance Do
We Want

Risk management protocol

What Assurance Do
We Get

T

Risk Management Policy — reviewed and updated annually and approved by Audit & Governance
Committee. There is a Corporate Risk register which is owned by Corporate Management team which is
updated on a quarterly basis and reported to the Audit & Governance Committee. Operational risk register
are owned by managers and recorded on the Covalent system and linked to performance and service plans.
Internal Audit work with managers to help them identify their risks and record them on the Covalent system.
The Internal Audit plan takes into account the identified risks on the risk registers.

All decisions made by Members have the risks identified

What is missing

Nothing identified

%ﬁ;pporting Principle
(@)

Implementing robust and integral risk management arrangements and ensuring that they are working
effectively.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Risk management strategy/policy formally approved and adopted and reviewed and updated on a regular
basis.

What Assurance Do
We Get

Risk Management Policy — reviewed and updated annually and approved by Audit & Governance
Committee.
All decisions made by Members have the risks identified

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Risk management protocol

What Assurance Do
We Get

Risk registers are in place for service areas as well as a corporate risk register. Owners of the risks are
assigned

What is missing

Nothing identified

44



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, specification, execution and independent post
implementation review.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Performance map showing all key activities have performance measures

Benchmarking information

Cost performance (using inputs and outputs)

Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports that are adhered to.

What Assurance Do
We Get

The corporate plan 2016-20 identifies key performance indicators aligned to the strategic priorities
Benchmarking information is used for some services where appropriate/available
Performance management cycle identifies the timetable for the submission of performance reports

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice pointing out the implications and
risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and environmental position and outlook.

What Assurance Do

Discussion between members and officers on the information needs of members to support decision making

We Want Publication of agendas and minutes of meetings

U Agreement on the information that will be needed and timescales

¥hat Assurance Do | Portfolio holder meetings with staff

We Get All agenda and minutes published on the website

g The forward plan is a list of the council’s key decisions that will be made over the next one to four months.

These decisions will be made by either the Cabinet or by officers who have been delegated authority by the
Cabinet.

The forward plans are published on the first working day of the month.

The plan includes a short description of the decision to be made; who will make it; when the decision will be
taken; details of the planned consultation with local people and other stakeholders; and contact details for
further information (including reports and background papers).

What is missing

Nothing identified

45



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0

Supporting Principle

Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which encourages constructive challenge and
debate on policies and objectives before, during and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the
organisation’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is responsible.

(OR, for a committee system) Encouraging effective and constructive challenge and debate on policies and
objectives to support balanced and effective decision making.

What Assurance Do
We Want

The role and responsibility for scrutiny has been established and is clear
Agenda and minutes of scrutiny meetings

Evidence of improvements as a result of scrutiny

Terms of reference

Training for members

Membership

What Assurance Do
We Get

@D
00)

The roles and responsibilities for Scrutiny Committees are detailed in The Constitution

Agendas and minutes are made available on the website. Scrutiny chairs report annually to full Council on
their workplan.

Terms of reference are detailed within the Constitution

Training is provided for members

Under the remit of the Scrutiny Committees, they can call in decisions

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Providing members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress
towards outcome achievement.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports that are adhered to

What Assurance Do
We Get

There is a calendar of dates for the submission and publishing reports

What is missing

Nothing identified

46



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481569
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481569
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation
reporting (eg financial statements)

What Assurance Do
We Want

Financial standards, guidance
Financial regulations and standing orders

What Assurance Do
We Get

Financial regulations, contract standing orders and financial guidance are in place and reviewed and updated
annually.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving the objectives

What Assurance Do
We Want

Risk management strategy
Audit plan
Audit reports

What Assurance Do
We Get

The risk management strategy is reviewed, updated and approved annually by the Audit & Governance
Committee.
The Audit plan is based on an internal audit risk assessment and approved by the Audit & Governance

U Committee. Quarterly reports of progress against the plan are submitted to the Audit & Governance
Q .

o Committee

@

hat is missing Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Evaluating and monitoring the authority’s risk management and internal control on a regular basis

What Assurance Do
We Want

Risk management strategy/policy has been formally approved and adopted and is reviewed and updated on
a regular basis

What Assurance Do
We Get

The Risk Management Policy/Strategy is reviewed, updated and then approved by the Audit & Governance
Committee on an annual basis. Quarter updates of the risk management action plan are also submitted to
the Committee.

What is missing

Nothing identified

47



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Ensuring effective counter fraud ad anti-corruption arrangements are in place

What Assurance Do
We Want

Compliance with the Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014)

What Assurance Do
We Get

Internal Audit measure against Compliance with the Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and
Corruption and this is reported to the Audit & Governance Committee

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of governance,
risk management and control is provided by the internal auditor.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Annual Governance Statement
Effective internal audit service is resource and maintained

What Assurance Do
We Get

The Annual Governance Statement is produced in accordance with the guideline alongside the Code of
Corporate Governance. The Annual Governance Statement is signed by the Leader and the Chief
Executive.

What is missing

Nothing identified

&pporting Principle
D

(00)
D

Ensuring an audit committee or equivalent group or function which is independent of the executive and

accountable to the governing body:

- Provides further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for managing risk and
maintaining an effective control environment

- That its recommendations are listened to and acted upon

What Assurance Do
We Want

Audit committee complies with best practice. See Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities
and Police (CIPFA 2013)

Terms of reference

Membership

Training

What Assurance Do
We Get

The terms of reference for the Audit & Governance Committee are detailed within the Constitution.
Members of the Committee are independent of the Cabinet and the Chair reports annually to Full Council.
The Audit & Governance Committee receive quarterly update reports on Risk management which include a
review of the Corporate Risk Register, an update of the risk management action plan and they approve the
Risk management Policy on an annual basis.

Any recommendations made by the Audit & Governance Committee are recorded in the minutes and acted
upon.

What is missing

Nothing identified

48



http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/governance-and-anti-fraud
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD355&ID=355&RPID=1481569
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data,
including processes to Safeguard personal data

What Assurance Do
We Want

Data management framework and procedures
Designated data protection officer
Data protection policies and procedures

What Assurance Do
We Get

The Authority has in place a Corporate Data Register which details all the data held. We have various
policies and procedures in place around data issues including:
e Data Protection Policy,
e Security Policy,
Access Control Policies and Procedures,
Asset Management Policies and procedures,
Human Resources security,
Business Continuity Management,
Physical and Environmental Security,
Systems and Acquisitions, development and maintenance,
e Data Quality

ﬂ - - -
What is missing

Nothing identified

Sipporting Principle

Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies

(a'e)
\What Assurance Do
We Want

Data sharing agreement
Data sharing register
Data processing agreements

What Assurance Do
We Get

Individual data sharing agreements are in place for areas within Revenues & Benefits, Economic
Development, and Housing. These are detailed on the data sharing page on the intranet (data sharing
register).

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance
monitoring

What Assurance Do
We Want

Data quality procedures and reports
Data validation procedures

What Assurance Do
We Get

Auditing of data is completed in accordance with the risk based internal audit plan.
Data is validated as part of the internal controls in place

What is missing

Nothing identified

49




Supporting Principle

Ensuring financial management supports both long term achievement of outcomes and short-term financial
and operational performance

What Assurance Do
We Want

Financial management supports the delivery of services and transformational change as well as securing
good stewardship

What Assurance Do
We Get

Medium term financial strategy in place

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels of planning and control, including
management of financial risks and controls

What Assurance Do
We Want

Budget monitoring reports

What Assurance Do
We Get

Budget monitoring reports are available monthly and ad hoc as required.

What is missing

Nothing identified

9g abed

50



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/budget-book-and-reports

Core Principle 7: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective

accountability

Supporting Principle

Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in an understandable style
appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and interrogate.

Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands and
enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide and for users to understand.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Website
Annual report

What Assurance Do
We Get

d

All reports are made available on the website for the public to access apart from anything confidential as laid
down by

The Corporate Plan is published on an annual basis and made available on the website.

All information is made available in accordance with the Transparency Agenda. Where Freedom of
Information requests are made and it is beneficial to publish the data on the website, this is completed

Q)
@hat is missing

Nothing identified

%pporting Principle
\l

Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and the stewardship of its resources.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Formal annual report which includes key points raised by external scrutineers and service users’ feedback on
service delivery.
Annual financial statements

What Assurance Do
We Get

The Corporate Plan are produced on an annual basis.
The financial statements are produced in accordance with the timetable. The External Auditors produce the
Annual Audit Letter and the Audit Findings Report.

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring members and senior management own the results.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Appropriate approvals

What Assurance Do
We Get

Approved by Cabinet and Full Council
Accounts (including AGS) approved by Audit & Governance Committee

What is missing

Nothing identified

o1



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Supporting Principle

Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles contained in the Framework
have been applied and publishing the results on this assessment including an action plan for improvement
and evidence to demonstrate good governance (annual governance statement).

What Assurance Do
We Want

Annual Governance Statement

What Assurance Do
We Get

Results and actions arising from this assessment will go in the Annual Governance Statement for approval
by Audit & Governance Committee

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Ensuring that the Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service organisations as appropriate.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Annual Governance Statement

What Assurance Do
We Get

The Annual Governance Statement is prepared by the Governance Group which is made up of lead officers
within the Authority. The revised Personal Development Review document will include reference to the core
principles of Corporate Governance.

What is missing

Nothing identified

&pporting Principle
D

00)

Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a consistent
and timely basis and the statements allow for comparison with other similar organisations.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Format follows best practice

What Assurance Do
We Get

High level corporate plan projects/programmes and corporate risk register included in the Statement of
Accounts

Financial statements prepared in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice (as all Councils should) including
relevant performance information from the Corporate Plan.

What is missing

Nothing identified

52



http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/our-accounts
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/our-accounts

Supporting Principle

Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are acted upon
Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to members is in place which provides
assurance with regard to governance arrangements and recommendations are acted upon

What Assurance Do
We Want

Recommendations have informed positive improvement
Compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010)
Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

What Assurance Do
We Get

All recommendations acted upon.
Compliant and supporting evidence in the review of governance arrangements
Compliant — annual self-assessment and 5 yearly external assessment (completed February 2017)

What is missing

Nothing identified

Supporting Principle

Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing
recommendations.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Recommendations have informed positive improvement

What Assurance Do

Ik Get

LGA Peer Assessment undertaken and action plan developed

¥hat is missing

Nothing identified

SRipporting Principl
Oopp ing Principle
©

Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and that this is
evidenced in the annual governance statement.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Annual Governance Statement

What Assurance Do
We Get

Partnership guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems
of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved.

Informed by Corporate Risk register.

What is missing

Nothing identified

53




Supporting Principle

Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and that the need for
wider public accountability has been recognised and met.

What Assurance Do
We Want

Community Strategy

What Assurance Do
We Get

Partnership guidance Policy and toolkit in place

This is designed to help the Council work with its partners to ensure that all partnerships have good systems
of governance. We define governance as the processes, procedures and policies that deal with important
issues like accountability, probity and audit. It is crucial that all members of partnerships should conform to
codes of practice for the good of all involved.

What is missing

Nothing identified

06 abed

54




Action Plan Arising From The 2016/17 Assurance Process
Report Type: Actions Report
Report Author: Angela Struthers
Generated on: 13 April 2017

Appendix 3

Tamworth

Borough Council

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To

AGS1 1718 Review of E-induction programme Priority |Low D p% 31-Mar-2018 Zoe Wolicki

Description Review of the E-induction programme

All Notes Angela Struthers 13-Apr-2017 The ASTUTE e-learning package has now been deployed which allows the current module to be updated. Training for users will
commence shortly.

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To

A&SZ 1718 Personal Development Review Priority |Low @ p% 31-Mar-2018 Zoe Wolicki

ﬂscription Personal Development Review

D Angela Struthers 13-Apr-2017 The current PDR process is not used fully throughout the council but will form part of the further deployment of the ASTUTE e-learning

Q_I)Notes package (as mentioned in E-Induction).

= The PDR document will include the core principles of corporate governance

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To

AGS3 1718 Tell Us Policy Priority |Medium D p% 31-Mar-2018 Tracey Tudor

Description Review of Tell Us Policy

All Notes Angela Struthers 13-Apr-2017 The Tell Us Policy is currently being reviewed to incorporate a feedback mechanism to ensure that action has been taken

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To

AGS4 1718 Scrutiny Committees Priority |Medium D p% 31-Mar-2018 Jane Hackett

Description Review of the effectiveness of the Scrutiny Committees

All Notes Angela Struthers 13-Apr-2017 On-going review of the effectiveness of the Scrutiny Committees




Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To

AGS5 1718 Communication Strategy Priority |Medium D p% 31-Mar-2018 Anica Goodwin

Description Review of the Communication Strategy

All Notes Angela Struthers 13-Apr-2017 Communication Strategy currently being reviewed

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To

AGS6 1718 Workforce Plan Priority |Medium D p% 31-Mar-2018 Zoe Wolicki

Description Review of Workforce Plan

All Notes Angela Struthers 13-Apr-2017 Workforce Plan to be presented to CMT May 2017

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To

AGS7 1718 Organisational Development Plan Priority |Medium D p% 31-Mar-2018 Zoe Wolicki

Iigscription Review of Organisational Development Plan

(‘g Notes Angela Struthers 13-Apr-2017 Organisational Development Plan to be presented to CMT May 2017. the PDR document will include the core principles of corporate
governance

O

N

Action Status

Cancelled

Overdue; Neglected

Not Started; In Progress; Assigned

Completed

3
[
. |unassigned; Check Progress
>
@




Agenda Iltem 14

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 1 JUNE 2017

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
FRAUD AND CORRUPTION UPDATE REPORT

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None
PURPOSE

To provide Members with an update of Counter Fraud work completed during
the financial year 2016/17.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee:

Considers this report and raises any issue it deems appropriate;
Endorses the Fraud Risk Register Summary (Appendix 1); and

Endorses the Self-Assessment Against Counter Fraud &
Corruption Best Practice (Appendix 2).

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The abolition of the National Fraud Authority in 2014 and the closure of the
Audit Commission in 2015 saw professional counter fraud bodies, institutes
and other concerned stakeholders from across the public and private sector
including the former Counter Fraud Team of the Audit Commission come
together to form ‘The European Institute for Combating Corruption And Fraud
(TEICCAF). TEICCAF have carried on from the Audit Commission in the
Protecting the Public Purse annual publications. CIPFA launched a Counter
Fraud Centre and have recently increased their guidance material including
checklists which they recommend that Authorities should measure against.
The assessment against these guidance documents is detailed in Appendix
2.

In line with good practice, a Fraud Risk Register is maintained and reviewed
on a quarterly basis. The latest Fraud Risk Register Summary is attached as
Appendix 1.

Page 93



Work has progressed on the data matches identified through the National
Fraud Initiative (NFI) in the 2016/17 run which was released in February 2017
with additional updates released periodically. In total, 1510 matches were
identified with 402 of these being recommended for investigation by the
Council. So far, 989 of the matches have been processed and closed and 15
remain in progress. All of the recommended matches have been investigated
and closed. Seven frauds were identified relating to housing benefits claims
totalling £4,338 and the amounts are being recovered. These figures relate to
the 2017/18 financial year.

Following the move of the Housing Benefits Fraud Investigations to the Single
Fraud Investigation Service at the Department of Work and Pensions, the
Authority has a dedicated Corporate Anti-Fraud Investigations Officer who has
been in post since September 2015. This ensures that the Authority is taking
a more proactive approach to fraud rather than a reactive approach previously
adopted. As well as continuing with the work on the NFI matches previously
identified and new matches as they are identified, the Corporate Anti-Fraud
Investigations Officer’s current case load includes ongoing investigations into
potential fraud in these areas — NNDR, Council Tax Reduction, Single
Persons Discount, illegal subletting of council housing and non-residence of
council housing. Investigations concluded have identified 23 cases of fraud
(the housing benefit frauds identified through the NFI are not included in this
figure as they relate to the 2017/18 financial year). Details of the types of
fraud, number investigated, proven and the monetary value is detailed below.

Type of Fraud Case Number of | Number of Value
cases cases £
investigated | proven

Council Tax Reduction 1 1 8400

Council Tax Single Persons Discount 31 14 8342

Council Tax - other 4 0

Housing Benefits 11 6 12801

Council Tenancy Subletting 1 0

Council Tenancy — non residence 1 1 24000*

Council Tenancy - Other 1 0

NNDR - empty 4 1 1181

NNDR — change of use 1 0

Internal 2 0

Right to Buy 1 0

Total 58 23 54,724

“*” The figure of £24,000 is made up of £18,000 which is the amount that the
Audit Commission estimated in their publication “Protecting the Public Purse
2010” . This is derived by estimating the need to house homeless families in
temporary accommodation; annual safety, repair, adaptation and
maintenance costs; social housing administration and housing management
costs; and any long-term borrowing costs incurred to provide social housing.

Page 94




We will use this figure as an estimate of fraud costs until more detailed
guidance is made available. Once detailed guidance is made available,
figures will be adjusted accordingly. The additional £6,000 saving relates to a
compensation payment that could have been made if the tenant was resident.

RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS
None
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

There is a risk that the Authority will not have sound governance processes in
place.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers, Head of Internal Audit Services

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Fraud Risk Register Summary

Appendix 2 Self-Assessment Against Counter Fraud &

Corruption Best Practice

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Fraud & Corruption Risk Register 2016/17 Taﬁworl'h

Report Type: Risks Report Borough Council

Report Author: Angela Struthers
Generated on: 16 May 2017

Risk Title Risk Description Gross Risk - Assessment Current Risk - Assessment Last Review Date

Staffing (internal) (A

Credit Income Misappropriation of income @ 4 significant-unlikely @ 2 significant-very 16-May-2017

unlikely

Assets Theft of fixed assets (A 9 serious-likely @ 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017

o p

MAsets Theft of Council . 12 major - likely (A 8 major - unlikely 16-May-2017

L% information/intellectual property

ASets Inappropriate use of Council assets (A 8 significant - very likely (A 6 significant-likely 16-May-2017

~ for private use

Petty cash/imprest Theft of takings disguised by @ 2 minor-unlikely @ 2 minor-unlikely 16-May-2017

accounts manipulation of accounts

Expenses claims Inflated claims (A 6 significant-likely @ 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017

Corruption Disposal of assets - land and A 6 serious-unlikely @ 3 serious-very unlikely 16-May-2017
property

Corruption Award of planning consents and Q 9 serious-likely @ 3 serious-very unlikely 16-May-2017
licences

Corruption Acceptance of gifts, hospitality, (A 6 significant-likely @ 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017
secondary employment

Car parking Theft of takings (A 9 serious-likely (A 6 serious-unlikely 16-May-2017



Risk Title

Treasury management
Money laundering

ICT fraud

Employee - general

Payment of grants to
the public

Loans & Investments

jabl
Q

D
I@eneration

&Qelopment corruption

Financial statements

New starter

ICT abuse

Benefits fraud - internal

Cash theft

Cash theft

Payroll

Risk Description

Falsifying records to gain access to
loan or investment monies

Using the council to hide improper
transactions

Improper use of council ICT
equipment

Abuse of flexi system
Falsification of car loans

Grants fraudulently claimed

Misappropriation of funds
Fraudulent payment or investment
of funds

Regeneration development
corruption

The financial statements may be
materially misstated due to fraud

Fraudulent job application
Improper use of IT equipment

Fraudulent claim by member of
staff

Theft of takings disguised by
manipulation of accounts

Theft of cash without disguise

Payment to non-existent
employees

Gross Risk

> @& b @

e D @6 0 @

00 O

- Assessment

12 major - likely

8 major - unlikely

12 major - likely

6 significant-likely

12 major - likely

12 major - likely

12 major - likely

6 serious-unlikely

9 serious-likely
9 serious-likely

9 serious-likely

4 significant-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

2 significant-very unlikely

Current Risk

> o b

D <

OO O > O

00 O

- Assessment

6 serious-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

9 serious-likely

4 significant-unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely
4 significant-unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

2 significant-very
unlikely

1 minor - very unlikely

3 serious-very unlikely

Last Review Date

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017
16-May-2017
16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017



Risk Title
Payroll

Payroll

Assets

Sheltered schemes

Procurement & Contract
Management

Selection process

Lack of awareness of
thd procurement
cess

I_caDck of anti-fraud
ture

Contract awarded prior
to specification being
agreed

Manipulation of
preferred bidders list

No formal contract in
place

Prices reworked

Risk Description

Over claiming hours worked

Manipulation of standing data

Theft of current assets

Theft of customer monies

Gross Risk

o> P

Senior staff influencing junior staff Q

involved in a selection process

Lack of awareness of risks and
issues in the procurement process

No anti-fraud culture - no due
diligence/risk registers

Contract awarded prior to
specifications being fully agreed
and developed; meaning the
organisation becomes responsible
for additional development and
training expenses

Manipulation of preferred bidders
list

No formal contract in place

Prices reworked to enable the
successful bidder to move up the

A

Y
A

> &

- Assessment
6 significant-likely

6 serious-unlikely

6 significant-likely

4 significant-unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

6 significant-likely

6 significant-likely

6 significant-likely

4 significant-unlikely

8 significant - very likely

6 significant-likely

Current Risk

OO0 000> 00 00

(CI <

- Assessment

2 minor-unlikely

2 significant-very
unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

2 significant-very

unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

2 significant-very
unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

2 significant-very
unlikely

6 significant-likely

4 significant-unlikely

Last Review Date

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017
16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017



Risk Title

Value of contract
disaggregated

Inappropriate high
value purchase

Inappropriate use of
single tender
acceptance

Ugjng agency staff or

&nsultants
«Q

D
limtial commercial
@@¥sultations

Contract signing
Diversion of funds
Bogus vendor

Sale of confidential
information

Risk Description

proposal list following initial
bidding

Value of contract disaggregated to

circumvent organisation/EU
regulations

Inappropriate high value purchase
for an unauthorised purpose

Inappropriate use of single tender
acceptance

Gross Risk

Inappropriate use of agency staff or @

consultants.

Procurement staff being side-lined
during initial commercial
consultations and subsequently

being presented with a "done deal".

Contracts signed by member of
staff not authorised to do so

Diversion of funds: the risk that a
member of staff diverts funds
through the setup of non-existent
supplier/freelancer

An individual could authorise the
setup of a bogus vendor and raise
and authorise a purchase order

A member of staff could disclose
information on bids to other

- Assessment

12 serious - very likely

6 significant-likely

6 significant-likely

4 significant-unlikely

12 major - likely

12 major - likely

12 major - likely

16 major - very likely

12 major - likely

Current Risk

& 00

> b

- Assessment

6 significant-likely

4 significant-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

1 minor - very unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

8 major - unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

Last Review Date

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017



Risk Title Risk Description Gross Risk - Assessment Current Risk - Assessment Last Review Date

contract bidders

Creditor payments Fraudulent requests for creditor Q 9 serious-likely 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017
payments

Fraudulent use for one Staff use the cheque payment Q 6 serious-unlikely 2 significant-very 16-May-2017

off payment process to send to a bogus vendor unlikely

Declaration of interests Lack of declarations of interests 9 serious-likely 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017

Housing
tenancy/homelessness

Housing allocations Housing allocated for financial
reward
fraudulent allocation of property

9 serious-likely 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017

e & b
O 00 P> OGO O 0 0000

IMggal sub letting Illegal sub-letting of council 4 significant-unlikely 2 minor-unlikely 16-May-2017

g property

Bmelessness False claim of homelessness 6 significant-likely 2 minor-unlikely 16-May-2017

H

@ht to Buy Fraudulent claim of right to buy 6 significant-likely 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017
discount

Council Tax

Single Persons Discount Single persons discount Q 6 significant-likely 6 significant-likely 16-May-2017
fraudulently claimed

Discounts/exemptions Discounts and exemptions falsely @ 3 minor-likely 2 minor-unlikely 16-May-2017
claimed

Refund fraud Claim of refunds to different bank @ 3 minor-likely 2 minor-unlikely 16-May-2017
account.

Suppressed recovery Suppressed recovery action @ 3 minor-likely 2 minor-unlikely 16-May-2017

action



Risk Title
NNDR

Void exemption

Occupation dates
Changes to property

Insurance

Insurance claims

o
QD
%her
@ctions

N

External funding

Housing
Benefits/Council Tax
Reduction Scheme

Benefits fraud -
claimant

Benefits fraud - third
party eg landlord

Risk Description

Void exemption falsely claimed

Occupation dates incorrectly
notified

Changes to property increase the
rateable value

Claiming for non-existent injuries
Claiming at another establishment
for the same injury

over claiming

Fraudulent voting
Fraudulent acts by canvassers

Fraudulently claiming/using
external funding

Claimant fraudulently claims
benefits

fraudulent claim by third party

Gross Risk

o

o

- Assessment

6 significant-likely

6 significant-likely

6 significant-likely

9 serious-likely

12 major - likely

1 minor - very unlikely

12 serious - very likely

4 significant-unlikely

Current Risk

00 O 000

Ol b O PP

- Assessment

4 significant-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

4 significant-unlikely

6 serious-unlikely

1 minor - very unlikely

8 significant - very
likely

4 significant-unlikely

Last Review Date

16-May-2017
16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017



Risk Title
Cyber

Cyber risk

€0T abed

Risk Description Gross Risk

Risk of loss, disruption or damage
to the reputation of the Authority
from some sort of failure of
Information Technology systems

N

- Assessment

6 serious-unlikely

Current Risk

A

N

- Assessment

6 serious-unlikely

Last Review Date

16-May-2017



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Self-Assessment Against Counter Fraud & Corruption Best Practice

Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally Checklist

Standard to measure against

Current position

The local authority has made a proper
assessment of its fraud and corruption risks,
has an action plan to deal with them, and
regularly reports to its senior Board and its
members.

There is a fraud and corruption risk register in
place. This is reviewed on a regular basis by the
Head of Internal Audit Services. There are no
significant high risks highlighted in the risk
register but audit work will be completed to
ensure that risks identified are mitigated.

Fraud and corruption risks will be reported to
the Corporate Management Team and the
Audit & Governance Committee.

The local authority has undertaken an
assessment against the risks in Protecting the
Public Purse: Fighting Fraud Against Local
Government (2014) and has also undertaken
horizon scanning of future potential fraud and
corruption risks.

An assessment has been completed. Potential
future risks of fraud and corruption are noted
through peer groups, membership of the
Midlands Fraud Forum and other professional
bodies. As risks are identified, they are
recorded on the fraud risk register.

There is an annual report to the Audit
Committee, or equivalent detailed assessment,
to compare against FFCL 2016 and this
checklist.

This is completed and reported.

There is a counter fraud and corruption
strategy applying all aspects of the local
authority’s business which has been
communicated throughout the local authority
and acknowledged by those charged with
governance.

The Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy is
approved by the Audit & Governance
Committee. Copies are available on the
intranet. There is also an e-learning solution
which covers counter fraud and corruption.

The local authority has arrangements in place
that are designed to promote and ensure
probity and propriety in the conduct of its
business.

There are registers in place for gifts &
hospitality, declaration of interests. There are
also Codes of Conduct in place for both
members and officers.

The risks of fraud and corruption are specifically
considered in the local authority’s overall risk
management process.

There is a fraud and corruption risk register in
place.

Counter fraud staff are consulted to fraud proof
new policies, strategies and initiatives across
departments and this is reported upon to
committee.

Guidelines have been drafted for the fraud
proof of policies and are available on the
intranet.

Page 105




The local authority has put in place
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud and
corruption and a mechanism for ensuring that
this is effective and is reported to committee.

There are policies and procedures in place
which are made available on the website. The
website also has a fraud referral form to report
internal frauds

The local authority has put in place
arrangements for monitoring compliance with
standards of conduct across the local authority
covering:

e Codes of conduct including behaviour
for counter fraud, anti-bribery and
corruption

e Register of interests

e Register of gifts & hospitality

The Authority has in place:

Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers
Counter Fraud & Corruption Policy Statement,
Strategy & Guidance Notes

Whistleblowing Policy

A Register of Interests

Gifts & Hospitality Register

The local authority undertakes recruitment
vetting of staff prior to employment by risk
assessing posts and undertaking the checks
recommended in FFCL 2016 to prevent
potential dishonest employees from being
appointed.

A recruitment vetting process is in place

Members and staff are aware of the need to
make appropriate disclosures of gifts,
hospitality and business. This is checked by
auditors and reported to committee.

Members and staff are aware of the need to
make appropriate disclosures of gifts &
hospitality. Internal Audit will look at the
system and controls in place as part of the audit
programme of work — so this is not completed
annually.

There is a programme of work to ensure a
strong counter fraud culture across all
departments and delivery agents led by counter
fraud experts.

Counter fraud work including awareness is
completed by internal audit

Successful cases of proven fraud/corruption are
routinely publicised to raise awareness.

Successful cases are published on the website

There is an independent whistleblowing policy
which is monitored for take-up and can show
that suspicions have been acted upon without
internal pressure.

The Whistleblowing Policy is in place and
names various officers within the Authority as
well as prescribed regulators who can be
contacted.

Contractors and third parties sign up to the
whistleblowing policy and there is evidence of
this. There should be no discrimination against
whistle-blowers.

Those working as an employee will sign up to
the whistleblowing policy as part of the
induction process — as the policy is aimed at
employees as per the Enterprise & Regulatory
Reform Act 2013

Page 106




Fraud resources are assessed proportionately
to the risk the local authority faces and are
adequately resourced.

There is a fraud risk register in place which
highlights the potential areas of fraud the
authority may face

There is an annual fraud plan which is agreed
by committee and reflects resources mapped to
risks and arrangements for reporting outcomes.
This plan covers all areas of the local authority’s
business and includes activities undertaken by
contractors and third parties or voluntary
sector activities.

The Fraud Response Plan forms part of the
Counter Fraud & Corruption Statement, and
details the amount of resources dedicated to
fraud areas.

Statistics are kept and reported by the fraud
team which cover all areas of activity and
outcomes.

Statistics are maintained by Internal Audit and
reported under the Transparency Agenda

Fraud officers have unfettered access to
premises and documents for the purposes of
counter fraud investigation.

Internal Audit have such access

There is a programme to publicise fraud and
corruption cases internally and externally which
is positive and endorsed by the council’s
communication team.

These will be published as and when they are
known

All allegations of fraud and corruption are risk
assessed.

Initial assessments are undertaken to see what
the risk is

The fraud and corruption response plan covers
all areas of counter fraud work:

e Prevention

e Detection

e Investigation

e Sanctions

e Redress.

The fraud and corruption response plan covers
the areas identified

The fraud response plan is linked to the audit
plan and is communicated to senior
management and members.

The fraud response plan is linked to the audit
plan which is communicated to the Corporate
Management Team and the Audit &
Governance Committee

Asset recovery and civil recovery is considered
in all cases.

These are considered if appropriate

There is zero tolerance approach to fraud and
corruption which is always reported to
committee.

There is zero tolerance to fraud which is
detailed in the Policy

Page 107




There is a programme of proactive counter
fraud work which covers risks identified in
assessment.

The proactive fraud work is centred around
prevention and detection

The fraud team works jointly with other
enforcement agencies and encourages a
corporate approach and co-location of
enforcement activity.

This is completed as necessary

The local authority shares data across its own
department and between other enforcement
agencies.

Data is shared with other enforcement agencies
in accordance with the Data Protection Act

Prevention measures and projects are
undertaken using data analytics where possible.

This is completed as part of the NFI project

The local authority actively takes a part in the
NFl and promptly takes action arising from it.

Actions are taken to ensure that as many as
possible of the data matches identified by the
NFI are investigated but that all of the high risk
ones are.

There are professionally accredited staff for
counter fraud work. If auditors undertake
counter fraud work they too must be trained in
this area.

Staff are professionally accredited to complete
counter fraud work

The counter fraud team has adequate
knowledge in all areas of the local authority or
is trained in these areas.

Adequate knowledge of all areas of the
authority for all staff

The counter fraud team has access (through
partnership/other local authorities/or funds to
buy in) to specialist staff for:

e Surveillance

e Computer forensics

e Asset recovery

e Financial investigations.

This will be completed following an assessment
of the need

Weaknesses revealed by instances of proven
fraud and corruption are scrutinised carefully
and fed back to departments to fraud proof
systems.

Weaknesses revealed are reported through the
audit recommendation process.

Page 108




Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally — The Local Government Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy

Recommendations for Local Authorities

Current Position

There should be a structured programme on
fraud and corruption awareness for elected
members and managers.

There is an e-learning solution in place which
will be rolled out to members and officers

Local authorities should undertake up-to-date
fraud and corruption awareness programmes
and use the fighting fraud & corruption locally
good practice bank

This will be reviewed and completed during
2017/18

Local authorities should collaborate where it is
appropriate to do so and should place examples
of useful outcomes in the fighting fraud and
corruption locally good practice bank and use
this as a conduit to exchange information with
each other

Examples of useful outcomes will be shared via
the good practice bank

Local authorities should profile their fraud and
corruption risks using the section on risks from
the fighting fraud and corruption locally
companion document as a starting point.

Fraud and corruption risks identified and
recorded

Local authorities should ensure that they have
the right resources in place by having made an
assessment of the risks on fraud and corruption
which should be reported to the Audit
Committee or similar.

Assessment made of the fraud and corruption
risks and will be reported to the Audit &
Governance Committee.

Senior officers within local authorities should
ensure that officers working in the counter
fraud team should be provided with
appropriate accredited training.

One member of the Audit team has an
appropriate accredited qualification in fraud
investigations.

Senior officers within local authorities should
ensure that officers who work in areas where
they might encounter fraud and corruption
have appropriate training.

One member of the Audit team has an
appropriate accredited qualification in fraud
investigations.

Local authorities should continue to work
together on counter fraud hubs, or, should
investigate the benefits of joining hubs, and
should share information where possible to
help each other increase resilience to fraud and
corruption and establish best practice.

Shared learning and practice is completed
where possible.

Page 109




Local authorities should participate in data
technology pilots to improve their efforts to
detect and prevent fraud and corruption.

The Authority Takes part in the National Fraud
Initiative and investigates the matches
identified.

Local authorities should publicise and celebrate
successes. Press stories should be collated on
the fighting fraud and corruption locally good
practice bank and, where possible, publicity
should be endorsed and promoted by DCLG

Any frauds investigated and proven will be
publicised

Local authorities should make an assessment
using the fighting fraud and corruption locally
companion checklist, increasing awareness of
the UK’s anti-corruption plan, make themselves
aware of the NCA advice, ensure that staff are
trained on anti-bribery and corruption, and
report this to their Audit Committee together
with actions to meet the criteria set out in the
plan.

An assessment against the checklist is
completed which is reported to the Audit
Committee. Staff are trained in Anti-bribery
through the induction process.

Local authorities should use the free CIPFA
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud
& Corruption to ensure a common standard.

The Code of Practice is used to ensure that
standards are maintained

Local authorities should make sure that they
have in place robust reporting procedures
including whistleblowing and that these include
assessment through the BSU or Public Concern
at Work and that staff are trained in this area.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place. The
Policy is reviewed and updated on a regular
basis. Details of contacts within the Authority
and prescribed regulators are detailed in the
Policy. The policy is made available to staff on
the intranet. E-learning package on fraud and
corruption is to be rolled out to staff.

Local authorities that do not have their own
housing stock should consider working with
their housing partners, in return for nomination
rights, to prevent and detect social housing
fraud.

Some joint working in place for nomination
rights

Where appropriate local authorities should
consider participating in the Tenancy Fraud
Forum.

CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of
Fraud & Corruption

Local authorities should work with partners on
relevant procurement projects and pilots and
disseminate information as appropriate.

Will be completed as appropriate

Page 110




Local authorities should look at insider fraud
and consider using the Internal Fraud Database
at CIFAS following the London Borough of
Ealing pilot.

The membership will be evaluated — no other
local authorities are members at this time

Local authorities should horizon scan and

explore new areas, e.g. cyber and identity
issues and explore new methods to detect
fraud, e.g. behavioural insights.

Horizon scanning completed on a regular basis
through peer groups etc.

Local authorities should use the FFCL
Companion checklist to ensure that they have
the right counter fraud and anti-corruption
measures in place and should report the results
of this to their Audit Committee and the
External Auditor.

Completed

Page 111




Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption

Acknowledge Responsibility

The governing body should acknowledge its responsibility for ensuring that the risks associated
with fraud and corruption are managed effectively across all parts of the organisation.

The organisation’s leadership team
acknowledge the threats of fraud and
corruption and the harm they can cause to the
organisation, its aims and objectives and to its
service users.

The Policy statement acknowledges the risk of
fraud by the Chief Executive

The organisation’s leadership team
acknowledge the importance of a culture that is
resilient to the threats of fraud and corruption
and aligns to the principles of good governance.

This is acknowledged in the Statement.

The governing body acknowledges its
responsibility for ensuring the management of
its fraud and corruption risks and will be
accountable for the actions it takes through its
governance reports.

This is acknowledged in the Policy

The governing body sets a specific goal of
ensuring and maintaining its resilience to fraud
and corruption and explores opportunities for
financial savings from enhanced fraud
detection and prevention.

Proactive fraud work is completed

Page 112




Identify risks

Fraud identification is essential to understand specific exposures to risk, changing patterns in
fraud and corruption threats and potential consequences to the organisation and its service

users.

Fraud risks are routinely considered as part of
the organisation’s risk management
arrangements.

There is a fraud and corruption risk register in
place

The organisation identifies the risks of
corruption and the importance of behaving
with integrity in its governance framework

This risk of corruption is identified in the fraud
and corruption risk register.

The organisation uses published estimates of
fraud loss, and where appropriate its own
measurement exercises, to aid its evaluation of
fraud risk exposures.

Published fraud loss estimates are taken into
account to aid the evaluation of the fraud risk
exposure.

The organisation evaluates the harm to its aims
and objectives and service users that different
fraud risks can cause.

These are identified in the fraud and corruption
risk register.

Develop a strategy

An organisation needs a counter fraud strategy setting out its approach to managing its risks

and defining responsibilities for action.

The governing body formally adopts a counter
fraud and corruption strategy to address the
identified risks and align with the organisation’s
acknowledged responsibilities and goals.

A counter fraud and corruption strategy is in
place.

The strategy includes the organisation’s use of
joint working or partnership approaches to
managing its risks, where appropriate.

This will be included when appropriate

The strategy includes both proactive and
responsive approaches that are best suited to
the organisation’s fraud and corruption risks.
Proactive and responsive components of a
good practice response to fraud risk
management are set out below.

The strategy sets both proactive and responsive
approaches as detailed below

Page 113




Proactive

e Developing a counter fraud culture to
increase resilience to fraud.

e Preventing fraud through the
implementation of appropriate and
robust internal controls and security
measures.

e Using techniques such as data matching
to validate data.

e Deterring fraud attempts by publicising
the organisation’s anti-fraud and
corruption stance and the actions it
takes against fraudsters.

An anti-fraud culture is developed by the
continual review and update of the counter
fraud and corruption strategy, which is made
available to staff and also through training and
awareness.

Internal controls are tested by internal audit.
Data matching is completed through the NFI
exercise.

The anti-fraud stance is detailed within the
Strategy and is made available to the public

Responsive

e Detecting fraud through data and
intelligence analysis.

o Implementing effective whistleblowing
arrangements.

e Investigating fraud referrals.

e Applying sanctions, including internal
disciplinary, regulatory and criminal.

e Seeking redress, including the recovery
of assets and money where possible.

Data analysis is completed through the use of
the NFI data matching — the risk to the
authority is minimal and does not warrant data
intelligence analysis

All frauds referred are investigated as required.
Sanctions are applied as appropriate and
redress sought where appropriate.

The strategy includes clear identification of
responsibility and accountability for delivery of
the strategy and for providing oversight.

The responsibility for delivery of the strategy
and for providing oversight is completed by the
Head of Internal Audit Services and is detailed
in the strategy.

Provide resources

The organisation should make arrangements for appropriate resources to support the counter

fraud strategy.

An annual assessment of whether the level of
resources invested to counter fraud and
corruption is proportionate for the level of risk.

The resources to be invested in counter fraud
work are detailed in the strategy

The organisation utilises an appropriate mix of
experienced and skilled staff, including access
to counter fraud staff with professional
accreditation.

Internal audit staff complete counter fraud
work. One member of staff is counter fraud
accredited

The organisation grants counter fraud staff
unhindered access to its employees,
information and other resources as required for
investigation purposes.

Internal audit have unhindered access to
employees, information and other resources.

Page 114




The organisation has protocols in place to
facilitate joint working and data and
intelligence sharing to support counter fraud
activity.

Data sharing protocols in place

Take action

The organisation should put in place the policies and procedures to support the counter fraud
and corruption strategy and take action to prevent, detect and investigate fraud.

The organisation has put in place a policy
framework which supports the implementation
of the counter fraud strategy. As a minimum
the framework includes:

e Counter fraud policy

e  Whistleblowing policy

e Anti-money laundering policy

e Anti-bribery policy

e Anti-corruption policy

e Gifts and hospitality policy and register

e Pecuniary interest and conflicts of

interest policies and register

e Codes of conduct and ethics

e Information security policy

e Cyber security policy

The policy framework is in place

Plans and operations are aligned to the strategy
and contribute to the achievement of the
organisation’s overall goal of maintaining
resilience to fraud and corruption.

A counter fraud plan forms part of the strategy.

Making effective use of national or sectorial
initiatives to detect fraud and prevent fraud,
such as data matching or intelligence sharing.

Use of the NFl is completed

Providing for independent assurance over fraud
risk management, strategy and activities.

Independent assurance provided by Internal
Audit

There is a report to the governing body at least
annually on performance against the counter
fraud strategy and the effectiveness of the
strategy from the lead person(s) designated in
the strategy. Conclusions are featured in the
annual governance report.

A report will be presented to the Audit &
Governance Committee

Page 115




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 1 JUNE 2017
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
FINANCIAL GUIDANCE REVIEW 2017

EXEMPT INFORMATION

None

PURPOSE

To seek Member endorsement of the recently reviewed Financial Guidance which forms an
important part of the Council’s regulatory framework, and to provide an opportunity for
Members of the Committee to raise any issues they consider appropriate on the subject.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members endorse the changes to Financial Guidance.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As part of the core functions under the terms of reference, this Committee is empowered to
maintain an overview of the Council’s Financial Guidance.

The last review of Financial Guidance was approved by this Committee in March 2016. This
review has identified the following changes:

6.2.12 All tenders/quick quotes with an estimated value exceeding £25,000 must also
be advertised on the Crown Commercial Services Contracts Finder e-
procurement portal.

8.2 New section for Intermediaries Legislation (IR35) included

10.1 Fees and charges to be reviewed annually in line with the Fees and Charges
Policy.

Other minor changes are tracked within the guidance.

The updated version of Financial Guidance is attached as Appendix A.

Page 117



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

None

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers — Head of Internal Audit Services ex 234

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Financial Guidance

Page 118



Tamworth

Borough Council

FINANCIAL GUIDANCE

Page 119



CONTENTS

SECTION A - Financial Requlation Policy

Purpose
Controls

SECTION B - Financial Regulations

Financial Regulations

Contract Standing Orders

SECTION C - Financial Guidance

1.

N\ L QO L I G Y
ONO PR WN -

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6

41
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5

Financial Management

Introduction

The Full Council

The Executive

The Audit & Governance Committee
Overview & scrutiny Committees
The Statutory Officers

Scheme of Delegation

Accounting Policies

General Guidance

Introduction
Employees Responsibilities
Miscellaneous

Risk Management & Control of Resources

Risk Management
Insurances

Internal Controls
Internal Audit
Treasury Management
Prudential Code

Revenues Budget & Expenditure

Introduction

Incurring Expenditure

Budget Monitoring & Variances
Virement

Income Generation

2

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 120

12

19

22

30



5. Capital Budgets & Projects

5.1 Definition of Capital

5.2 Leasing/Rental Agreements

5.3 Authority to Incur Capital Spend
5.4 Monitoring

5.5 External Funding

5.6 Disposal of Capital Assets

6. Procurement & Contracts

6.1 Introduction

6.2 Summary of Requirements

6.3 Alternative Purchasing Arrangements
6.4 Appraisal of Potential Contractors

6.5 Supplier Register

6.6 Framework Agreements

6.7 Tender Procedures

6.8 Post Tender & Contracts

6.9 Project/Contract Implementation & Payment
6.10  Final Account

6.11  Post Contract

6.12  Partnerships

6.13  Orders for Supply from External Sources
6.14  Receiving Goods and Services

6.15 Advance Payments

6.16  Voluntary & Community Sector Commissioning Framework

6.17  Some Definitions
6.18  Further Advice & Guidance

7. Payment of Accounts
71 Introduction

7.2 Security & Good Practice
7.3 Invoice Processing

7.4 Electronic Payment Mechanisms

8. Payment of Salaries & Allowances

8.1 Salaries

8.2 Allewances-&Expense-Claimsintermediaries Legislation

(IR35)

8.3 Allowances & Expense Claims

8.43 Members Allowances

9. Cash Advances, Cash Floats & Petty Cash
9.1 Purpose

9.2 Processes

3

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 121

34

39

69

73

77



10.

10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8

1.

12,
12.1
12.2
12.3
12.4
13.
14,

15.

Income, Charging & Debts

Fees & Charges

Receiving Payment

Postal Payments

Cashing Up Procedures
Depositing Money

Money Laundering

Invoices, Debtors & Other Sums
Debt Write Off

Assets & Equipment

Responsibilities
Scope

Use

Disposal

Stocks & Stores

Responsibilities

Stocktaking

Obsolete & Unserviceable Stock
Intellectual Property

Security
Data Quality

Equality Impact Assessment

4

Due

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 122

79

85

88

90

91

92



Section A

Financial Regulation
Policy

i March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 123



FINANCIAL REGULATION POLICY
Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.
Purpose

The financial regulation framework within the Council aims to:

a) Promote best value, service delivery and delivery of the Council’s
vision;

b) Provide sound arrangements for all the Council’s financial affairs and
to be able to demonstrate that proper controls are in place;

c) Safeguard Members and officers by setting out procedures which

meet the Council’s expected standards.

Financial regulations are not intended to inhibit creativity but to provide the
parameters within which creativity may be exercised. They are intended to
guide and support managers and their staff. Financial control at a corporate
level is achieved primarily through ftransparency and accountability.
Managers and especially Chief Officers and budget holders occupy key roles.
Managers are given appropriate authority to deploy resources in pursuit of
agreed objectives. Their activities are expected to adhere to specified
standards and they are required to report upon and be accountable for their
actions. Those engaged in support functions (for examples, Accountancy) do
not themselves directly exert control. Their responsibilities are to support
frontline services and to monitor activities. Where necessary they must act as
whistle-blowers (See Whistleblowing Policy).

Controls

The financial regulation framework comprises this policy document, financial
regulations and contract standing orders approved by Council and detailed
guidance issued by the Council’'s Executive Director Corporate Services, to
support these documents. They contain a mixture of:

a) Responsibilities;

b) Instructions;

c) Expected standards of behaviour;
d) Discretionary powers.

Instructions and responsibilities are clearly set out. All employees and
Members are required to comply where they are applicable. The expected
standard of behaviour and discretionary powers are guidelines to aid
employees and Members in their day to day activities. They cannot cover all
potential circumstances. All employees and all Members are therefore
required at all times when engaged on Council activities to act reasonably,
having regard to this framework, and to act within the spirit of the framework.

A review of the policy and guidance is to be completed annually.

6

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 124



Section B

Financial Regulations

i March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 125



FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.

1.

10.

1.

12.

All employees and all Members must at all times when engaged on Council
activities act in the interests of the Council as a whole.

All employees and all Members must comply at all times with these regulations
wherever they apply.

All employees and all Members must act reasonably and within the spirit of the
financial regulation framework.

All relevant financial interests must be declared to the Solicitor of the Council
(Monitoring Officer).

All activities must be in accordance with:

a) Legislation;

b) Approved service plans or corporate plans;

c) Approved service net revenue budgets or capital programmes;
d) Relevant Council policies and adopted codes of practice.

Any material departures (actual or potential) must be reported formally to
Members as soon as practicable.

Where practicable all activities should be in accordance with accepted best
practice.

Best value and value for money must be sought in all activities, including the
procurement of goods and services.

Budgets at an appropriate level of detail must be prepared by the start of each
financial year for all activities and units of the Council.

Material changes to financial policy or the distribution of resources must be
referred to Council for approval.

Service managers have primary responsibility for the control and management of
all resources of all kinds made available to them.

All managers must ensure and regularly check that there is a full set of controls in
every system under their management, including an adequate segregation of
duties and an assessment of risk in all activities and decisions.

All employees must consider the need to seek appropriate views, advice and
guidance before embarking on a course of action and particularly on a new course
of action. This includes seeking advice from managers in other services, for
example consulting the Director Technology & Corporate Programmes on the
procurement of information technology or the Executive Director Corporate

8

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 126



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Services on the arrangement of leases, rentals or agreements involving the
use of assets to or from the authority.

All managers must ensure that all assets and personnel must be adequately
secured or protected and appropriate insurance arranged where necessary.

Adequate records must be maintained of all transactions in all systems (a
complete audit trail) and unrestricted access must be allowed to all assets and
records for:

a) The Chief Executive;

b) The Executive Director Corporate Services;

c) The Head of Internal Audit Services;

d) External Auditors and other statutory inspectors;
e) Officers designated by any of the above.

Employees must supply information to those officers on request.

Managers must routinely monitor all activities under their control and report on any
significant variations from expected standards.

Managers must report at regular intervals on performance on planned activities
and on financial performance against approved budgets.

All employees and all Members must report any suspected:

a) Failure in any system;
b) Failure to comply with financial regulations;
c) Suspected criminal act, including fraud or corruption.

The report should normally be made to the line manager. Full guidance is provide
in the Council's Counter Fraud & Corruption Policy Statement, Strateqy &
Guidance Notes.

Any manager who suspects such an occurrence must take any immediate action
necessary to rectify any failure in a control system and report the position to a
relevant senior manager, who may include the Chief Executive, Executive Director
Corporate Services, Monitoring Officer or Head of Internal Audit Services.

The Executive Director Corporate Services shall, with the agreement of the Chief
Executive and Solicitor to the Council (Monitoring Officer), issue detailed guidance
on procedures to be followed in compliance with these regulations.

All employees must comply with any applicable instructions or responsibilities

specified in the guidance. In other respects all employees must act reasonably,
having regard to the guidance and within the spirit of the guidance.

9

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 127



CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS

Adopted by Tamworth Borough Council on 22 May 2001.

1.

10.

All employees must comply with these standing orders, the relevant regulations
relating to Public Contracts and with financial regulations when procuring goods
and services.

All Directors have primary responsibility for ensuring compliance within their
service areas.

Best value and value for money must be sought in all procurement activities.
Competition must be sought in accordance with issued guidance.

Where the value of the goods and services is likely to be £50,000 (cumulative
amount) or more the following requirements apply:

a) Tenders must be sought from suitably qualified suppliers;
b) The supply must be governed by a formal written contract.

The only exception to these requirements shall be where the Cabinet has given
authority in order to achieve best value.

Reasonable steps must be taken to manage risk throughout the procurement
process and employees must have regard to the guidance that is issued for this
purpose.

All potential suppliers of goods and services must be treated equitably.
In all procurement activities, arrangements must be clear regarding:

a) The goods or services to be supplied and the supply mechanisms;
b) The amount to be paid and the payment mechanisms;
c) The rights and responsibilities of all parties.

Employees must consider the need to seek appropriate views, advice and
guidance before making a decision or embarking on a course of action related to
procurement.

The Executive Director Corporate Services shall, with the agreement of the Chief
Executive and Solicitor to the Council (Monitoring Officer), issue detailed guidance
on procedures to be followed in compliance with these standing orders. Such
guidance shall include procedures for securing competition, for regulating the
manner in which tenders are invited and for managing risk.

Employees must comply with any applicable instructions or responsibilities
specified in the guidance. In other respects employees must act reasonably,
having regard to the guidance and within the spirit of the guidance.

10

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 128



Section C

Financial Guidance

11

i March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 129



1.  FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

1.1 Introduction

1.1.1  Financial management covers all financial accountabilities in relation
to the running of the authority, including the policy framework and
budget.

1.2  The Full Council

1.2.1  Only the Council will exercise the following functions:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

9)
h)

)

Adopting and changing the Constitution;

Approving or adopting the policy framework, the budget and any
application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing
Land Transfer;

Subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to
Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution, making
decisions about any matter in the discharge of an executive
function which is covered by the policy framework or the budget
where the decision maker is minded to make it in a manner which
would be contrary to the policy framework or contrary to/or not
wholly in accordance with the budget;

Appointing the Leader;

Agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for committees,
deciding on their composition and making appointments to them
(except where the appointment to a committee is required to give
effect to the wishes of a political group) and ensuring that, with
the exception of the Mayor, Members are appointed to at least
two committees (one of which shall not include the Budget
Review Joint Scrutiny Committee; except for executive Members
who are appointed to one committee;

Appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the
appointment is an executive function or has been delegated by
the Council;

Adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2.25;

Changing the name of the areas, conferring the title of honorary
alderman, Freeman or freedom of the borough;

Confirming the appointment or dismissal of the Head of Paid
Service, Monitoring Officer and S151 Officer;

Making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and

12

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 130



promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal
Bills;

k)  Approving the Council’s Code of Conduct;

I)  Approving the Senior Officer Pay Scheme;

m) All local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution
which the Council decides should be undertaken by itself rather
than the executive; and

n) All other matters which, by law, must be reserved to Council.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

1.3  The Executive

1.3.1  The Executive will carry out all of the local authority’s functions which
are not the responsibility of any other part of the local authority,
whether by law or under the Constitution.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

1.4  The Audit & Governance Committee

1.4.1  The Audit & Governance Committee will have the following roles and
functions:

a) Audit Activity

Receive, but not direct, internal audit’s strategy and audit
plan;

Consider reports dealing with the management and
performance of Internal Audit;

Consider the Head of Internal Audit's annual report and
opinion, and the level of assurance Internal Audit can give
over the Council’s corporate governance arrangements;
Consider periodic reports from Internal Audit on the main
issues arising from their work and “high priority”
recommendations not implemented within a reasonable
timescale, and seek assurance that action has been taken
where necessary;

Consider the final external audit Annual Audit and Inspection
letter and any other relevant reports to “those charged with
governance”.

b) Regulatory Framework

Maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution, including
Contract Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Codes
of Conduct;

13

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 131



d)

f)

e Consider the internal control environment and the level of
assurance that may be given as to its effectiveness, to include
the review of the Annual Governance Statement and the
recommendation to the Council of its adoption;

o Satisfy itself that the authority’s assurance statements,
including the Annual Governance Statement, properly reflect
the risk environment and any actions required to improve it;

¢ Monitor the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management
arrangements, including the actions taken to manage risks
and to receive regular reports on risk management;

e Monitor the effective development and operation of the
corporate governance framework in the Council and to
recommend to the Cabinet or the Council, as appropriate, the
actions necessary to ensure compliance with best practice;

e Monitor the effectiveness of the Council’'s policies and
arrangements for anti-fraud and corruption, whistle-blowing,
complaints handling, RIPA and Ombudsman investigations.

Accounts

e Approve the annual statement of accounts, external auditor’s
opinion and reports to Members and monitor management
action in response to the issues raised by external audit.

Reports to Council

o Reports in the form of minutes detailing action taken by the
Committee and recommendations will be submitted to Council
on an annual basis.

Delegated Powers

e The Committee is empowered to deal with the functions
detailed above.

Standards of Conduct

This Committee shall exercise all the functions of the Council
relating to Codes of Conduct as provided by the Localism Act
2011 except for those functions which under Chapter 7 of the
Localism Act 2011 may only be exercised by the full Council.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

1.5 Overview & Scrutiny Committees

1.5.1  The Overview & Scrutiny Committees general roles are to:

| Revised March 20167 —

Review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in
connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions
including consideration at each meeting of the Forward Plan;

Prepare an annual scrutiny work plan covering two successive

14
Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 132



periods of six months and to make reports and/or
recommendations bi-annually to the full Council and/or the
executive and/or any policy, joint or area committee in connection
with the discharge of any functions;

Liaise regularly with each other to ensure that there is no
duplication between them in respect of scrutiny and review activity;
Consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants;

Exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but
not yet implemented by the executive and/or any policy or area
committees; and

Appoint Task and Finish Groups as and when required with no
more than two operating at any one time. Normally the Chair and
Vice-Chair of the Committee would Chair these groups and there
would be an expectation that these groups would co-opt external
expertise.

In addition to their general role, each Overview and Scrutiny
Committee has a primary scope and specific functions as detailed in
the Constitution.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

1.6  The Statutory Officers

1.6.1

1.6.2

Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive)

The Head of Paid Service will:

Determine and publicise a description of the overall departmental
structure of the Council showing the management structure and
deployment of officers as set out in part 7 of the Constitution;
Report to full Council on the manner in which the discharge of the
Council’'s functions is co-ordinated, the number and grade of
officers required for the discharge of functions and the organisation
of officers.

Monitoring Officer (Solicitor to the Council)

The Monitoring Officer will:

Maintain an up-to-date version of the Constitution and will ensure
that it is widely available for consultation by Members, staff and the
public;

After consultation with the Head of Paid Service and Chief Finance
Officers, the Monitoring Officer will report to the full Council or the
executive in relation to an executive function if s/he considers that
any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness
or if any decision or omission has given rise to maladministration.
Such a report will have the effect of stopping the proposal or
decision being implemented until the report has been considered in
accordance with the Local Government & Housing Act 1989;

15

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 133



¢ Contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of
conduct through provision of support to the relevant committee;

e Conduct investigations or take other action into matters referred by
the Audit & Governance Committee in accordance with the
complaints procedure;

e Ensure that executive decisions, together with the reasons for
those decisions and relevant officer reports and background
papers are made publicly available as soon as possible and will
advise upon issues relating to confidential and exempt information;

e Advise whether decisions of the executive are in accordance with
the budget and policy framework;

e Provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take
decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and
budget and policy framework issues to all councillors.

1.6.3  Chief Finance Officer (Executive Director Corporate Services)

The Chief Finance Officer has statutory duties in relation to the
financial administration and stewardship of the authority. This
statutory responsibility cannot be overridden. The statutory duties
arise from:

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972;

The Local Government Finance Act 1988;

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989;

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (Amendment) England 2009;
Section 73 of the Local Government Act 1985 (c.51);

The Local Government Act 2003.

The Chief Finance Officer will:

¢ After consulting with the Head of Paid Service and the Monitoring
Officer, report to the full Council or to the executive in relation to an
executive function — and the Council's external auditor if s/he
considers that any proposal, decision or course of action will
involve incurring unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to
cause a loss or deficiency or if the Council is about to enter an item
of account unlawfully;

e Have responsibility for the administration of the financial affairs of
the Council;

e Contribute to the corporate management of the Council, in
particular through the provision of professional financial advice;

e Provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take
decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and
budget and policy framework issues to all councillors and will
support and advise councillors and officers in their respective roles;

¢ Provide financial information to the media, members of the public
and the community.

Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the

16

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 134



1.7

1.8

Chief Finance Officer to report to the full Council, executive and
external auditor if the authority or one of its officers:

¢ Has made, oris about to make, a decision which involves incurring
unlawful expenditure;

e Has taken, or is about to take, an unlawful action which has
resulted or would result in a loss or deficiency to the authority;

e |s about to make an unlawful entry in the authority’s accounts.

Section 114 of the 1988 Act also requires:

e The Chief Finance Officer to nominate a properly qualified member
of staff to deputise should they be unable to perform the duties
under section 114 personally;

e The authority to provide the Chief Finance Officer with sufficient
staff, accommodation and other resources — including legal advice
where this is necessary — to carry out the duties under section 114.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

Scheme of Delegation

1.7.1

1.7.2

The Local Government Act 1972 as amended provides for a Scheme
of Delegation where Council delegates to certain officers powers to
undertake functions and duties on behalf of the authority. This
delegation is completed annually.

Chief Officers must ensure that they comply with the approved
Scheme of Delegation.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

Accounting Policies

1.8.1

1.8.2

The Executive Director Corporate Services is responsible for the
preparation of the authority’s statement of accounts, including Whole
of Government Accounts, in accordance with proper practices as set
out in the format required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom (CIPFA/LASAAC) based on
International Financial Reporting Standards, for each financial year
ending 31 March.

Key Controls
The key controls for accounting policies are:

a) Systems of internal control are in place that ensure that financial
transactions are lawful;

b) Suitable accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently;

c) Proper accounting records are maintained;

d) Financial statements are prepared which present fairly the

17

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 135



financial position of the authority and its expenditure and income.

1.8.3  Responsibilities of the Executive Director Corporate Services

To select suitable accounting policies and to ensure that they are
applied consistently. The accounting policies are set out in the
statement of accounts, which is prepared at 31 March each year, and
covers such items as:

a)
b)

Separate accounts for capital and revenue transactions;
The basis on which debtors and creditors at year end are
included in the accounts;

Details on substantial provisions and reserves;

Fixed assets;

Depreciation;

Capital charges;

Work in progress;

Stocks and stores;

Deferred charges;

Accounting for value added tax;

Government grants;

Leasing/pensions.

1.8.4 Responsibilities of Chief Officers

To adhere to the accounting policies and guidelines approved by the
Executive Director Corporate Services.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

18

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 136



2.

GENERAL GUIDANCE

2.1

2.2

Introduction

211

215

217

This guidance aims to help employees in their day to day work.
Employees are required to comply at all times with the Council’s
financial regulations, and this guidance will help to ensure they do.

In this guidance there are three levels of requirements:

i)  In some cases the guidance states that employees MUST comply
with the requirement and therefore 100% compliance is expected;

i) In other cases employees SHOULD comply, but there will be
times when compliance would not be possible or desirable; and

iii) In the remaining cases it is stated that employees MAY wish to
follow the guidance if it would be helpful, but it is purely at their
discretion.

Employees must therefore take careful note whether the wording used
in each section is MUST, SHOULD or MAY.

If the guidance states a requirement MUST be complied with,
employees should consult the Executive Director Corporate
Services if there is particular difficulty. The Executive Director
Corporate Services has authority to waive compliance and limits
where necessary. In the absence of the Executive Director
authority is passed to the Director of Finance and then the Chief
Executive.

Employees needing help to interpret or apply the guidance should
contact their Chief Officers, Head of Internal Audit Services, or
Executive Director Corporate Services.

The review and updating of Financial Regulations, Standing Orders
and Financial Guidance will be completed by the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

Throughout the guidance, reference is made to Chief Officers. A Chief
Officer includes the Chief Executive, Executive Director Corporate
Services, the Solicitor to the Council and Directors.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Services

Employee Responsibilities

221

Each Chief Officer must ensure that all his/her employees and any
other agents acting on behalf of the Council are aware of the sections
of this guidance that relate to their areas of work.

19

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 137



222

Chief Officers may delegate to other employees duties shown in this
guidance, but the Chief Officer retains primary responsibility. Where
the guidance places a duty on an employee, it is the Chief Officer's
responsibility to ensure the existence of adequate procedures,
documentation and supervision.

2.3 Miscellaneous

2.31

232

233

234

235

236

237

Chief Officers must ensure that lists of officers authorised to certify or
approve orders, payments and records are updated at least on an
annual basis. They must advise the Executive Director Corporate
Services of changes such as authorised signatories leaving and
propose new names, specimen signatures and monetary limits (where
needed);

Any employees required to carry out checks such as checks of
documents or calculations must sign/initial and date the relevant
document (or use an electronic signature on electronic documents).
The employee who prepares the document should also sign or initial,
and date it.

Chief Officers must ensure that all financial records are completed
promptly and accurately. Any amendment to a financial record or a
document required in a payment process, including expense claims,
timesheets and official returns must be made in ink. The original entry
should be struck through with a single bold line and the correct entry
written alongside. It must then be initialled and dated. Correction fluid
or tape must never be used.

Chief Officers must ensure that all financial records are kept securely,
and retained for the periods specified in the appendix attached. At the
end of the period the records must be securely disposed of, e.g., by
shredding. Arrangements for the disposal of any obsolete or surplus
records, including unused items, should be agreed with the Executive
Director Corporate Services.

All bank accounts relating to the Authority’s transactions will be
controlled and reconciled by the Executive Director Corporate
Services. No other bank accounts are to be used.

If an employee is requested to give any indemnities, guarantees or
warranties on behalf of the Council they must consult the Solicitor to
the Council before taking any action.

Where there is a suspected fraud or other significant criminal act, the
Chief Officer must consult the Head of Internal Audit Services or
Executive Director Corporate Services on whether/when the Police
should be informed. Employees should follow the Council’'s advice on
fraud and corruption (Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement,
Strategy & Guidance Notes).

20

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 138



2.3.8  All employees must comply with the Information Security Policy.

2.3.9 All employees must comply with the Officer's Code of Conduct subject
to any conflict with professional codes, which in such circumstances
the professional obligations subsist over the Officer's Code of
Conduct.

2310 In order to comply with the International Financial Reporting
Standards, managers are required to consult with the Executive
Director Corporate Services prior to entering into an agreement on any
rentals, leases or use of assets to or from the authority, especially
where financial/operating leases are entered into as more
advantageous financing could be sought.

CONTACT: Director of Finance, Head of Internal Audit Services

21

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 139



3.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF RESOURCES
3.1 Risk Management

3.1.1 Risk Management is the planned and systematic approach to the
identification, evaluation and control of risk. The Cabinet shall approve
a Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy for the Council and
shall promote a culture of risk management awareness throughout the
Council.

3.1.2 Key decisions taken must include an assessment of the risk.

3.1.3 The Head of Internal Audit Services is the focal point for developing and
implementing the Risk Management Strategy throughout the authority.
Their role is to advise others. All staff have a duty to co-operate so that
risk is effectively managed in their areas, ensuring that all issues that
they cannot resolve directly are brought to the attention of their
managers.

3.1.4 The Corporate Management Team will be the forum where risk is
performance managed.

3.1.5 Chief Officers are responsible for risk management and must have
regard to advice from the Head of Internal Audit Services and other
specialist employees (e.g. crime prevention, fire prevention, health &
safety, cash handling and internal controls of various types).

3.1.6 Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that regular and appropriate
reviews of risk within their departments are completed and entered onto
the Corporate Risk Register, held within the Covalent software system.
Additional guidance can be sought from the Head of Internal Audit
Services on risk management issues.

3.1.7 The Audit & Governance Committee will review the management of risk
within the Authority.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services
3.2 Insurances

3.2.1 The Executive Director Corporate Services is responsible for the
arrangement of appropriate insurance cover through external insurance
and internal funding. They shall, after such consultation as they think
appropriate with other employees, settle all claims within individual
policy excesses, and pass on all claims over individual policy excesses
to the relevant insurer.

3.2.2 Chief Officers shall:

a) Give prompt notification to the Executive Director Corporate

22

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 140



b)

Services of all new risks, properties, vehicles, activities, functions,
or any other assets which require to be insured and of any
alteration affecting existing insurances (for example — safe limits
being exceeded, loss of safe keys, temporary disablement of
alarms).

Promptly notify the Executive Director Corporate Services in writing
of any loss, liability or damage or any event likely to lead to a claim
against the Council together with any information or explanation
required by them or the Council’s insurer’s, and inform the police
where necessary;

Ensure that all appropriate employees of the Council shall be
included in a suitable fidelity guarantee insurance;

Consult the Executive Director Corporate Services in respect of
any indemnity which the Council is requested to give;

Ensure that employees, or anyone covered by the Council’s
insurances, do not admit liability or make any offer to pay
compensation that may prejudice the assessment of liability in
respect of any insurance claim.

3.2.3 ltis the responsibility of the Executive Director Corporate Services to:

a)

b)

c)

Maintain a register of all insurance arranged by the Council and the
property and risk covered by them;

At least annually, furnish Chief Officers with details of all
insurances in force affecting their departments. Each Chief Officer
shall review all such insurances, and any risks not insured against,
or inadequately insured against, shall be notified immediately to the
Executive Director Corporate Services;

Ensure the adequacy of all insurances entered into by contractors
of the Council. An employee shall not authorise work to commence
by a Contractor until the Executive Director Corporate Services has
advised such an employee that the appropriate insurances have
been effected to their satisfaction.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

3.3 Internal Controls

3.3.1 The Council accepts that controls and control systems must be in place
to ensure that it's financial and other activities are carried out in a
secure environment, in a manner that complies with the law and that
fulfils its stewardship obligations. To achieve this the following key
controls and control objectives and systems shall be in place:

a)

Key controls shall be reviewed on a regular basis and the Council

23

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 141



shall make a formal statement annually to the effect that it is
satisfied that the systems of internal control are operating
effectively which will feed into the Annual Governance Statement.
Chief Officers are required to produce an annual statement in
respect of the level of assurance on the adequacy of internal
controls within their service areas in accordance with the Accounts
& Audit Regulations 2011;

b) Managerial control systems, including defining policies, setting
objectives and plans, monitoring financial and other performance
and taking appropriate anticipatory and remedial action. The key
objective of these systems is to promote ownership of the control
environment by defining roles and responsibilities;

c) Financial and operational control systems and procedures, which
include physical safeguards for assets, segregation of duties,
authorisation and approval procedures and information systems;

d) An effective internal audit function that is properly resourced. It
should operate in accordance with the principles contained in the
Auditing Practices Board’s auditing guideline “Guidance for Internal
Auditors”, “Public Sector Internal Audit Standards” and with any
other statutory obligations and regulations and professional
standards.

3.3.2 Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that they manage their
processes to ensure that established controls are being adhered to and
to evaluate their effectiveness, in order that they can be confident of the
proper use of resources, achievement of objectives and management of
risks.

3.3.3 They should also review existing controls in the light of changes
affecting the authority and establishing and implementing new ones.
Chief Officers are also responsible for removing controls that are
unnecessary or not cost or risk effective — for example, because of
duplication.

3.3.4 Chief Officers must ensure that their staff have a clear understanding of
the consequences of lack of control.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services
3.4 Internal Audit

3.4.1 The requirement for an internal audit function for local authorities is
implied by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which
requires that authorities “make arrangements for the proper
administration of their financial affairs”. The Accounts & Audit
Regulations (Amendment) (England) 2011, regulation 6, more
specifically requires that “a relevant body must undertake an adequate
and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its

24

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 142



system of internal control in accordance with the proper practices in
relation to internal control”.

3.4.2 Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s
operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.

3.4.3 Internal Audit is independent in its planning and operation. The Head of
Internal Audit Services shall have direct access to the Head of Paid
Service, all levels of management and elected members.

3.4.4 Internal Audit will comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS).

3.4.5 Internal Auditors have the authority to:
a) Enter at all reasonable times any Council establishment;

b) Have access to all records, documents, information and
correspondence relating to any financial and other transaction as
considered necessary;

c) Evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls
designed to secure assets and data to assist management in
preventing and deterring fraud;

d) Request explanations as considered necessary to satisfy
themselves as to the correctness of any matter under examination;

e) Require any employee of the Council to produce cash, materials or
any other Council property in their possession or under their
control;

f)  Access records belonging to third parties, such as contractors or
partners, when required and appropriate;

g) Direct access the Chief Executive and Members.

3.4.6 The Head of Internal Audit Services will prepare the strategic and
operational audit plans, which will take account of the relative risks of
the audit areas and present this to the Audit & Governance Committee
for approval.

3.4.7 Chief Officers have the responsibility:
a) Of reporting any circumstances which may suggest the possibility
or irregularity affecting cash, stocks or other property of the Council

and any fraud or corrupt activities to the Executive Director
Corporate Services. Further guidance can be found in the Counter

25

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 143



Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement, Strategy & Guidance
Notes;

b) For ensuring that internal auditors are given access at all
reasonable times to premises, personnel, documents and assets
that the auditors consider necessary for the purpose of their work;

c) For ensuring that auditors are provided with any information and
explanations that they seek in the course of their work;

d) To consider and respond promptly to recommendations in audit
reports; and

e) For ensuring that any agreed actions arising from audit
recommendations are carried out in a timely and efficient fashion.

3.4.8 The Head of Internal Audit Services will develop and maintain a Quality
Assurance & Improvement Programme (QAIP) that covers all aspects of
the internal audit activity and is designed to evaluate conformance with
the PSIAS definition of Internal Audit and Code of Ethics. The QAIP
must be an internal on-going assessment report to the Audit &
Governance Committee, with an external assessment to be completed
in accordance with the frequency as determined by the Audit &
Governance Committee (minimum at least every 5 years).

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services
3.5 Treasury Management

3.5.1 The Council will conduct its Treasury Management Activities in
accordance with the provisions laid down in statute and specifically as
contained within the Local Government Act 2003.

CIPFA recommends that all public service organisations adopt, as part
of their standing orders, financial regulations, or other formal policy
documents appropriate to their circumstances, the following four
clauses:

1. This organisation will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for
effective treasury management:

e A treasury management policy statement, stating the policies,
objectives and approach to risk management of its treasury
management activities;

e Suitable treasury management practices (TMPs), setting out the
manner in which the organisation will seek to achieve those
policies and objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and
control those activities;

e The content of the policy statement and TMPs will follow the
recommendations contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code,
subject only to amendment where necessary to reflect the
particular circumstances of this organisation. Such

26

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 144



amendments will not result in the organisation materially
deviating from the Code’s key principles.

2. This organisation (i.e. full Council) will receive reports on its
treasury management policies, practices and activities, including,
as a minimum, an annual strategy and plan in advance of the year,
a mid-year review and an annual report afters its close, in the form
prescribed in its TMPs.

3. This organisation delegates responsibility for the implementation
and regular monitoring of its treasury management and practices to
full Council and for the execution and administration of treasury
management decisions to the Executive Director Corporate
Services, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s policy
statement and TMPs and, if they are a CIPFA member, CIPFA’s
Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management.

4. This organisation nominates Audit & Governance Committee to be
responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury
management strategy and policies.

3.5.2 The Executive Director Corporate Services may report to Council at any
time, as they consider necessary, upon matters relating to treasury
management activities.

3.5.3 The Executive Director Corporate Services shall ensure that all treasury
management transactions are recorded and that there is an effective
division of duties between operations.

3.5.4 All securities which are the property of or in the name of the Council or
its nominees shall be held in the custody of the Solicitor to the Council,
except in the case of externally managed funds which shall be held by
an independent custodian approved by the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

3.5.5 Loans must not be made to third parties and interests must not be
acquired in companies, joint ventures or other enterprises without the
approval of the Cabinet, following consultation with the Executive
Director Corporate Services.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
3.6 Prudential Code
3.6.1 Interlinked with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management
is the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities which
plays a key role in capital finance to support Local Authorities in taking

their decisions.

3.6.2 The Council is required by regulation to have regard to the said code
when carrying out its duties under part 1 of the Local Government Act

27

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 145



2003.

3.6.3 The Prudential Code sets out a clear governance procedure for the
setting and revising of prudential indicators. This is done by the full
Council.

3.6.4 The Executive Director Corporate Services will be responsible for
ensuring that all matters required to be taken into account are reported
to the full Council for consideration, and for establishing procedures to
monitor performance.

3.6.5 In setting or revising their prudential indicators, the Council is required
to have regard to the following matters:

>  Affordability, e.g., implications for Council Tax/housing rents,
including consideration of the impact for all resources (capital and
ongoing revenue costs);

» Prudence and sustainability, e.g., implications for external
borrowing and whole life costing;

» Value for money/potential ‘spend to save’ schemes, option
appraisal;

»  Stewardship of assets, e.g., asset management planning;
>  Service objectives, e.g., strategic planning;

» Risk and uncertainty needs to be considered;

>  Practicality, e.g., achievability of the forward plan.

3.6.6 The Executive Director Corporate Services is required to establish
procedures to monitor both performance against all forward looking
prudential indicators and the requirement that Council has adopted the
CIPFA ‘Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
and Cross-Sectional Guidance Notes’.  The Executive Director
Corporate Services also needs to establish a measurement and
reporting process that highlights significant deviations from
expectations.

3.6.7 When considering capital spending Chief Officers must have regard to
the capital process guidance, which includes the requirement to
complete a capital appraisal. This appraisal ensures that consideration
is given to:

» Full capital cost, including regard to external funding
considerations;

» The revenue implications associated with the project — including
costs and any additional income generation;

28

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 146



> Any implications with regard to the prudential code/use of
prudential borrowing (including payback periods etc);

»  Staffing implications;
» Alternatives which could be considered e.g., leasing;
»  Consultation with other officers/organisations;

» Project management and planning in order to ensure delivery in
line with approved timescales;

»  Evaluation of the project outcomes;

» An assessment of the risks associated with the project — a full risk
assessment is required;

»  The contribution the project makes towards the achievement of the
Council's corporate priorities, corporate capital strategy objectives
and Government priorities.

3.6.8 In order to ensure that over the medium term, net borrowing will only be
for capital purposes, the Council should ensure that net external
borrowing does not, except in the short-term, exceed the total of the
capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates
of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next
two financial years.

3.6.9 The Council shall set and monitor against the specified prudential
indicators for capital expenditure, external debt and treasury
management in accordance with the due processes to be followed, the
matters required to be taken into account, affordability, prudence and in
accordance with the definitions specified.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

29

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 147



4.

REVENUE BUDGETS AND EXPENDITURE
4.1 Introduction
The key controls for budgets and medium-term planning are:

a) Specific budget approval for all expenditure;

b) Budget managers/Heads of Service to be consulted in the preparation of
the budgets for which they will be held responsible and accept
accountability within delegations set by the executive for their budgets
and the level of service to be delivered;

c) A monitoring process is in place to review regularly the effectiveness and
operation of budget preparation and to ensure that any corrective action is
taken.

4.2 Incurring Expenditure
4.2.1 Chief Officers and Heads of Service are authorised to incur expenditure:
a) In accordance with approved Council and service policies; and
b) Inline with the service net revenue budget.

Chief Officers and Heads of Service are authorised to make budget
changes.

4.3 Budget Monitoring and Variances

4.3.1 The service net revenue budget is the key point for budget monitoring
and reporting. The detail contained within the budget book is mainly to
assist budget holders manage their budgets. Strict compliance with the
detailed budget is not necessarily expected. The main requirement is
that Chief Officers and Heads of Service must seek approval for
any change in approved service policy, standards or delivery, or
other material departure from the service plan.

4.3.2 Chief Officers and Heads of Service must monitor their budgets
regularly throughout the year. The Director of Finance and Accountants
will provide suitable regular reports giving details of actual expenditure
and income compared to the budget. They will notify the Chief
Officer/Head of Service of any significant variance which appears to
require further attention.

4.3.3 The Chief Officer or Head of Service is responsible for dealing with
actual or likely variances from budget and must take appropriate action.
For example, they may decide to:

a) Freeze spending on a discretionary item such as furniture and

equipment to deal with a net overspend; or
b) Meet an overspend under one expenditure heading from one or

30

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 148



more actual or planned underspends elsewhere (see below); or

c) Meet an overspend from increased income (within limits set below);
or

d) Do nothing in the case of a windfall increase in income.

In the case of b) & c¢) the manager should consider whether to adjust
the budget through a virement (see below).

4.34 There is no limit for budget transfers within individual expenditure
headings (cost centres) if there is no change in service policy, no
detriment to service standards or delivery and no material departure
from the service plan.

4.3.5 Where a significant variance is expected (even after taking appropriate
action) the Chief Officer or Head of Service must report the
circumstances formally to Members as soon as practicable. The report
should indicate the options open to Members and their implications. For
example in the case of an overspend it might suggest:

a) Reducing activity levels, with an impact on service standards, to
reduce expenditure; or

b) Increasing activity on income-generating services or increasing
prices to increase income; or

c) Providing additional resources from an alternative source, e.g.
balances.

4.3.6 The report should take into account the likely position in future years as
well as the current year.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

4.4 Virement

441 A virement is defined as “the planned transfer of a budget approved for
one purpose for use on a different purpose to that originally intended or
approved”. A virement does not create additional budget; it changes
the purpose for which the budget will be used compared to that
originally intended.

4.4.2 A Chief Officer or Head of Service may authorise the transfer of up to
£50,000 of budget (this is a cumulative amount ie., in total for each cost
centre for the year and not per transaction) to or from any individual
expenditure heading (cost centre) within their service. The Director can
approve a virement (up to £50,000) across budgets within service
activities within their Directorate and between Directorates with the
approval of the Executive Director Corporate Services. The Chief
Officer or Head of Service must notify the Executive Director Corporate
Services in writing of all virements. No further approval is needed if

31

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 149



there is no change in service policy, no detriment to service
standards or delivery, and no material departure from the service
plan.

443 The Executive Director Corporate Services also has authority to

approve virements in excess of the above £50,000 limit — up to a total

| virement of £100,000 (this is a cumulate amount ie.; in total for each
cost centre for the year and not per transaction).

444 Virements can only be applied to direct expenditure and not to
| support service costs, capital charges and indirect income (ie.;
recharges).

4.4.5 Virements which fall outside of the above criteria will require Cabinet
approval.

4.4.6 Specific Contingency Budget

Where a budget is identified as contingency and is intended for
allocation during the year, its allocation will not be treated as a virement,
provided that:

a) The amount is used in accordance with the purposes for which it
has been established;

b) The Cabinet has approved the basis and the terms, including
financial limits, on which it will be allocated. Individual allocations
in excess of the financial limits must be authorised by Cabinet;

c) The release of funding for specific identified contingency items is
delegated to the Corporate Management Team in consultation with
the Leader of the Council (Scheme of Delegation log);

d) The release of the contingency is approved by the S.151 Officer
(Executive Director Corporate Services).

447 Capital Contingency Budget (Block Allocation)

a) Where amounts are required for transfer from Specific
Contingency/General Contingency then Cabinet approval must be
obtained, including approval of a capital appraisal form detailing
the financial and organisational impact of the scheme;

b) Please note that the impact of drawing from this contingency
budget has to be highlighted to Members in order for them to make
an informed decision;

c) These reports will also require S.151 Officer (Executive Director
Corporate Services) sign off (due to their impact on the 5-year
budget/ balances/forecast).

CONTACT: Director of Finance

4.5 Income Generation

32

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 150



451 Income may be received above the budget level in a number of
circumstances. The potential uses for the extra income (within the
limits set below) depend on the situation:

a) Pure windfall income, which is received without any additional
service activity or conditions is not available for use by the Chief
Officer or Head of Service and they should not normally authorise
any additional expenditure from that windfall. The main exception
would be to meet an unavoidable overspend. In other cases the
excess income would return to Council balances;

b) Where an increase in demand results in increased service
workload, additional income may be used to offset the impact of
the extra workload. For example the manager may appoint
temporary employees or purchase additional or improved
equipment to improve efficiency or working conditions;

c) Where the Chief Officer or Head of Service expects an increase in
income to result from increased activity, the Chief Officer or Head
of Service may approve additional expenditure where it will
generate enough income to cover the costs;

d) Where ‘ring fenced’ grant income is received which requires
specific actions/spending, the Chief Officer or Head of Service may
approve additional expenditure, where there is no net additional
cost to the Council.

4.5.2 Chief Officers/ Heads of Service have authority to approve budget
adjustments for excess income up to a limit of £50,000 per occasion.
The excess income and additional expenditure must be reported
explicitly within the monthly budget monitoring variance analysis;

453 The Executive Director Corporate Services also has authority to
approve budget adjustments in excess of the above £50,000 limit — up
to a total budget adjustment of £100,000 per occasion;

4.54 Any budget adjustments above this amount will require Chief Officers
and Heads of Service to ask Members for formal budget adjustment to
reflect the revised position.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

33

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 151



5.

CAPITAL BUDGETS AND PROJECTS
5.1 Definition of Capital

5.1.1 Capital projects include the purchase or construction of assets such as
buildings, vehicles and computer equipment and major
repairs/refurbishment, which extend the life of an asset or increase its
value. In each case the Council must get the benefit from the new or
refurbished asset over more than one year. The total cost of the project
must also exceed £10,000. This figure includes amounts spent on
design and supervision and other fees for professional services
(whether provided by Council employees or external contractors).
Spending of up to £10,000 on a single project should be treated simply
as revenue (except where it forms part of a minor works programme
which exceeds £10,000).

5.1.2 The Capital Process Guidance is included within the Corporate Capital
Strategy and can be found on the intranet.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
5.2 Leasing/Rental Agreements

5.2.1 Chief Officers and Heads of Service must consult the Executive Director
Corporate Services before entering into any leasing or rental agreement
to or from the Authority in order to comply with the International
Financial Reporting Standards.

5.2.2 All lease/hire of equipment/rental agreements, for the use of assets that
the Authority has not bought, must be signed by the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

5.2.3 Obtaining an asset through a finance lease is regarded as capital
expenditure and as such it must be included in the capital programme.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

5.3 Authority to Incur Capital Spend

5.3.1 The law requires Councils to treat capital spending differently from
revenue so different authorisation procedures are used. Chief Officers
and Heads of Service are authorised to spend money on a capital

| project only if the project ins included in the capital programme, or for
minor projects, they have sufficient revenue funds. In either case
special rules apply.

5.3.2 The Executive Director Corporate Services is responsible for ensuring
that a capital programme is prepared on an annual basis for

34

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 152



consideration of the full Council’s policy framework.

5.3.3 All capital projects and spending must comply with the guidance on
Procurement and Contracts. Expenditure must be in line with the
approved scheme (Capital Programme) as agreed by Council and will
require an adequately detailed Capital Appraisal Form including any
revenue implications arising from the scheme. The Appraisal Form
should identify any key processes/deliverables to be incurred with
appropriate financial information (i.e., sub projects within the main
programme). The detail of projects above £50,000 must comply with
the Procurement Strategy. In the event that as part of an approved
scheme, there is a contingency amount in excess of £20,000, then prior
approval must be obtained from Cabinet for the spend to go ahead.
Chief Officers or Heads of Service must then notify the relevant portfolio
holder of the preferred tenderer. The Procurement and Contracts
Section gives further guidance.

5.3.4 If a Chief Officer or Head of Service wishes to incur minor new capital
spend (i.e. between £10,000 and £50,000) from a revenue budget the
Executive Director Corporate Services must first be informed in writing
and there must be no change in service policy, or detriment to service
standards or delivery. If these conditions are not met, Council must be
asked to add the project to the capital programme.

5.3.5 Council have delegated authority to Cabinet to approve/add new capital
schemes to the capital programme where grant funding is received and
there is no net additional cost to the Council.

5.3.6 Some Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for several
capital projects at the same time. Where any single scheme needs up
to £50,000 above its capital allocation to complete it, the Chief Officer or
Head of Service may approve a virement for the additional spend

| provided other schemes within his/her control will under-spend by at
least that amount.

5.3.7 A Chief Officer or Head of Service may authorise the virement of up to
£50,000 of budget per occasion to or from any individual scheme within
their service. The Director can approve a virement (up to £100,000)
across budgets within service activities within their Directorate and
between Directorates with the approval of the Executive Director
Corporate Services. The Chief Officer or Head of Service must notify
the Executive Director Corporate Services in writing of all virements.
No further approval is needed if there is no change in service
policy, no detriment to service standards or delivery, and no
material departure from the service plan.

5.3.8 Where ‘ring fenced’ grant income is received for an existing scheme
which requires specific actions/ spending, the Chief Officer or Head of
Service may approve additional expenditure up to £50,000 (with a
further £50,000 only with the Executive Director Corporate Services
approval), where there is no net additional cost to the Council.

35

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 153



Spending of grants which fall outside of the above criteria will require
Cabinet approval.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
5.4 Monitoring

5.4.1 Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for delivering
capital projects within agreed timescales and within budget. Chief
Officers and Heads of Service must therefore continuously monitor both
the progress of projects and spend against budget.

5.4.2 The Executive Director Corporate Services and Service Accountants
will provide suitable regular reports giving details of actual expenditure
and income compared to the budget. They will notify the Chief Officer
and Heads of Service of any significant variance which appears to
require further attention.

5.4.3 Chief Officers and Heads of Service are responsible for dealing with
actual or likely variances from budget or from the project delivery plan.

5.4.4 Where a significant variance is expected (even after taking appropriate
action) the Chief Officer and Heads of service must report the
circumstances formally to Members as soon as practicable. The report
should indicate the options open to Members and their implications. For
example in the case of a projected overspend it might suggest
amending the specification to come within budget.

5.4.5 Outstanding expenditure relating to the previous financial year should
be notified to the Executive Director Corporate Services as soon as
possible after 31%' March in line with the timetable determined by the
Executive Director Corporate Services.

5.4.6 ltis required that a post implementation review (PIR) is completed for all
capital projects where learning is identified which could assist future
projects or where there is a significant financial or political impact. The
Asset Strategy Group will decide, on an annual basis, the projects that
require a PIR to be completed. Results of the review should be
circulated to CMT and, if appropriate Cabinet and/or Scrutiny
Committees. More detailed guidance on the Post Implementation
Review process can be found in the Capital Process Guidance.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
5.5 External Funding
5.5.1 External funding is potentially a very important source of income, but
funding conditions need to be carefully considered to ensure that they
are compatible with the aims and objectives of the authority. Local

authorities are increasingly encouraged to provide seamless service
delivery through working closely with other agencies and private

36

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 154



55.2

55.3

55.4

5.5.5

5.5.6

5.5.7

5.5.8

55.9

5.5.10

service providers. Funds from external agencies such as the National
Lottery provide additional resources to enable the authority to deliver
services to the local community. However, in some instances,
although the scope for external funding has increased, such funding is
linked to tight specifications and may not be flexible enough to link to
the authority’s overall plan.

Where external funding may be available for a project in the capital
programme the Chief Officer or Head of Service is responsible for
submitting any bid required. Consultation with the Executive Director
Corporate Services is required before submission.

Any bid must match the capital programme approval in all material
respects. If the bid differs materially from the capital programme or the
project is not in the capital programme, then should the bid be
successful, Council approval must be obtained to add the project to
the capital programme.

Where a project relies on external funding, it must not commence until
final written confirmation has been received that the external funding
will be provided.

If the external funding approval differs materially from the bid, Council
approval must be received before any spending on the project is
committed. The Chief Officer or Head of Service should seek advice
from the Executive Director Corporate Services as to whether any
difference should be regarded as material.

Council has delegated authority to Cabinet to approve/ add new
capital schemes onto the capital programme where grant funding is
received and there is no net additional cost to the Council.

Claims for payment must be made as soon as practicable. The budget
manager who submitted the bid is responsible for submitting the claim
by the due date, unless otherwise agreed with the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

The Chief Officer or Head of Service should ensure that the project
progresses in accordance with the agreed project delivery plan and
that all expenditure is properly incurred and recorded.

Copies of all documentation such as bids, approvals, claims and
correspondence must be sent immediately to the Executive Director
Corporate Services to ensure that all funding notified by external
bodies is received and properly recorded in the authority’s accounts
and to ensure that audit requirements are met.

The Chief Officer of Head of Service must ensure that the key
conditions of funding and any statutory requirements are complied with
and the responsibilities of the accountable body are clearly
understood. Funds should only be acquired to meet the priorities

37

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 155



approved in the policy framework by the full Council. Any match-
funding requirements should be given due consideration prior to
entering into long-term agreements and future revenue budgets should
reflect these requirements.

5.5.11 Further details on external funding can be found in the External
Funding Strategy.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
5.6 Disposal of Capital Assets

5.6.1 Disposals require the same level of approval as capital spend. Chief
Officers and Heads of Service should therefore propose any
necessary capital disposals for inclusion in the capital programme. All
disposals are required to be approved by the Budget Review Group
and Cabinet.

5.6.2 Chief Officers and Heads of Service must obtain the best possible
price for disposals, in accordance with section 123 of the Local
Government Act 1972 (where relevant), which will normally be the
market value. Chief Officers and Heads of Service must consult with
the relevant specialist officer before commencing a disposal, e.g. the
Director of Assets & Environment for land or buildings and the Director
of Technology & Corporate Programmes for IT equipment. In most
cases the specialist manager should assume responsibility for the
disposal.

5.6.3 The disposal of low value items is dealt with in the Assets and
Equipment chapter.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

38

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 156



6. PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACTS

6.1

Introduction

6.1.1

This section supplements the Council’s contract standing orders and
Procurement Strategy and Procurement Guidance and Procedures on
the Intranet (which provide more detailed guidance and requirements
on purchasing, procurement and contracting processes).

Each Chief Officer/Head of Service is under a duty to “Promote greater
efficiency and value for money in all activities including the procurement
of goods and services” (Financial Regulation 7).

The essence of the system, which must be maintained by all Chief
Officers/Heads of Service is to demonstrate that:

a) Best value for public money spend is achieved;

b) No favouritism is shown to any potential supplier; “brand names” or
any potential discriminatory requirements/standards are not used;

c) The highest standards of integrity are consistently applied;

d) There is compliance to legal requirements;

e) Non-commercial considerations do not influence any contracting
decision;

f)  Corporate and departmental aims and policies are supported;

g) Compliance with the Procurement Strategy is maintained; and

h) The arrangements for supply and payment are clear to all parties.

This guidance applies to all procurement and purchasing activities
undertaken for, or by, the Council including cases where the Council
either acts as an agent (e.g. work for Staffordshire County Council) or
employs an agent such as an external architect or clerk of works, or
acts on behalf of other organisations and bodies working in partnership
(for example the Local Strategic Partnership and Crime & Disorder
Partnership).

Values quoted in this guidance should be considered as the estimated
spend on an item, service, or material for the period over which the
known requirements exist, or the total value of a one-off supply.
Consideration should be given to the “whole life cost” which includes,
for example, the cost of associated consumables required, cost of
disposal/ decommissioning, etc. In some cases, it is clear that a
grouping together of items is both sensible and within the spirit of the
regulations. For example, it is appropriate to consider the purchase of
desks and chairs as office furniture rather than as individual items. The
guidance applies to both revenue and capital items. For more
significant items of expenditure it is reasonable to consider the sum
total of the Council’'s requirements for works, services and supplies
across Directorates when assessing the estimated value and whole life
costs of these requirements.

39

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 157



6.1.6  All IT purchases (software and hardware) must be approved by the
Director of Technology & Corporate Programmes.

6.1.7 All potential contracts and partnership agreements (whether formal or
informal) which utilise the handling of the Council’s data/information
(paper based or electronic) by a third party must ensure formal,
contractual provision is made outlining the obligations placed on that
third party. The Corporate Information Security Manager must be
consulted in any such case at the outset of the process.

6.1.8 All proposals, developments, capital works, contracts and changes
affecting the information we use, hold and process must have the
agreement of the Director of Technology & Corporate Programmes or
deputy, and, where appropriate, be monitored for compliance.

6.1.9 All suppliers, partners, third-party organisations and contractors with
whom we have/will have a relationship by which they have access to or
process (as defined by the Data Protection Act 1998) personal or
commercially sensitive information belonging to or under the control of
the Council will be required to comply with the relevant principles (e.g.
Cyber Security Essentials/ISO27001) either by production of
certification or by submission of a statement of compliance. In addition,
they must acknowledge and agree their responsibilities and obligations
to the Council in relation to Principle 7 of the Data Protection Act (1998)
in relation to Information Security. Any request to waive these
requirements requires the agreement of both the Security Management
Group and Cabinet. Implementation of these arrangements is
immediate in relation to all contracts not yet let, Invitation to Tenders not
yet published, agreements not yet implemented, or proposed contract
extensions. At the end of the contract, all information used by the
contractor but belonging to the Council will be returned to the Council.
Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that the contractor provides
assurance that they do not hold any personal or commercially sensitive
information — either manually or electronically, that belongs to the
Council. Advice can be obtained from the Corporate Information
Security Manager.

6.1.10 Any consultants, agents, contractual partners used by the Council shall
be appointed in accordance with the requirements of Contract Standing
Orders and Financial Guidance. Where the Council uses consultants to
act on its behalf in relation to any procurement, the Chief Officer shall
ensure that the consultants also comply with these requirements. No
consultant shall make any decision on whether to award a contract or to
whom a contract should be awarded. The Chief Officer shall ensure
that the consultant’'s performance is monitored.

6.1.11 Some definitions of terms used and a list of officers who can provide
assistance are shown at 6.17 and 6.18.

40

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 158



6.1.12 Quotations/ estimates must be obtained for one-off spends of up to
£4,000, these may be verbal for up to £1,999. Any spend between
£2,000 and £3,999 must have a minimum of 3 written quotations/
estimates.

All tenders or invitations to quote of £4,000 or above, for works,
services, supplies, utilities and design contracts, will be tendered
electronically through the e-tendering system, iin-tFend. Where a
tender warrants a detailed specification, then the quick quote process
must be used. All transactions associated with such invitations to quote
or tenders above £4,000 will be conducted via the e-tendering system
from the initial advertisement, expressions of interest, invitation to
tender/quote or negotiate submission of quotations/tenders,
quotation/tender opening, contract award and subsequent contract
management.

The Procurement Team must be notified in writing at least six months
before the commencement of any tendering exercise with an expected
value of £50,000 or over and will give direction as to the procurement
route to be followed. This notification will include information for both
capital and revenue expenditure proposals as is required under the
capital appraisal process, so that an accurate assessment of the
requirements can be made. Where the procurement is likely to exceed
EU thresholds the period of notice will be at least six months in order to
allow compliance with EU timescales.

6.1.13 Electronic or e-auctions via the InTend system will be made available to
service areas by agreement with the Director of Finance. E-auctions
can be a useful way of securing savings and efficiencies and are best
applied where the product or service is capable of being specified
accurately and can be provided by a range of suppliers with a common
understanding of what the requirement is, for example, paper, IT
hardware and consumables, and utilities. E-bidding is another variant,
where “once only” bids are sought electronically.

6.1.14 The e-tendering/quotation system includes a browser based supplier
website where any supplier wishing to register an interest in doing
business with the Council can do so electronically, with a password
protected, secure area of the website for them to fill out their company
details (this includes information on their company, address, contact
points, business types, banking, insurance, certificates, accreditation
and other details). The supplier is able to update these details
whenever it logs on to the e-tendering system. This, together with the
introduction of corporate contracts, and partnering arrangements with
suppliers, supersedes the practice of having and maintaining an
“Approved Supplier” list or lists.

6.1.15 Chief Officers should ensure that current and potential suppliers register
their company details on the supplier website which can be found at the
following internet site https://in-tendhost.co.uk/tamworthbc. Relevant

41

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 159



6.2

6.1.16

6.1.17

6.1.18

suppliers are also able to use Constructionline to maintain and update
key corporate information.

New business opportunities are to be advertised on the website via the
Procurement Team and therefore must be notified in accordance with
the timescales noted above.

Where Tamworth BC is conducting a tendering or quotation exercise in
partnership with another public or private body (for examples joint
procurement of services) then the e-tendering system can be used as
part of the normal procurement processes followed by the Council by
agreement with the Director of Finance.

Where the Council is funding/assisting a body such as the Local
Strategic Partnership or the Crime and Disorder Partnership and there
is an expectation on the part of the Council to ensure probity in the use
of monies on projects which are publicly funded/routed via Tamworth
BC then the e-tendering system can be used as part of the assistance
provided by the Council by agreement with the Director of Finance.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

Summary of Requirements

6.2.1

6.2.2

The following tables show the action needed at differing values. Further
detail follows. Before initiating any tender/quote process officers should
review the Contract Register to see if there are any comparable
contracts or agreements in place which must be used unless there is an
auditable reason not to.

Please see overleaf.

42

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 3403/16

Page 160



Value

Contact Other Officers

Process for Obtaining
Prices

Contract Issues

Supply Process

£0 - £3,999

Should contact Procurement
Team if similar expenditure
is likely to be incurred by
others to check if a corporate
contract is in place or
desirable

Should obtain at least 3
quotations or estimates —
these may be verbal up to
£1,999. £1,999is
cumulative within the
financial year.

No requirement for formal
written contract. Standard
form may be considered in
some cases and an annual
supply arrangement may be
appropriate

Must be via official order
generated by General
Ledger or as per contract

‘ £4,000 - £9,999

T9T abed

Must consult the
Procurement Team to seek
guidance as to the
appropriate procurement
route to follow

Tendering must be
considered, alternatively,
written quotations must be
obtained using Quick Quote
(QQ) on the iin-tFend system
using the correct_current
invitation to quote template.
The authorisation form must
be completed and returned
to the Procurement Team

AbridgedCondensed contract
format to beNo-requirement
forcontractbut used and-of
standard quotation
documents must be used
especially where access to
personal/confidential
information is involved or
warranties or indemnities are
given/received

Must be via official order
generated by General
Ledger or as per contract

£10,000 -
£49,000

Must consult the
Procurement Team to seek
guidance as to the
appropriate procurement
route to follow

Advice from Procurement
and, where appropriate,
Legal must first be obtained.
Tendering must be
considered. Must use the
standard quotation/ tender
documents.

The Authorisation Form
must be completed and
returned to the Procurement
Team

Depending on the
complexity, risk and value, a
written contract is required,
subject to consultation with
the Procurement Team and
Legal. Above £20,000 a
formal written contract which
can be signed by the
relevant CMT member
MUST be used. Consult with
Procurement Team as to the
relevant type of contract

Must be via printed official
order generated by General
Ledger or as specified in the
contract

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

43




29T abed

over

Team in writing as soon as
the spend requirement is
identified — this is at least a 6
month period and where
spend is going to exceed the
EU threshold, a longer
period of notice would be
expected — the Procurement
Team must be contacted for
guidance as to the
appropriate procurement
route to follow. The
Procurement Team may
direct and/or administer the
whole process

contract brief required. Use
of the Invitation to Tender
Documentation must be
used.

The Authorisation Form
must be completed and
returned to the Procurement
Team

contract duly approved by
the Solicitor to the Council
and executed as a Deed
under Seal

Value Contact Other Officers Process for Obtaining Contract Issues Supply Process
Prices
£50,000 and Must advise Procurement Member endorsement of Must be a formal written As specified in formal

contract

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

44




6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.2.7

6.2.8

Any of the guidance may be applied for purchases at a lesser
value. For example, it may be appropriate for certain low value
requirements to be purchased by inviting tenders.  Similar
procedures to those outlined should then be followed. (The
guidance does not necessarily cover such situations in full).

If there is an existing contract available for the required goods,
services or works, it must be used in the first instance. Some
contracts let by other public authorities may also be available (see
6.3.1).

A list of corporate contracts can be found on Covalent. If it is
intended not to use a corporate contract, the Procurement Team
must be consulted at the outset.

A suitable contract specification must be completed in all cases.
The level of detail required within the specification will be
commensurate with the complexity, risk and value of the purchase.

See the following section on Alternative Purchasing Arrangements.
Advice in either case is available from the Procurement Team.

Chief Officers shouldmust maintain a register to record all
quotations and estimates (including verbal estimates) up to £3,999.
Copies of written versions must be securely retained, and entries
should be signed and dated by both the recording officer and the
authorising officer. The details contained in any quotation or
estimate must not be made known to any other party. All
quotations and estimates received should be retained in the
register until the Accounts have been signed off for that financial
year. The Quick-Quote and Contract registers on Covalent will be
used to record details of tenders/contracts awarded.

The most economically advantageous tender must be accepted.
Advice on how to determine this can be sought from the
Procurement Team.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

Further Guidance

6.2.9

Under £4,000

Different practices will apply at different levels:

e The petty cash procedure may be used for very minor items.
See the section on cash advances efc;

e The three estimates for a supply up to £1,999 may come from
telephone contact with companies advertising in the local
paper, trade journal or yellow pages;

45

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 163



e Verbal quotations/estimates may only be sought for
goods/services up to a cumulative value of £1,999 within the
financial year.

6.2.10 £4,000 - £9,999

The Chief Officer must contact the Procurement Team if further
similar expenditure is also likely to be incurred by themselves or
others to check if a corporate contract is in place or is desirable.
Tendering must be considered and the Procurement Team will
advise on the suitability of tendering.  Alternatively, written
| quotations must be obtained by using Quick Quote on the iin-tFend
system and using the correct Invitation to Quote
| template/specification. The Authorisation Form must be completed
and authorised, and received by the Procurement Team, and a
tender/ QQ reference number established, before the procurement
| process is initiated on iin-Ftend.

6.2.11 The standard form of contract is particularly recommended in
situations where protection against a poorly performing supplier is

| important or where the procurement carries particular risks e.g.
where the supplier would have access to confidential/personal

information, or where price is not the only criteria being considered.

6.2.12 £10,000 - £49,999

The Chief Officer should appoint a Project Officer with overall
responsibility for the procurement. The Procurement Team must
be advised in writing in all cases and guidance sought on the
appropriate procurement route to be followed. Tendering must be
considered and the Procurement Team will advise where tendering
is not necessary. AlternativelyWhere agreed with the Procurement
Team, written quotations mustmay be obtained viausing the-Quick
Quote on the iin-tFend system using the correct Invitation to Quote
template. All tenders/ QQs with an estimated value exceeding
£25,000 must also be advertised on the Crown Commercial
Service’s Contracts Finder e-procurement portal. The Authorisation
Form must be completed and returned to the Procurement Team,
and a tender/_QQ reference number established, before the
procurement process is initiated on iln-Ttend. A written
specification must be included on the Invitation to Quote/_Tender
document. Formal Terms and Conditions of Contract must be
used.

6.2.13 £50,000 plus

The Chief Officer must appoint a Project Officer with overall
responsibility for the procurement. The Procurement Team must
be advised in writing in all cases, at the initiation of the project, and
guidance sought on the appropriate procurement route to follow.

46

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 164



This is to enable an assessment of whether or not the European
Union regulations come into play and to ensure the most
appropriate procurement solutions are sought. Where the EU
threshold is expected to be exceeded, the Procurement Team
should be contacted in the first instance. A supply for an individual
Service area may be below the threshold, but similar needs in
another Service area may mean EU aggregation rules apply. EU
procedures must be followed if they apply, and, due to their
complexity, the Procurement Team must be involved in such
projects. A formal tender exercise is compulsory, as is a formal
written contract.

The Solicitor to the Council must have a minimum of 2 weeks
notice to consider the draft contract before engrossment.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer
6.3  Alternative Purchasing Arrangements

6.3.1  Other organisations in the public sector are also under a duty to
secure value for money in terms of purchasing. In the right
circumstances and where provision has been made for the
agreement to be used by other authorities, i.e.; where it will provide
best value and is consistent with other key requirements such as
on contract terms and conditions, managers may use their
purchasing arrangements.

6.3.2 These other organisations may include Crown Commercial
Services, ESPO, YPO, Central Government (via their G-Cat or S-
Cat, and L-Cat processes), local authorities such as Staffordshire
County Council and bodies such as the National Health Service.
Chief Officers/Heads of Service may contract directly with such
suppliers but must consult with/involve the Procurement Team
because of potential issues such as ensuring the agreement has
been conducted in full accordance with Public Contract
Requlations 2015 for use by other authorities; the requirement to
conduct a mini-competition under a framework agreement, delivery
charges, minimum order levels and so on. Contract details will also
need to be recorded on Covalent for monitoring purposes and to
ensure that details can be reported as part of our obligations under
the Local Government Transparency Code.

6.3.3 Goods or services may also be procured jointly with other such
organisations to obtain best value but must meet the requirements
of the Council’s own rules on procurement.

6.3.4  Other variations of procurement may be considered but officers

must approach the Procurement Team for guidance before the
commencement of alternative procurement routes.

47

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 165



CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer
6.4  Appraisal of Potential Contractors

6.4.1 Itis important that potential suppliers are able to meet the Council’s
needs. Suppliers should, therefore, be vetted in financial and
performance terms (including health and safety) to various levels
commensurate with the criticality and risk of the purchase/supply,
prior to any firm commitment. Please contact the Procurement
Section for guidance.

6.4.2 The financial appraisal checks that the supplier operates on a
sound financial footing by assessment profit levels, the ability to
pay bills and so on. It will also assess the supplier's capacity to
deliver a contract without incurring unreasonable financial risk and
recommend a maximum value contract that should be considered
in order to protect the contractor from becoming too reliant on the
Council for its business. The Executive Director Corporate
Services will undertake or arrange these appraisals on receipt of
the last two years audited accounts. The appropriate Chief Officer
is responsible for ensuring that all relevant documents are
submitted to the Executive Director Corporate Services in a timely
manner. The Chief Officer must advise the Executive Director
Corporate Services if the contract value exceeds £100,000 since a
high level appraisal is then required.

6.4.3 In addition to the financial details submitted, the contractor is also
required to submit details of Employers Liability, Public Liability
Insurance and Professional Indemnity cover which must be
appropriate_and proportionate to the contract type, size and the
nature of the contract, copies of which should be submitted along
with the financial details to the Executive Director Corporate
Services. The Chief Officer must check that the certificates are
valid for the period of work. If they expire during the period the
Chief Officer must check before expiry that they have been
renewed. Further advice and guidance can be sought from the
Director of Finance.

6.4.4 In terms of performance appraisal, the Chief Officer needs to
satisfy themselves that the contractor has a history of sound
performance of similar supplies in the recent past. The Chief
Officer should therefore request bank references, trade references
and make other enquiries deemed necessary to become satisfied.

6.4.5 Some contractors are required to hold a valid tax exemption
certificate. Certificates should be checked prior to the start of the
contract and a copy of the certificate should be forwarded to the
Executive Director Corporate Services. The Chief Officer must
check that the certificate is valid for the period of work. If it expires
during the period of work the Chief Officer must check before

48

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 166



expiry that it has been renewed. Further guidance is available from
the Executive Director Corporate Services.

6.4.6 In addition to the specific issues referred to within this section, the
Chief Officer must ensure that appropriate steps are taken in all
cases to assess the suitability of prospective suppliers. The risks
involved in the procurement should advise the necessary level of
assessment. For instance, even for lower value purchases Chief
Officer should still consider the need to obtain assurance that a
business is bona fide, or has appropriate health and safety
arrangements and insurance cover.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer
6.5 Supplier Register

6.5.1  The names of contractors who have expressed an interest in doing
work for the Council are retained on a supplier register within the e-
tendering system (iln-tFend). Any contractor who expresses an
interest to be included is automatically added to the Supplier
Register. There is no pre-set requirement for contractors when
signing up to the register. Appropriate appraisal criteria should be
considered at the start of the tendering/quotation stage.

6.5.2 All Supplier Registers shall be maintained in an open, fair and
transparent manner and be open to public inspection.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer
6.6 Framework Agreements

6.6.1 The terms of a Framework Agreement must not generally exceed
four years and, while an agreement may be entered into with one
provider, where an agreement is concluded with several
organisations, there must be at least three in number.

6.6.2 Contracts based on Framework Agreements may be awarded by
either:

o Applying the terms laid down in the Framework Agreement
(where such terms are sufficiently precise to cover the particular
call-off) and where value for money can be clearly determined
without reopening competition, or

o Where the terms laid down in the Framework Agreement are
not precise enough to complete for the particular call off, by
holding a mini competition in accordance with the following
procedure:

o Inviting the organisations within the framework

49

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 167



Agreement that are capable of executing the subject of
the contract to submit written tenders;

o Fixing a time limit which is sufficiently long to allow
Tenders for each specific contract to be submitted, taking
into account factors such as the complexity of the subject
of the contract;

o Awarding each contract to the tenderer who has
submitted the best Tender on the basis of the award
criteria set out in the specifications of the Framework
Agreement.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer
6.7 Tender Procedures

6.7.1 For contracts over £50,000 Chief Officers must advise the
Procurement Team in writing at the outset but at least six months
before the required commencement date. An Invitation to Tender
advert is placed to invite potential contractors or suppliers to
register their interest in tendering for the relevant requirement.

6.7.2 The Invitation to Tender should contain details of the principal
elements of the procurement requirement in order that it primarily
attracts those contractors who are in a position to satisfy these
requirements. It should therefore contain as a minimum:

. A sufficiently detailed requirement or specification for the type
of goods, services or works required;

o A price schedule;

. Standard conditions of contract that will apply in the event of
a contract being awarded;

. Instructions to tenderers including the date of
commencement of the contract and possible duration;
technical and financial information; the closing date for tender
submissions, and a list of the evaluation criteria and sub-
criterion together with the weightings to be used.

6.7.3 The evaluation criteria together with the weightings must be
referred to in the Invitation to Tender and must not be altered after
the Invitation to Tender has been issued. All criteria chosen to be
used in the evaluation of tenders must be relevant to the service
and/or goods required.

6.7.4  The Chief Officer must set a detailed evaluation methodology prior
to inviting tenders. They should set out explicitly how price and

50

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 168



quality elements will be balanced in the final decision in order to
help demonstrate selection of the most economically advantageous
tender. Appropriate and sufficient information must be required for
inclusion in the supplier's submission to enable all criteria to be
evaluated. Advice is available from the Procurement Team.

6.7.5 Large contracts may require the tenderers to submit a schedule of
rates. To compare them properly and allow the total cost to be
assessed, the Chief Officer should construct a model of work likely
to be required over a set period, for example, one year. This model
must be set before tenders are invited, and must be issued with the
Invitation to Tender.

6.7.6  Contracts awarded will be required to be published in accordance
with the Government’s Transparency agenda.

European Union Procurement Procedures

6.7.7 The relevant EU Directives on procurement must be adhered to
when awarding a contract where the anticipated value is close to or
exceeds the thresholds indicated below.

Thresholds Supplies (£) | Services Works
(£) (£)

Contract Value £164,176 £164,176 £4.104,394

6.7.8 These figures apply from 1 January 2016. The Procurement Team
must be advised in writing at least six months in advance of the
supply and guidance sought as to the appropriate values and
procedures used. Further information on EU Procurement
Procedures and guidance on the use of the open, restricted,
competitive dialogue, competitive dialogue with negotiation,
innovation partnership and negotiated without prior publication
procurement routes, together with design contests and works
concessions, should be obtained from the Procurement Team. The
Procurement Team must be involved in all procurement projects
under EU regulations due to the complexities and legal implications
involved.

6.7.9 In appropriate cases, Chief Officers may engage with the market
prior to initiating the tendering process in order to make use of
innovative approaches in achieving best value in the provision of a
supply or service. This could involve consulting with stakeholders
including customers, potential suppliers and interested groups.
The Director of Finance must be fully consulted and involved in any
such proposals, which must comply with corporate guidance and
EU Procurement Procedures.

51

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 169



6.7.10 Under the provisions of the Public Services (Social Value) Act
2012, the Authority is required to have regard to economic, social
and environmental well-being in connection with EU public service
contracts.

This requires the Authority to consider:-

a) How what is proposed to procure might improve the
economic, social and environmental well-being of the relevant
area;

b) How, in conducting the process of procurement, it might act
with a view to securing that improvement; and

c) Whether to undertake any consultation regarding a) and b)
above.

The provisions require that any actions are relevant and
proportionate to the proposed procurement. Further advice and
guidance should be obtained from the Corporate Procurement
OfficerTeam.

Development of Contract Brief

6.7.11 Where there is a variation from the agreed budget each Chief
Officer must seek Cabinet endorsement prior to tendering. The
report should comment upon:

a) The detailed proposals for the scheme, including objectives,
targets, milestones, design details and its contribution to the
corporate and service plans;

b) The financial appraisal of the revenue and capital implications,
prepared in conjunction with the Executive Director Corporate
Services, and compared to budgets;

c) Risk associated with the scheme;

d) The tender evaluation mechanism and the decision criteria.

6.7.12 Approval at this stage will normally include authority to invite
tenders and to accept the most economically advantageous tender.

6.7.13 Chief Officers should consult the Director of Finance and the
Solicitor to the Council for advice.

Extension to Tender Period

52

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 170



6.7.14

6.7.15

6.7.16

6.7.17

6.7.18

6.7.19

6.7.20

The Solicitor to the Council (or her nominated deputy) or the
Executive Director Corporate Services (or his nominated deputy),
may approve the extension of a tender period. The Corporate
Procurement Officer is authorised to approve the extension of a
tender period only if and when none of the above officers are
available. The reasons for the extension of the tender period must
be recorded on lin-ftend and all potential tenderers must be
informed of the extension to the tendering period.

Amendments to Tenders (by Contractors)

Any amendment a contractor wishes to make to a submitted tender
must be received before the closing date and time for responses.
In-Ftend will provide this facility to suppliers.

Tender Opening — Electronic

All tenders for an individual contract must be opened at the same
time by at least 2 officers. This should include a representative
from Legal Services for purchases that are subject to EU
procedures.

A tender received after the specified time may be only opened and
considered at the discretion of the Solicitor to the Council.

Sub-Contractors and Nominated Suppliers

Nominated sub-contractors and suppliers must not be used where
this would be anti-competitive, discriminatory or in breach of
procurement regulations.

If a Chief Officer wishes to nominate a specific sub-contractor or
supplier a written request must be sent to and be approved by the
Director of Finance who will assess any risks involved. The
request must show how this will give best value/value for money.

Amendments to Tender Documents (by the Authority)

Minor corrections and amendments to any part of the Invitation to
Tender may be required during the tender period. Chief Officers
must consult with Procurement, and where appropriate the Director
of Finance, and if necessary the Solicitor to the Council on such
matters, and all tenderers must be advised of all agreed
amendments in writing at the same time. Acknowledgement of
receipt of the amendments will be recorded on the electronic
tendering system. In responding to clarifications and queries, the
response should be addressed to all tendering organisations, and
issued at the same time via the ilin-Ftend system. All

53

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 171



6.7.21

| 6.7.22

| 6.7.23

6.7.24

6.7.25

6.7.26

6.7.27

correspondence will be sent electronically.

The Invitation to Tender amendments must not contain anything
which may materially affect the tender process or unduly affect
open and fair competition. No fundamental changes to the
Invitation to Tender documentation should be made by the
information contained within the amendment.

A record is retained electronically by iin-tFend of all
correspondence with tenderers throughout the tender process

Lagludine—oranile,

Tender Evaluation

Chief Officers mustsheuld ensure that at least two people carry out
the evaluation of tenders. For major contracts involving a project
team, the Manager should consider involving the whole team. All
tender evaluations carried out mustsheuld be evidenced with a full
audit trail.

Tender evaluation must be completed using the spreadsheet
available from the Procurement Team. The Procurement Team
should be contacted to provide advice and guidance. The tender
evaluation spreadsheet must be returned to the Procurement Team
for review before the award of the contract, and must be retained
with the procurement documents.

Tenders mustsheuld be checked to ensure they are complete and
that all price calculations are correct. They must be evaluated
objectively in line with the specified evaluation mode, ensuring fair
and equitable treatment for each tender. Reasons for the scores
given to each tenderer for each element of the evaluation must be
recorded. Where a moderation process is used, any changes to
scores mustshould be evidenced and a full audit trail retained.

If an arithmetical error is discovered in the financial submission, the
Chief Officer should consult the Corporate Procurement
Officer.Team. The contractor must be notified in order to enable
themselves to:

a) Agree the amendment; or
b) Allow the original figure to stand; or
c) Withdraw the tender.

If a Tenderer notifies the Council of an error/amendment which
materially affects the submission, the Chief Officer must consult
with appropriate officers, for example, the Corporate Procurement
Oefficer, Director of Finance, the Solicitor to the Council or
Executive Director Corporate Services and should normally
implement one of the following options:

54

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 172



6.7.28

6.7.29

6.7.30

6.7.31

6.7.32

a) All other Tenderers are allowed to retender (in the case of the
Council’s error); or

b) The Tenderer is required to stand by the original Tender; or

c) The Tenderer withdraws the Tender; or

d) (where an error is found before completion of tender
evaluation) to correct an error which can be corrected simply
by confirming which of two conflicting figures (eg., a multiplier
or product, or carried forward or brought forward) is right;-er

e) Lihoro—tho—crer o teund foforn eormnlolion of dondor
cva uation) t.g esl eet-an sbusﬁes OFISSIon (eg. | alzl'eulu >

During the evaluation process, clarification may be sought on any
of the tenders received. The questions and answers should always
be submitted via the lin-Ftend system and incorporated into the
tender documentation.

There must be no fundamental change to the contract specification
or award criteria. Amendments to the specification or terms of the
supply, which do not distort competition or are not considered
material changes or fundamental to the contract can be made, and
shall be put to all Tenderers prior to the submission deadline and in
good time for them to make any necessary changes to their tender.
Guidance is available from the Corporate Procurement
OfficerTeam, Director of Finance or Solicitor to the Council.

At the conclusion of the evaluation process, the Chief Officer
should be able to, and is expected to, select the tender which is the
most economically advantageous to the Council, as indicated by
the evaluation model.

Post Tender Negotiation & Clarification

After the tenders have been returned and evaluated, further
clarification from tenderers, in relation to the tender bid may be
required. Clarifying information can include the following:

Price

Specification

Delivery date/start date
Payment Terms
Software Licenses

All tender bids which—are covered by the Public Contract

- oz icncEYU-—Directives—are—subjeet—te—the—mere—restrictive
approach—specified—by—the—European—UJnien; which states all

negotiations with tenderers on fundamental aspects of contracts,
variations of which are likely to distort competition and in particular
on price, shall be ruled out. However, discussions with tenderers

55

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 173



’ 6.7.39

6.7.40
39

may be held, only for the purpose of clarifying or supplementing the
content of their tenders or the requirements of the contracting
authorities, and provided this does not involve discrimination.
There must be no fundamental change to the contract specification
or contract award criteria.

Where a tender return is unclear or there are minor sections which
have been omitted with no explanation included, it is recommended
that the tendering organisation is contacted for clarification, this
must be done via the in-tendelectronictendering system. In the
case of numerous or sizable omissions, guidance must be sought
from the Director of Finance and Procurement before clarification is
requested.

All tendering organisations must be treated fairly and equally in all
circumstances.

An electronic record will be kept of any query on a tender on lin-
tFend and any information supplied by the tenderercempany must

also be conductedfirmed via the in-tendelectronic—tendering
system.

Where it is necessary to meet a tFenderers to discuss their
submission further, at least two authorised officers must be present
and minutes taken. In all instances, the Procurement Team must
be consulted.

In some cases it may be necessary to vary, by agreement, some
minor details of the work required. Consultation with the
Procurement Team and the Solicitor to the Council must be made
prior to any agreement being made.

Advice should always be sought from the Procurement Team,

Director of Finance or the Solicitor to the Council before entering

into clarifications or negotiations.

Chief Officers must not enter into negotiations except:

a) With the preferred tenderer(s) under the evaluation mode and
after all unsuccessful tenderers have been informed; or

b) When using the negotiated procedure under EU rules, in
which case those procedures must be followed.

The Chief Officer must ensure that:

c) Negotiations are carried out by at least two authorised
officers, and guidance on separation of duties is followed;

56

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 174



d) The decisions taken at relevant meetings are documented;

e) Changes in specification and price are agreed by both parties;
and

f)  All records are incorporated into contract documents.

6.7.41+ Where post tender negotiation results in a fundamental or material
0 change to the specification (or contract terms) the contract must
not be awarded but re-tendered.

Tender Acceptance

Where the tender price exceeds the estimated budget by the
lower of £10,000 or 5% the Executive Director Corporate
Services MUST be informed and has the discretion to
authorise that the tender be accepted and a contract entered
into.

6.7.41 A Chief Officer may accept the winning tender after evaluation if it

2 meets all material aspects of the specification and is within the
budget provision. If the amount is higher than budgetary provision,
the guidance on Budgets must be followed. If only one tender is
received, advice and guidance MUST be obtained from the
Solicitor to the Council and the Director of Finance of the process
to be followed.

} 6.7.42 When requesting approval to procure contracts, officers must
3 ensure that approval is obtained from Cabinet to award the
contract to the successful tenderer (in compliance with delegated
| procedures). With all income generating projects, i.e.; the disposal
of material operating assets/activities, Cabinet must approve the

preferred tenderer.

} 6.7.43 Where the procurement is conducted under EU procedures, advice
4 MUST be sought from the Director of Finance or the Procurement
Team prior to any notification of an award of contract being issued.
All tenderers shall simultaneously be provided with a written
standstill notice of the Authority’s intention to award the contract to
the successful tenderer. The standstill notice must be issued
electronically to tenderers (via; iln-Ftend), in the name of the
Solicitor to the Council, or, in her absence, the Director of Finance.
The tenderers must be provided with a period of 10 calendar days
to review, and, if considered necessary, to challenge the decision
before the contract is awarded. Day one of the period shall
commence on the day following issue of the standstill notice. The
tenth day must fall on a working day and the 10 day standstill
| period mustsheuld be extended, where necessary, to ensure that
this happens. If the decision is challenged, then the contract shall
not be awarded and advice must immediately be sought from the
Solicitor to the Council and the Corporate Procurement
| OfficerTeam.

57

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 175



6.7.44 The standstill notice must contain a precise statement of when the

5

10 day standstill period will end ie., midnight at the end of (date)
together with the following information:

e The criteria for the award of the contract;

o Reasons for the decision including the characteristics and
relative advantages of the successful tenderer;

¢ In conjunction with the above, the score of the unsuccessful
tenderer (including criterion and sub-criterion) and that of the
successful tenderer to be awarded the contract;

e The reasons why (if any) the unsuccessful tenderer did not
meet the technical specifications;

e The name of the successful tenderer to be awarded the
contract.

The standstill notice must always be prepared in consultation with
the Corporate Procurement OfficerTeam.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer

6.8 Post Tender and Contracts

Preparation of Contract

6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

Where a tender has been subject to EU procedures and the
standstill period has been completed without a challenge, then all
tenderers must be informed once the contract has been awarded.
More generally, having decided to accept a tender/quotation the
Chief Officer must advise the tenderers of the outcome of the
process and must finalise a contract. This might involve simple
acceptance of a standard form of contract, minor amendment
agreed via correspondence or it might require meetings with the
successful tenderer. Where an industry standard form of contract
and terms and conditions are available, e.g.; JCT or ICE contracts,
they should be used in place of the Council’'s standard forms (but
only if alreadyand-sheuld-be specified in the Invitation to Tender
documents). All agreed amendments must be recorded in writing
and formally incorporated into the contract. Advice should be
sought from the Corporate Procurement OfficerTeam, and where
necessary, the Solicitor to the Council.

The Chief Officer should ensure that all approvals that remain
outstanding (such as planning permission) are obtained prior to the
completion of the contract documents.

In addition, every relevant contract over £50,000 must also state
clearly as a minimum:

58

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 176



Prices and/or rates together with any adjustment mechanisms that
shall apply during the term of the contract;

Invoice procedures;

Performance indicators and-/or service levels required;

Conditions of contract that shall include:

. That the contractor may not assign or sub-contract without
prior written consent

Insurance requirements

Health and safety requirements

Ombudsman requirements

Data protection requirements, if relevant

Charter standards are to be met, if relevant

Equalities & Diversity Policy requirements

Children & Vulnerable Adults Policy requirements, if relevant
Conflict of Interests requirements

Freedom of Information Act requirements

Bribery act requirements

Right of access to relevant documentation and records of the
contractor for monitoring and audit purposes if relevant.

Where agents are used to let contracts, agents must comply with
the Council’s contract procedures rules.

Insurance

6.8.4  Chief Officers must ensure that the contract has Employers Liability
and Public Liability insurance, normally to a minimum value of £10
million and £5 million respectively; and should seek the advice of
the Executive Director Corporate Services wherever there is doubt.
Other insurances, for example, professional indemnity may be
desirable.

6.8.5 The responsibility for obtaining contractor insurance details
including renewals lies with the appropriate Chief Officer. The
Chief Officer should ensure that all insurance details are passed to
the Executive Director Corporate Services without delay.

Bonds and Parent Companies Guarantees

6.8.6  The officer must consult the Executive Director Corporate Services
about whether a Parent Company Guarantee is necessary when a
contractor is a subsidiary of the parent company and:

The total value exceeds £250,000, or

The award is based on evaluation of the parent company, or
There is some concern about the stability of the contractor.

59

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 177



6.8.7 The Officer must consult the Executive Director Corporate Services
about whether a bond is needed:

Where the total value exceeds £1,000,000, or

Where it is proposed to make stage or other payments in advance
of receiving the whole of the subject matter of the contract and
there is concern about the stability of the contractor.

Signing of Contracts

6.8.8 The Solicitor to the Council should check and endorse contracts
before engrossment valued at £50,000 or above for signature.
Contracts below £50,000 should be signed by the relevant member
of the Corporate Management Team (CMT). If, in the latter case, a
number of members of CMT are involved, then the contract should
be signed by the main user.

6.8.9  The Officer signing the contract must notify all interested managers
it has taken place. The Director of Finance must be notified in
every case.

Site Possession

6.8.10 On completion of the contract documents the Chief Officer should
where relevant arrange a site possession date. Chief Officers must
not allow entry onto the Council’s land or commencement of work
prior to the completion of a written contract. In exceptional
circumstances, this may be authorised by the Chief Executive.

Document Retention (all formal contracts)

6.8.11 Chief Officers must ensure the original copies of all formal
contracts are placed in the Council’s strong room for all contracts
over 12 months/over £50,000. Where a consultant has been
engaged to manage the contract on the Council’s behalf, it must be
ensured that both the contractor and Chief Officer have necessary
access to contract documents to enable their functions to be
performed.

Contract Amendments

6.8.12 Contracts may need amending after signing. The circumstances
will dictate the level of approval needed for the change. The
relevant Chief Officer should seek appropriate advice, for example,
from the Solicitor to the Council, before proceeding.

CONTACT: Corporate Procurement Officer, Operations Accountant

6.9 Project/Contract Implementation & Payment

60

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 178



6.9.1 A separate file should be maintained by the relevant Chief Officer
for each project, including copies of such contracts making up the
project. The file should contain the following information:-

a) A record of instalments due and paid;

b) The working papers substantiating payments; and

c) The details of payments to consultants, internal fees and other
payments.

6.9.2 Chief Officers must only authorise payments that conform to the
terms of the contract.

6.9.3 The Chief Officer must only make payments to contractors for
Buildings & Engineering works on the basis of a valuation
certificate detailing:

a) The total value of the contract;

b) The value of work executed to date;

c) The amount paid to date;

d) The amount now certified;

e) Any retention monies;

f)  Whether the work is subject to VAT or Liquidated and
Ascertained Damages (together with details of the calculation
of damages).

6.9.4 Where the work is subject to VAT the Chief Officer must ensure
that either a VAT invoice or receipt is obtained in order to
substantiate the VAT reclaimed.

6.9.5 Where liquidated and ascertained damages are to be deducted,
the Chief Officer must ensure that the contractor is notified as soon
as possible and given details of the basis of calculation. Any
liquidated damages applied at any stage of the contract must be
deducted from any subsequent valuation certificate before any
payment is made.

Contract Monitoring and Variations (including claims)

6.9.6 The Chief Officer must monitor expenditure under a contract and
take action where appropriate to ensure the final contract sum or
the level of expense incurred in any financial year does not exceed
the approved budget/available resources.

During the life of the contract, the officer must monitor in respect of:

Performance;

Compliance with specification and contract;
Cost;

Any Value for Money requirements;

User satisfaction and risk management.

61

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 179



Contracts of a high value or high risk should be subject to formal
monthly review with the contractor.

For contracts over £50,000, contract managers must:

e Maintain a risk register on the Covalent system during the
contract period;

e Undertake appropriate risk assessments and for identified risks;

e Ensure contingency measures are in place.

6.9.7 Subject to the provisions of the contract, every extra cost or
variation should be authorised in writing by the Chief Officer.
Copies of the approved delegated decision that permits officers to
authorise variations or extra costs should be forwarded to the
Executive Director Corporate Services by the Chief Officer or the
delegated officer.

6.9.8 If the revised project cost exceeds the budget/available resources,
the guidance on capital budgets and projects must be followed.

6.9.9 Where a contract requires a contractor to meet specified outcomes
or service levels (e.g. in a partnering-type arrangement)
appropriate arrangements must be made by the Chief Officer to
ensure that the expected outcomes/service levels are provided or
that clear processes exist for reporting and approving any
variations from these outcomes/service levels and their financial
effect. Any proposals to provide financial incentives or profit
sharing arrangements with partners must be subject to appropriate
approval and budget processes. Such arrangements must provide
appropriate levels of probity and transparency.

6.9.10 Where payment under a partnering arrangement is based upon an
agreement of target prices between the Council and the external
partner then written evidence shall be provided to demonstrate that
the target price represents value for money.

6.9.11 Where a consultant is contracted to monitor a contract on the
Council’s behalf, the Chief Officer must ensure that the consultant
contractor complies with this financial guidance.

CONTACT: Director of Finance, Head of Internal Audit Services
6.10 Final Account
6.10.1 Payment of the final account (where relevant) effectively closes the
contract and it must be correct. The Chief Officer must ensure that
adequate checks are «carried out to ensure the final

account/payment is correct and has been accurately calculated.
They must also ensure there is adequate separation of duties in

62

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 180



preparing and agreeing the final account. Management within the
relevant Directorate will, on an annual basis, review the Contract
Register maintained by the Executive Director Corporate Services
and sample test a number of payments (this process should be
adequately evidenced).

6.10.2 For building and engineering work the relevant project manager
must prepare a detailed statement of account before a final
certificate (where required) is issued showing variations against the
original contract price, payments made to date and any further
payments due. It should be sent to the client Chief Officer within
one month of the issue of the certificate of practical completion.

6.10.3 The client Chief Officer should approve and agree the contract final
account within the retention period and ensure the final payment
and certificate are sent to the contractor by the due date. In case
of difficulty, advice should be sought from relevant officers, for
example, the Solicitor to the Council or Executive Director
Corporate Services.

6.10.4 Final account outturn should be reported in accordance with the
Corporate Capital Strategy.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
6.11 Post Contract

6.11.1 Claims from the contract in respect of matters not clearly within the
terms of any existing contract should be referred to the Solicitor of
the Council for consideration of the authority’s legal liability.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

6.12 Partnerships

6.12.1 Partnerships have a key role in delivering community strategies
and in helping to promote and improve the well-being of the area.
The Authority is and will be increasingly working with others —
public agencies, private companies, community groups and
voluntary organisations.

6.12.2 The main reasons for entering into partnerships are:

e The desire to find new ways to share risk
e The ability to access new resources

e To provide new and better ways to deliver services
e To forge new relationships

6.12.3 A partner is either:

63

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 181



An organisation (either private or public) undertaking, part
funding or participating as a beneficiary in a project; or

A body whose nature or status gives it a right or obligation to
support the project.

6.12.4 Partners participate by:

Acting as a project deliverer, provider or sponsor, solely or in
connection with others;

Acting as a project funder, part funder, commissioner or joint
commissioner;

Being a beneficiary group of the activity undertaken in a project.

6.12.5 Partners have common responsibilities:

To be willing to take on a role in the broader programme
appropriate to the skills and resources of the partner
organisation;

To act in good faith at all times and in the best interest of the
partnership’s aims and objectives;

To be open about any conflict of interest that may arise;

To encourage joint working and promote the sharing of
information, resources and skills between the public, private
and community sectors;

To hold confidentially any information received as a result of the
partnership activities or duties that is of a confidential or
commercially sensitive nature;

To act wherever possible as ambassadors for the project.

6.12.6 Chief Officers should be aware of:

Their responsibilities with regard to the Authority’s financial
regulations and contract standing orders;

The requirement for them to identify and evaluate all known
risks associated with the partner arrangements, and take action
deemed appropriate to deal with these risks;

Ensuring that project appraisal techniques are in place to
assess the viability of the project in terms of resources, staffing
and expertise;

Their role in agreeing and accepting formally the roles and
responsibilities of each of the partners involved before the
commencement of the project;

Their need to communicate regularly throughout the project so
that problems can be identified and shared to achieve their
successful resolution.

6.12.7 Managers should ensure that:

64

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 182



o Potential partners are assessed for the financial viability in the
same way as contractors;

¢ Internal audit roles and responsibilities are documented within
the contract documentation;

e Partners and contractors are made aware of the Authority’s
Whistleblowing and Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy
Statement, Strategy & Guidance Notes;

e Arrangements for ownership after the project has ended are
identified and documented;

e Partnership agreements and arrangements are appropriately
authorised and documented and do not impact adversely upon
the services provided by the Authority;

e Appropriate information is provided to the Executive Director
Corporate Services to enable a note to be entered into the
Authority’s statement of accounts concerning material matters;

e There are robust and transparent arrangements for partnership
governance which comply in all material respects with the
Council’s own rules on such matters;

e There are sound arrangements for monitoring, reviewing and
reporting upon the activies and performance of the
partnership;

e They refer to the indemnity and conduct/conflict of interest
issues;

e They maintain and update the partnership database for their
significant partnerships.

6.12.8 Corporate processes for approving, reviewing and reporting upon
partnership arrangements and commitments under these must be
complied with.

CONTACT: Head of Partnerships & Commissioning
6.13 Orders for Supply from External Sources

6.13.1 Official orders must be issued for all work, goods or services to be
supplied to the Council except:

Where a contract specifies otherwise;

Supplies of public utility services;

Payments such as rent or rates;

Petty cash purchases; or

Other exceptions approved by the Executive Director Corporate
Services.

6.13.2 Individuals must not use official orders to obtain goods or services
for their private use.

6.13.3 Official orders to suppliers for goods and services must be raised
on the Efinancials System and promptly issued to the

65

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 183



supplier/contractor. This ensures that the commitment is raised on
the financial system and so aids the control and monitoring of
budgets.

6.13.4 Verbal orders should only be given in urgent cases, and any such
order must be confirmed by an official order and endorsed
“Confirmation Order”. All authorised signatories together with any
restricting financial limits must be notified to the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

6.13.5 Orders must detail the work/goods/services ordered, refer to
appropriate terms and conditions, be priced in accordance with
estimates, quotations and so on, and contain the delivery address
which must be a Council property. Expenditure must be coded to
the correct detailed budget heading, even if there is no budget
under that heading or it has been committed, including those
required by statute or court order.

6.13.6 Before authorising an order the authorising officer must be satisfied
that best value has been achieved, goods/ services are appropriate
to the service and genuinely required, appropriate
quotations/tenders have been received and that there is
appropriate budget provision. For guidance where there is
insufficient budget provision, refer to the section on Budgets.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
6.14 Receiving Goods and Services
Deliveries

6.14.1 Any employee who accepts deliveries of goods must obtain a
delivery note, which should be signed by the supplier and receiver
at the time. The Chief Officer who ordered the supplies must
ensure they are checked as to quantity, quality and compliance
with specification at the time of delivery, or as soon as possible
thereafter. Where it is not possible to carry out this check at the
time of the delivery, the employee should ensure this is made clear
on the delivery note.

Goods Receipting

6.14.2 As soon after delivery as possible, the financial system must be
updated to show that the goods have been received (refer to the
Guidance on Separation of Duties). Receipting goods on the
financial system ensures that expenditure is accrued. This enables
managers to monitor and control their budgets more effectively.
The employee recording goods receipt on the financial system
must be satisfied that the quality, quantity and specification of the
goods/services delivered is as ordered.

66

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 184



6.15

6.16

| 647

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services, Operations Accountant
Advance Payments

6.15.1 Advance payments should only be used for minor supplies such as
course fees, seminars and publications. Chief Officers should
consult the Executive Director Corporate Services for advice if in
doubt. Where advance payment is made then the whole cost,
including VAT, must be charged to the expenditure code. The
Chief Officer must request an authenticated VAT receipt and send
it to the Executive Director Corporate Services to correct the
accounting entries.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
Funding to Voluntary & Community Sector Organisations

6.16.1 Funding to voluntary and community sector organisations can be
paid in advance (where appropriate). Where the provision of
services on behalf of Tamworth Borough Council is to be delivered
in partnership between a voluntary and community sector
organisation and a private sector organisation then, subject to an
appropriate partnership agreement being in place, funding can be
paid in advance. Performance management arrangements must
be stipulated in each funding agreement or contract in accordance
with the Tamworth Public Sector Commissioning Framework.
Evidence must be obtained for expenditure incurred.

CONTACT: Head of Partnerships & Commissioning
Orders-from-Internal Suppliers
8471 The-samebrnciclesaonby o orders frorpintemal susslicrs and

orders:

Some Definitions

6.187. The following table gives the definition of terms used in this
1 guidance.

Word Definition

Quotation | A value for the supply of a service, goods or materials
which must be held for a period of time.

Estimate | A value for the supply of a service, goods or materials
which may be varied following the supply. This is
appropriate where it is not possible to give a precise

67

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 185



quotation prior to the supply.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

68

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 186



|co ¢

Further Advice & Guidance

6.198. The Council employs a number of officers who have responsibilities
1 in a variety of areas connected with procurement and purchasing.
The following table is a quick reference guide.

Issue Contact Comments
Significant departure Executive
(either actual or Director
potential) from this Corporate
guidance Services,
Director of
Finance
Issue Contact Comments
Procurement and Director of Chief Officers must not enter into any
purchasing — general Finance arrangement for procuring works,
procedures/EU goods or services over the £50,000
procedures/joint tender threshold without seeking
procurement and guidance from the Director of Finance
partnerships at least six months in advance of the
proposed supply. The Procurement
Team can provide relevant advice and
guidance, including standard forms
and procedure details
Advice on control Head of
systems and Internal Audit
administration Services

The law and legal
opinion and sealing and
retention of documents

Solicitor to the
Council

Printing Requirements

Communicati
ons Manager

Chief Officers must not commit to
purchase external printing supplies
without consulting with the
Communications Manager

Information Technology | Director of Chief Officers must not commit to
Technology & | purchase IT supplies (hardware and
Corporate software) without consulting the
Programmes | Director of Technology & Corporate

Programmes

Coding, budgets, Executive

insurance, VAT, general | Director

ledger issues and Corporate

financial appraisals Services

CONTACT: Director of Finance

69

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 187




7.

Payment of Accounts
7.1 Introduction

7.1.1  One of the main requirements of a sound system of expenditure
control is that at any point in time, a budget holder knows:

a) What has been ordered, including the likely costs;
b) What has been received, and is therefore due for payment; and
c) What has been paid.

7.1.2  Small transactions can be dealt with from petty cash (see the section
Cash Advances etc), and in some situations, payments can be made
via direct debit or other electronic means — the Executive Director
Corporate Services will advise on these processes. This section of
the guidance deals with the most common form of payment, i.e.
payment by BACS or cheque drawn on the Council’s bank account.

7.1.3 All officers must encourage suppliers of goods and services to
receive payment by BACS — this is the most economical means for
the Authority.

7.1.4  Corporate credit cards can be used in the day to day business of the
Authority and are intended to facilitate transactions only in limited
circumstances. Corporate credit cards are to be used chiefly to
provide an alternative means of sourcing and paying for goods/
services in connection with official business of the Authority, and
may be used for purchases to obtain benefit of discount, payment via
the Internet etc. The Corporate Credit Card Procedures must be
followed.

7.1.5 All requests for direct debits against the Authority’s bank account
should be made via the Accountancy Section.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
7.2 Security & Good Practice

7.2.1  The Council’s credit payment system is set up so that the 3 stages of
order, goods receipt and payment to be separately processed with
password input and authorisation controls in line with the appendix
on Separation of Duties. Passwords are often used in place of
actual initials and signatures and must not be made known to any
other person (see also the Information Security Policy).

7.2.2 Each Chief Officer must inform the Executive Director Corporate
Services, in writing, of the names of employees permitted to
undertake each of the stages, to input orders, authorise orders and
confirm goods receipt. The Manager must promptly notify the
Executive Director Corporate Services of any changes, for example,

70

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 188



7.2.3

724

resignations. The Executive Director Corporate Services should
annually prompt each Chief Officer to review the named employees.

Chief Officers may also wish to limit the values input or authorised by
some employees, and/or restrict the expenditure codes which some
employees can access. This information should also be passed to
the Executive Director Corporate Services.

The Executive Director Corporate Services must ensure that the
payments system:

a) Conforms with the controls contained in the appendix on
Separation of Duties; and
b) Checks budget availability.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

7.3 Invoice Processing

7.31

7.3.2

7.3.3

7.3.4

7.3.5

7.3.6

Each Chief Officer must ensure that the receipt of any service,
material or item of goods is promptly recorded on the payment
system, and that, where applicable, stock records and inventories
are updated immediately.

Each Chief Officer must ensure that invoices received are promptly
passed to Corporate Services Directorate for processing. Any
disputed invoices should be notified to the Executive Director
Corporate Services immediately to aid performance monitoring.

Before any order is goods receipted, the officer receiving the
goods/services must satisfy themselves that the payment is properly
due, and that the work, goods or services have been received and/or
carried out in accordance with the order/contract/schedule of rates
and this has been evidenced.

Officers must ensure that in respect of charges for gas, electricity,
water etc adequate records are maintained to ensure the charges
are correct and the following checks are undertaken:

i)  Any standing charges are correct;

ii)  Consumption is charged on the correct tariff;

iii) That the consumption recorded is reasonable in light of current
and previous readings.

Officers should ensure that all credit notes are immediately claimed
against invoices or a cheque reimbursement should be requested.

The Accountancy Section will check the payee, prices, quantities,

trade discounts, other allowances, credits and tax are correct, not
previously paid, properly incurred and within the budget provision.

71

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 189



They will also check any copy/facsimile invoices to ensure that they
have not been previously paid and that payments are not made
against suppliers’ statement of accounts.

7.3.7 The Accountancy Section will ensure that where the invoice includes
VAT, it is correctly calculated. Where a VAT invoice is not supplied,
the full cost of the invoice including the VAT must be charged to the
budget code. The Chief Officer must ensure that an authenticated
VAT receipt is subsequently obtained to support this payment and
passed to the Accountancy Section immediately on receipt so that
the accounting entry can be adjusted.

7.3.8 The controls over invoice processing also applies to work done on
our behalf by partners.

Amendments

7.3.9 VAT invoices must not be amended. If an incorrect VAT invoice is
received, the supplier must be asked to send:

a) A corrected invoice, or
b) A credit note.

7.3.10 Any amendment to a non-VAT invoice must be made in ink and
initialled by the officer making it, stating reasons briefly where they
are not self-evident.

Year End

7.3.11 Each Chief Officer must ensure that where goods and services
(goods, materials, services and works, including electricity, gas,
water etc) have been received by 31% March, that commitment
orders and goods receipt notes have been processed within the
financial system.

7.3.12 Each Chief Officer must, as soon as possible after 31 March and
not later than 15 April in each year notify the Executive Director
Corporate Services of all outstanding expenditure relating to the
previous financial year. Outstanding expenditure consists of the
value of all goods, materials, services and works (including
electricity, gas, water etc) that has been received at 31%' March, but
has not yet been paid.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant
7.4 Electronic Payment Mechanisms
7.4.1 Payments to suppliers must be completed by BACS transfer, as it is

the most cost effective payment method. Payments will be made by
cheques in exceptional circumstances.

72

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 190



7.4.2 Information relating to suppliers bank details should be directed to
the Executive Director Corporate Services.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

73

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 191



8. Payment of Salaries & Allowances

8.1

Salaries

8.1.1

8.1.3

Salaries and other reimbursements are paid by the Director
Transformation & Corporate Performance on behalf of each Chief
Officer. The Director Transformation & Corporate Performance is
responsible for maintaining the establishment list of the Authority,
and for the details of standing payments to make. All forms of
payment must conform with Council policy and Chief Officers should
consult with the Director Transformation & Corporate Performance if
change is sought.

It is the responsibility of Chief Officers to ensure that adequate and
effective systems and procedures are operated so that:

a) Payments are only authorised to bona fide employees;

b) Payments are only made where there is a valid entitlement;

c) Conditions and contracts of employment are correctly applied;

d) Employees names listed on the payroll are checked at regular
intervals to verify accuracy and completeness.

Each Chief Officer must tell the Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance immediately of any changes to their employees or the
basis upon which they are employed. The Chief Officer is
accountable for any losses to the Council or hardships incurred by
an employee resulting from a failure to notify changes promptly.

Examples are:
i Appointments, resignations, dismissals, suspensions,

secondments and transfers;
ii Sickness and other absences apart from approved leave with

pay;

i Changes in pay etc, other than normal increments and general
pay awards;

iv Any changes that may affect pensions of employees/former
employees.

Chief Officers must ensure that all forms used to generate payments
are either as supplied by the Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance or are reviewed and sent annually for approval to the
Director Transformation & Corporate Performance. They must
ensure that completed forms are checked, calculations confirmed
and payments properly authorised. Otherwise payment will not be
made. Claims for payroll payments more than three pay periods
old, will not be considered unless approval is made by the Director
Transformation & Corporate Performance or the Executive Director
Corporate Services. Claims that do not meet pay deadlines (as

74

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 192



advised by the Director Transformation & Corporate Performance)
may not be paid until the following pay period.

8.1.5 In exceptional circumstances, for example, if likely to suffer severe
hardship, an employee may request their Chief Officer for an
advance of salary. The Chief Officer may wish to seek advice from
the Director Transformation & Corporate Performance or Executive
Director Corporate Services. If the request is supported, the Chief
Officer should ask the Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance to make the arrangements. The Director
Transformation & Corporate Performance should ensure that any
advance is recovered from the next payment due.

8.1.6 A Chief Officer may certify payment of overtime to officers on spinal
column point 35 and above only where prior written approval is
obtained from a member of the Corporate Management Team. This
would normally be in exceptional circumstances for work of a specific
nature such as in covering for a long-term vacancy.

8.1.7  Chief Officers may request additional payments such as honoraria
for additional responsibility incurred by employees. These must be
approved by the Chief Executive for a period of up to six months who
should inform the Director Transformation & Corporate Performance
of the basis for such payments.

8.1.8 All payroll transactions should be processed through the payroll
system. Chief Officers should give careful consideration to the
employment status of individuals employed on a self-employed
consultant or subcontract basis. All such matters should be referred
to the Director Transformation & Corporate Performance for
guidance.

8.1.9 The Director Transformation & Corporate Performance must be
notified of details of any employee benefits in kind, to enable full and
complete reporting within the income tax self assessment system.

CONTACT: Payroll Manager

8.2 Intermediaries Legislation (IR35)

8.2.1 Changes to the way the current intermediaries’ legislation (IR35)
applied to off-payroll working in the public sector came in to effect
from April 2017. Where the rules apply, people who work in the
public sector through an intermediary will pay employment taxes in a
similar way to employees.

8.2.2 Chief Officers are required to complete the following duties:

Determine whether off-payroll working rules should apply and when
there are contractual changes

75

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 193



Where using an agency or other third party to provide labour,
notifying them whether off-payroll working rules should apply to the
contract they have with the worker

Where it does not reply to the written request from an agency or third
party as the whether the off-payroll rules apply within 31 days,
becoming responsible for accounting for PAYE as if it were a fee-

payer

8.2.3 If you are requesting a supplier to carry out services or labour on
your behalf you will need to carry out a check as to whether the
supplier should be paid as if they were an employee under the IR35
legislation. Detailed guidance on IR35 is available here and must be
followed.

8.23 Allowances and Expense Claims

| 8.23.1 Employees must submit expense claims in the pay period after which
they were incurred in order to assist budget monitoring. Because of
the difficulty in verifying old claims, claims more than three pay
periods old, will not be considered unless approval is made by the
Director Transformation & Corporate Performance or the Executive
Director Corporate Services. Claims that do not meet pay deadlines
(as advised by the Director Transformation & Corporate
Performance) may not be paid until the following pay period. All car
allowance claims must be supported with a VAT invoice for the fuel
used.

8.23.2 Managers must only authorise claims they can certify as being
correct — i.e. journeys were authorised, expenses necessarily
incurred and claims are properly payable by the Council. The
accuracy of any mileage claims and any calculations must be
checked. Therefore, it is essential that all car allowance claims
forms must show details of the trip undertaken, the duties carried
out, both the opening and closing odometer readings and the
deduction of any “ordinary commuting miles” (if applicable).
Managers must also ensure that officers claiming both casual and
essential allowances have appropriate and up to date documents to
include a valid driving licence, certificate of motor insurance that
covers business use, valid MOT and vehicle registration document.

8.32.3 Chief Officers should ensure that the most appropriate means of
travel in terms of cost and benefit is used. For example, long
journeys may be better undertaken by train, for example, to reduce
the length of the working day or allow the employee to work during
the journey (see guidance on Subsistence Policy).

8.32.4 Where subsistence and other associated travel expenses are

claimed, they must be supported by VAT receipts. The Council will
not reimburse any expenditure relating to alcohol. Guidance on

76

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 194



| 8.34

8.32.5

8.32.6

subsistence rates that can be claimed can be found in the
Subsistence Policy which is appended to this guidance. The
maximum limits will be updated on an annual basis in line with the
RPI.

Claims relating to Post Entry Training must be sent to the Director
Transformation & Corporate Performance to authorise the claim.
The Chief Officer must ensure the scheme is authorised and an
agreement has been signed by the employee. Where the scheme
provides for the repayment of expenses, the Director Transformation
& Corporate Performance must arrange recovery of any sums due
before the employee leaves. The Organisational Development Unit
will supply guidance on amounts that can be claimed on an annual
basis.

Personal expenses incurred in entertaining guests will not be
reimbursed without the prior approval of the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

CONTACT: Payroll Manager

Members Allowances

8.34.1

8.43.2

8.43.3

The Solicitor to the Council must check and certify claims submitted
by Members. They must give the Director Transformation &
Corporate Performance details of regular payments, such as
responsibility allowances, and must immediately notify any changes.
Expenses claims must be submitted monthly to aid budget
monitoring. Expenses claim forms must be completed in full, e.g.
detailing journeys made, opening and closing odometer readings and
any other expenses claimed. Claims can only be made for approved
duties as defined in the Constitution. All car allowance claims must
be supported with a VAT invoice for the fuel used. Claims in excess
of three months will not be considered unless approved by the
Executive Director Corporate Services or the Chief Executive.

Members wishing to attend a conference etc must advise the
Solicitor to the Council, after consultation with the Cabinet if
necessary, who may approve the payment of the cost of attendance
at Conferences and training events and the payment of travelling,
subsistence and attendance allowance(s) in the rates prescribed by
the Secretary of State.

Wherever possible the Chief Officer should arrange overnight
conference accommodation on behalf of Members and ensure
invoices are sent direct to the Council.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council

77

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 195



9. Cash Advances, Cash Floats and Petty Cash

9.1

9.2

Purpose

9.1.1

Small amounts of cash currently need to be held in service units to:

a) Provide a cash float in tills;
b) Pay minor expenses.

Processes

9.2.1

9.2.2

9.2.3

9.24

9.2.5

9.2.6

9.2.7

A Chief Officer needing a cash advance must send a written request to
the Executive Director Corporate Services. The manager receiving the
cash advance must sign for the receipt of all cash advances. A copy of
the receipt must be forwarded to the Finance section for accounting
purposes. They are responsible for the security of the cash and may be
held responsible for making good any shortages.

Only minor items of expenditure may be paid out of petty cash. Petty
cash must not be used to carry out recurring purchases of a similar
nature. Chief Officers must not authorise any individual payment over
£100 without the agreement of the Executive Director Corporate
Services or the Director of Finance. @ Where reimbursement of
expenditure exceeds £100, this should be processed through the payroll
system. Claims for expenses should be completed using the expenses
claim form. VAT receipts for all expenses must be attached. Expenses
will be reimbursed through the Payroll system with salary payments.

Payments out of petty cash must be supported by a receipt or other
voucher. Wherever possible a VAT receipt should be obtained. Income
received must not be paid into a petty cash account.

The Chief Officer must keep full records of all transactions. Records
must be kept fully up-to-date, showing the current balance in the
account. The expenditure details and receipts/vouchers must be sent to
the Executive Director Corporate Services with the claim for
reimbursement.

The Chief Officer must ensure that the balance is checked at least
monthly by an officer without other responsibilities for petty cash. All
checks made should be evidenced. Any discrepancies must be
investigated and reported as necessary.

At 31" March each year the officer carrying out the check must send
written confirmation to the Executive Director Corporate Services of the
balance held and an explanation of any discrepancy.

No float should be used to cash personal cheques or make personal
loans. The only payments in to the account are for the reimbursement

78

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 196



of the float and any change relating to purchase where an advance has
been made.

9.2.8 Any transfers of floats between officers should be evidenced by
signature of both parties involved and a copy retained by the transferor.
A copy should be sent to the Executive Director Corporate Services to
ensure that records remain up to date.

CONTACT: Director of Finance

79

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 197



10.

Income, Charging and Debts
10.1 Fees & Charges

10.1.1 Directors must consider charging policies and current levels of
charge each year as part of the service and financial planning
process. The presumption is that the value of fees and charges will
be maintained in real terms over time and reviewed annually, as a
minimum, with necessary adjustments.

The setting and reviewing of fees, charges and other income sources
must be_carried out annually in line with the requirements of the Fees
and Charges Policy and must be authorised in accordance with the
detail set out in the Constitution and the Scheme of Delegation.

10.1.2 Proposals for new fees and charges must be considered within the
financial planning process, or, where necessary, as an in-year
change authorised in accordance with the detail set out in the
Constitution and the Scheme of Delegation.

Proposals for new fees and charges must be analysed using the
guidance set out in the Fees and Charges Policy. This guidance is to
be used as the authorisation process for the setting of fees and
charges and must be authorised by an authorised officer in
accordance with the Constitution and Scheme of Delegation.

10.1.32 Chief Officers must ensure that all relevant charges are clearly
displayed at service payment points. Employees must charge all
people using the service the approved amounts.

| 10.1.43 All VAT due should be correctly identified and accounted for.
CONTACT: Director of Finance
10.2 Receiving Payment

10.2.1 The Council accepts payment by cheque, debit card, credit card and
cash (cash is only accepted at certain locations). Officers handling
payments must follow the procedures below and any local
procedures, including those needed for computerised systems. They
must complete all records fully and accurately at the time. Chief
Officers must ensure adequate local procedures are in place at all
stages, having sought necessary advice from the Executive Director
Corporate Services.

10.2.2 Ideally, subject to adequate controls, income should be received in
advance or at the time of service provision.

80

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 198



10.2.3

10.2.4

10.2.5

10.2.6

10.2.7

10.2.8

10.2.9

10.2.10

10.2.11

10.2.12

Where possible, a forged note detector should be used.
Cash drawers should be closed in between transactions.

Supervisory keys for cash registers should be held by supervising
officers and not by cashiers.

All voids, refunds and exceptions should be reviewed by the
supervising officer and this review should be evidenced.

All Methods

The officer must immediately issue an official receipt or ticket.
Change may only be given for payment of cash.

All official receipts should be properly controlled and accounted for.

All official receipts should be in a format approved by the Executive
Director Corporate Services.

Transfers of cash between staff must be evidenced by signature of
both staff involved and a copy retained by the transferor.

Cheque Payment Against An Invoice/Account

The officer must ensure the cheque is:

a) Made payable to “Tamworth Borough Council” (and should be
crossed account payee only);

b) Dated correctly;

c) The correct amount;

d) Signed;

And the officer must:

e) Record on the back of the cheque the receipt number (and
location if necessary) and payment/invoice reference.

Cheque — Other Payment

As well as the above requirements the officer must ensure:

a) The cheque is signed at the counter;
b) The cheque card is presented with
¢ The same signature
e The same code number as the cheque
o Avalid expiry date
¢ Alimit sufficient to cover the cheque
And the officer must:
c) Record the card number on the back of the cheque.

Debit and Credit Cards

81

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 199



10.2.13 For payments in person the officer must ensure:

a) The card has not expired;

b) The receipt signature matches the card signature;

c) The card is not on a current stop listing (or if so, follow the
instructions with the listing);

d) The receipt number is recorded against the transaction;

e) The credit card surcharge is recovered in line with approved

policy.
10.2.14 For telephone payments the officer must ensure:

a) That payments are processed at the time of call;
b) All relevant security checks are completed.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant

10.3 Postal Payments

10.3.1 All post is to be opened centrally in the designated post room.
Exceptions to this include private and confidential post and where it is
deemed that post should not be opened.

10.3.2 Post must only be opened when two officers are present.

10.3.3 All income received through the post should be recorded immediately
on to the cash receipting system.

CONTACT: Head of Customer Service
10.4 Cashing-Up Procedures

10.4.1 At each payment point, the Chief Officer must ensure there are
adequate daily cashing-up procedures. The two stages should be
carried out by two different employees. The cashier should total the
contents of the till and, by deducting the cash float, find out the day’s
takings. A second officer should confirm the actual cash takings with
the total takings recorded on the receipts given out. Signatures of
both officers involved should be recorded on the paying in slip. The
local supervisor must immediately investigate any material
discrepancies and advise the Chief Officer, the Executive Director
Corporate Services and the Head of Internal Audit Services. All
discrepancies must be recorded in a cashier’'s over/unders book,
signed daily by the supervisor.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services

82

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 200



10.5 Depositing Money

10.5.1 All money received must be banked direct. Employees must follow
guidance from the Executive Director Corporate Services on cash
collection, control, deposit and records.

10.5.2 Chief Officers/employees must ensure that all money received is
deposited in full, without anything being deducted. For example cash
from a till must never be used to meet petty cash expenses or to top-
up petty cash.

10.5.3 If there is a need to depart from this rule, the Chief Officer must given
the written authorisation of the Executive Director Corporate Services.

10.5.4 Takings should be banked daily. Where this is not practicable Chief
Officers may agree an alternative arrangement with the Executive
Director Corporate Services, provided:

a) Takings are banked at least weekly; and
b) Maximum cash holdings specified by the Executive Director
Corporate Services (for insurance purposes) are not exceeded.

10.5.5 The cashier must prepare a daily cash summary/ return and attach
relevant till readings or equivalent. The return must detail the amount
of cash and the amount in cheques. A supervising officer must verify
this return.

10.5.6 Chief Officers must in any event ensure maximum cash holdings are
not exceeded.

10.5.7 The cashier must certify the paying in slip, which should be checked
and evidenced by a supervising officer.

10.5.8 Where banking bags are used, seals and the authority’s details should
be recorded in accordance with the collection company’s procedures.

CONTACT: Operations Accountant
10.6 Money Laundering
10.6.1 Money laundering is the term used for a number of offences involving
the proceeds of crime and terrorist funds. The following acts constitute
the act of money laundering:
e Concealing, disguising, converting, transferring or removing
criminal property from England and Wales, or from Scotland, or

from Northern Ireland;

e Becoming concerned in an arrangement in which someone
knowingly suspects or facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or

83

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 201



control of criminal property by or on behalf of another person;
e Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property.

10.6.2 Although the term “money laundering” is generally used when
describing the activities of organised crime — for which the legislation
and regulations were first and foremost introduced — to most people
who are likely to come across it or be affected by it, it involves a
suspicion that someone they know, or know of, is benefiting financially
from dishonest activities.

10.6.3 A likely indicator that money Iaundermg may be taking place is the

deposit of large amounts of cash. Formatted: Font: Bold

cash-is£5;000To help prevent money laundering, the Council has
set a cash payment limit of £5,000. No cash payments above
£5,000 are to be accepted by any Council service. Any large cash
payments that raise concern below this amount should be brought to
the attention of the Solicitor to the Council, however attempt to pay
above this amount must be approved by the Solicitor to the Council_or,
the Executive Director Corporate Services.

10.6.4 The Council will do all it can to prevent, wherever possible, the
organisation and its staff from being exposed to money laundering to
identify potential areas where it may occur, and to comply with all legal
and regulatory requirements; especially with regard to the reporting of
actual or suspected cases. However, it is every member of staff's
responsibility to be vigilant.

10.6.5 The Solicitor the Council is the nominated officer to act as the
Council's Money Laundering Reporting Officer.

10.6.6 If a case of money laundering is suspected, the Solicitor to the Council
should be consulted immediately.

CONTACT: Solicitor to the Council
10.7 Invoices, Debtors and Other Sums Due

10.7.1 It is the responsibility of each Service Unit to ensure that income for
services etc is received prior to the service being completed. Where
payment in advance is not possible, all necessary information in order
to raise an account should be obtained from the customer prior to the
provision of the service, except where statute dictates otherwise.

10.7.2 All Service Units must maintain a record of why the account has been
raised. All accounts must be accurately created either prior to the
service being delivered or, in the case of post-service charging, within
5 working days of the delivery of the service. Where possible, debtor
accounts should not be raised for less than £100 in accordance with
the Corporate Credit Policy.

84

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 202



10.7.3 It is essential that all accounts issued are timely; therefore, accounts
raised after the service has been completed should be raised within
five working days.

10.7.4 Timescales for the recovery process are detailed in the Corporate
Credit Policy.

10.7.5 At the start of each financial year, Chief Officers must promptly supply
information to the Executive Director Corporate Services on amounts
due where a debtors account has not yet been raised for the previous
financial year within the required deadlines.

Credit Policy
10.7.6 Cabinet, on 25 April 2007, approved a new Corporate Credit Policy .
Chief Officers must ensure appropriate local guidance is in place and
employees must follow the Policy and the local guidance.
CONTACT: Head of Revenues
10.8 Debt Write-Off

10.8.1 Debts can only be written-off in line with the appropriate policy — e.g.,
the Corporate Credit Policy.

10.8.2 Except where an approved policy dictates otherwise, the following
authorisations are needed to write-off debt:

Authority Limit
Chief Officer Up to £5,000

(or authorised delegated officer)

Executive Director Corporate Services £5,001 - £10,000

Cabinet Over £10,000

Note that these limits apply to each transaction.

All write-offs should be completed with adherence to the Accounts &
Audit Regulations 2011.

An annual report of write-offs between 5,001 and £10,000 should be
submitted to Council for information.

CONTACT: Head of Revenues

85

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 203



11

Assets and Equipment

An up to date asset register is a pre requisite for proper fixed asset accounting and
sound asset management. Assets need to be valued in accordance with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: (CIPFA/LASAAC
based on International Financial Reporting Standards). Any assets purchased with a
value of over £10,000 should be notified in writing to the Executive Director Corporate
Services so that they can be added to the asset register.

CONTACT: Director of Finance
11.1 Responsibilities

11.1.1  Each Chief Officer is responsible for the records, use and storage of all
assets and equipment within their control and/or used in their service
delivery. Each Chief Officer must ensure that a physical check of all
significant assets and equipment is undertaken on at least an annual
basis to confirm their location and condition and to ensure that
inventory records are accurate. This check should be evidenced.

11.1.2 Each Chief Officer must ensure that inventory records are maintained
for all assets and equipment in any format specified by the Executive
Director Corporate Services, to ensure the details shown below are
included in each case and that all appropriate items are clearly and
securely marked.

Inventory details:

Description

Purchase date

Purchase price

Serial number (if applicable)
Asset number (if applicable)
Condition

Date of disposal

11.1.3 Chief Officers should ensure that contingency plans for the security of
assets and continuity of service in the event of a disaster or system
failure are in place.

11.1.4 In order to comply with the International Financial Reporting
Standards, managers are required to consult with the Executive
Director Corporate Services prior to entering into an agreement on any
rentals, leases or use of assets to or from the authority, especially
where financial/operating leases are entered into as more
advantageous financing could be sought.

CONTACT: Director Of Finance

86

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 204



11.2 Scope

11.2.1 Al furniture, fittings, equipment and plant and machinery with an
original and individual value of £50 or more should be included, with
the sole exception of Information Technology (IT) hardware and
software, which must be recorded by the Director Technology &
Corporate Programmes. Chief Officers should consider whether it is
appropriate to include other items of a portable and desirable nature
which may have a lower value.

11.2.2 Any change in the use or location of any IT hardware and software
must be completed by the Technology & Corporate Programmes
Service who will update their records accordingly.

11.3 Use

11.3.1 Items are only to be used on Council business and in line with
accepted procedures and manufacturers instructions, and must not be
removed without the specific approval of the Chief Officers.

11.4 Disposal

11.4.1 The disposal of all surplus items must be in line with the following
guidelines which should be applied by:

a) The Director Technology & Corporate Programmes for all IT
equipment;

b) The Chief Officer for all other items;

c) The Executive Director Corporate Services for all other items with
a value in excess of £1,000.

11.4.2 Each Chief Officer must record the disposal details on the inventory
records and must maintain adequate records such as receipts and
formal bids. Disposals should be notified to the Executive Director
Corporate Services to ensure that appropriate accounting entries are
made to remove the value of disposed assets from the authority’'s
records and to include the sale proceeds if appropriate.

Disposal Guidelines

11.4.3 A disposal policy is in place for the disposal of land and property
(Asset Disposal Policy). The Asset Disposal Policy must be followed
in these instances.

The disposal of any other surplus assets or equipment should be
arranged in the manner most useful to the Council, taking into account
the value, condition and usefulness of the item. Further guidance is
appended.

87

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 205



11.4.4 All IT equipment must be passed to the Technology & Corporate
Programmes Service for disposal to ensure that all information
retained on disk drive is deleted in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 1998.

11.4.5 Particular care must be taken to ensure the Council is not exposed to
risk, for example by passing on unsafe items to another body. Any
internal sale must be scrupulously fair and open. The guide to the
disposal of assets (excluding land and buildings) is appended to this
guidance. Advice is available from the Head of Internal Audit Services
or Director Assets & Environment.

CONTACT: Director of Finance, Head of Internal Audit Services, Director of
Assets & Environment

88

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 206



12. Stocks & Stores

12.1

12.2

Responsibilities

1211

12.1.2

12.1.3

The aim of controls over stocks and stores is to ensure:

a) Necessary materials are available when they are needed;
b) Purchase costs are minimised;

c) Stock holding costs are minimised;

d) Waste and other loss is minimised;

To achieve this Chief Officers must ensure:

a) The correct quantities are purchased at the correct times (to gain
discounts and avoid delivery and administration costs);
b) Excessive levels are not held (taking account of shelf life, storage
costs and service needs);
c) Stocks are held and handled securely;
d) Adequate records are maintained including:
i) purchases and additions
ii) issues
iiil) write-offs.

The Executive Director Corporate Services can advise on these
matters, particularly on the financial records.

Chief Officers must also ensure that movements of stores are properly
authorised and documented and that the records note the employee(s)
involved in the process. The Head of Internal Audit Services can
advise on these aspects.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services

Stocktaking

12.2.1

12.2.2

12.2.3

All stock must be checked at least once a year at the end of the
financial year in order to compare actual levels to recorded levels and
Chief Officers should consider more frequent checks of valuable,
desirable and portable items. Large stores, such as those held at the
depots, could achieve this by an agreed process of rolling stocktakes.
The Head of Internal Audit Services will advise if necessary.

Stocktakes must be monitored and checked by employees who are
independent of the storekeeping roles. This checking role must
include the comparison of actual stocks to the recorded levels.

All discrepancies should be investigated by the line manager. Any

material discrepancies (over £100 or desirable commodities) should be
reported to the Executive Director Corporate Services who will advise

89

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 207



on the appropriate procedures to follow, and who may inform the Head
of Internal Audit Services of the facts.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services
12.3 Obsolete and Unserviceable stock

12.3.1 The disposal of stocks and stores should be in line with the guidance
contained in the section on Assets and Equipment.

12.3.2 Obsolete/damaged stock should be written off prior to year-end and
should not be included in year-end stock balances.

12.4 Intellectual Property

12.4.1 Intellectual property is a generic term that includes inventions and
writing. If these are created by the employee during the course of
employment, then, as a general rule, they belong to the employer, not
the employee. Various acts of Parliament cover different types of
intellectual property.

12.4.2 Certain activities undertaken within the Authority may give rise to items
that may be patentable, for example, software development. These
items are collectively known as intellectual property.

12.4.3 Chief Officers must ensure that controls are in place to ensure that
staff do not carry out private work in Council time and that staff are
aware of an employer’s rights with regard to intellectual property.

CONTACT: Head of Internal Audit Services, Director Technology & Corporate
Programmes

90

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 208



13. Security

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

13.10

13.11

All staff must wear their ID pass at all times within Council establishments.
Identification should be requested for all visitors to Council establishments.
Where applicable, visitors must sign the visitors book both on entry and exit of
the building. If appropriate, the visitor must be provided with an identification
badge which must be returned on departure. The person issuing the badge
should ensure that the badge is returned.

All temporary identification badges should be retained securely.

All building alarms should be linked to the Police Station or directly to the alarm
company. Managers should ensure that these links are maintained.

The knowledge of alarm codes should be restricted to relevant staff. Each
member of staff must have their own ID for the alarm. If a member of staff
leaves the Authority, their ID should be deleted from the system.

Alarm usage reports should be generated on a regular basis. These reports
should be reviewed by management who must evidence this review.

All cash handling areas should be secured. All access to cash areas should be
locked and access restricted to authorised staff.

Safes should be located out of sight of the public and should be locked at all
times. Access to safes must be restricted to authorised personnel. Each
member of staff needing access to the safe must be issued with a key. The
issue of safe keys should be documented detailing the date issued and the
holder. The holder must sign for the receipt of the key. Safe keys must not be
retained on the premises overnight. Retention of safe keys on unoccupied
premises renders the insurance invalid.

Any transfer of keys between staff should be recorded. On termination or
transfer of employment, all keys issued to that member of staff should be
handed back to the line manager. The key register should be updated to
reflect the hand over.

Managers are responsible for ensuring that the cash limit for the safe is not
exceeded.

Where a cash collection company is used, managers are responsible for
ensuring that the names and signatures of the cash collection staff are up to
date.

Further guidance on physical and environmental security is contained within
the Information Security Policy.

CONTACT: Director of Assets & Environment

91

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 209



14. Data Quality

141 All employees have a responsibility for ensuring the information we process is
accurate and up to date. The Data Quality Policy addresses this.

14.2  The consequence of poor quality of data impacts not only the way the Council
works, but also anyone who conducts their business with us.

14.3 Data Quality Standards possess six essential characteristics, these are:

° Completeness — Data quality systems should have in place monitoring to
ensure that no data is missing, incomplete or invalid records included.

e Accurate — Data should be accurate for the purpose it is intended, and to
be captured as close to the source as possible.

e Validity — Data should be compliant with requirements and within the
parameters laid down in any criteria.

o Reliability — Data should be consistent across all collection points and
over time. Appropriate controls should be in place to check
outputs/inputs, sampling and is compliant with the criteria set out.

. Timeliness — Data should be captured as soon as possible, and available
to recipients within the agreed timeframe.

° Relevance — Data captured should be relevant to the purpose for which it
is used. Reviews need to take place to ensure the quality reflects any
changing needs.

CONTACT: Corporate Information Security Manager

92

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

Page 210



15 Equality Impact Assessment

Is this a new or existing policy?

Existing

1. Briefly describe the aims,
objectives and purpose of the
policy?

To promote best value, service delivery and
delivery of the Council’s vision;

To provide sound arrangements for all the
Council’s financial affairs and to be able to
demonstrate that proper controls are in place;
To safeguard Members and officers by setting
out procedures which meet the Council’s
expected standards.

2. Are there any associated
olicy/ procedure/ practice which
hould be considered whilst

asarrying out this equality impact

assessment?

. Who is intended to benefit
Htrom this policy and in what way?

TBC Employees

Council — improved efficiency, increased
resilience

Council customers — VFM

4. What are the desired outcomes
from this policy?

Transparency, consistency of application

5. What factors/ forces could
contribute/ detract from the
outcomes?

Different management interpretations of the
guidance
ICT not available

6. Who are the main stakeholders
in relation to the policy?

All employees and Chief Officers of TBC,
members, contractors, partners and residents

93

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

"~ 1 Formatted: Left: 2.54 cm, Right:

2.54 cm, Top: 3.17 cm, Bottom: 3.17
cm, Width: 29.7 cm, Height: 21 cm




of the borough

7. Which individuals/ groups
have been/ will be consulted with
on this policy?

Chief Officers, members

8. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact on racial groups?

9. Are there concerns that the
policy/ procedure/ practice could
have a differential impact due to
gender?

0. Are there concerns that the
olicy could have a differential
mpact due to them being

transgender or transsexual?

1X1. Are there concerns that the
Ndolicy could have a differential
impact due to disability?

12. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact due to sexual orientation?

13. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact due to age?

14. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact due to religious belief?

15. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

94




impact on Gypsies/ Travellers?

16. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact due to dependant/caring
responsibilities?

17. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact due to them having an
offending past?

18. Are there concerns that the
policy could have an impact on
children or vulnerable adults?

19. Does any of the differential
[Wmpact identified cut across the
%quality strands (e.g. elder BME

(groups)?

F20. Could the differential impact
entified in 8 — 19 amount to
there being the potential for
adverse impact in this policy/
procedure/ practice?

21. Can this adverse impact be
justified:

e on the grounds of
promoting equality of
opportunity for one
group?

N/A

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

95




e For any other reason?

22. As aresult of carrying out the N
equality impact assessment is
there a requirement for further
consultation?

23 As aresult of this EIA should |Y
this policy be recommended for
implementation in its current
state?

v T2 abed

| Revised March 20167 — Approved Audit & Governance 31/03/16

96




Agenda Iltem 16

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 1 JUNE 2017

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 2016/17 4™ QUARTER AND ANNUAL
REPORT

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None
PURPOSE

To report on the outcome of Internal Audit’s review of the Internal Control, Risk
Management and Governance Framework in the 4th quarter and the 2016/17
financial year — to provide Members with assurance of the ongoing effective
operation of an internal audit function and enable any particularly significant issues to
be brought to the Committee’s attention.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee considers the attached report and raises any issue it
deems appropriate.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require each local authority to publish an
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) with its Annual Statement of Accounts. The
AGS is required to reflect the various arrangements within the Authority for providing
assurance on the Internal Control, Risk Management and Governance Framework
within the organisation, and their outcomes.

One of the sources of assurance featured in the AGS is the professional opinion of
the Head of Internal Audit Services on the outcome of service reviews. Professional
good practice recommends that this opinion be given periodically throughout the year
to inform the Annual Governance Statement. This opinion is given on a quarterly
basis to the Audit & Governance Committee.

Annual Audit Opinion

| am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow us to
draw a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes.

Overall in my opinion, based upon the reviews performed during the year, the
Authority has:

- adequate and effective risk management arrangements;

- adequate and effective governance; and
- has adequate and effective control processes.

Page 215



Specific Issues

No specific issues have been highlighted through the work undertaken by Internal
Audit during 2016/17.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
None
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS

Failure to report would lead to non-compliance with the requirements of the Annual
Governance Statement and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers, Head of Internal Audit Services

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Internal Audit Performance Report 2016/17

Appendix 2 Percentage of Management Actions Agreed 2016/17
Appendix 3 Implementation of Agreed Management Actions 2016/17

Page 216



INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT — 4th QUARTER - 2016/17

1. INTRODUCTION

Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to
add value and improve an organisation's operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. (Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards)

Internal Audit’s role is to provide independent assurance to the Council that systems are in
place and are operating effectively.

Every local authority is statutorily required to provide an adequate and effective internal audit
function. The Internal Audit service provides this function at this Authority.

This brief report aims to ensure that Committee members are kept aware of the
arrangements operated by the Internal Audit service to monitor the control environment
within the services and functions of the authority, and the outcome of that monitoring. This is
to contribute to corporate governance and assurance arrangements and ensure compliance
with statutory and professional duties, as Internal Audit is required to provide periodic reports
to “those charged with governance”.

2. PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESSION AGAINST AUDIT PLAN

The Internal Audit service aims as one of its main Performance Indicators (PI's) to complete
work on at least 90% of applicable planned audits by the end of the financial year, producing
draft reports on these where possible/necessary. Appendix 1 shows the progress at the end
of 4th quarter of the year of the work completed against the plan and highlights the work
completed. The original audit plan identified 55 audits to be completed, the plan has been
revised to include 2 additional audits not originally identified on the audit plan and 2 audits
that needed to be cancelled for operational reasons. At the end of the 4th quarter of the
year, internal audit have commenced/completed 52 audits. This equates to 95% of the
revised annual plan (specific reviews). 20 implementation reviews were identified in the
original audit plan, the service has completed 32 up to the end of the fourth quarter of the
financial year.

The service also reports quarterly on the percentage of draft reports issued within 15 working
days of the completion of fieldwork. All (100%) of the draft reports issued in this quarter of
the year were issued within this deadline.

3. AUDIT REVIEWS COMPLETED 2016/17

Appendix 2 details the number of recommendations made. A total of 31 recommendations
were made in the fourth quarter with 31 (100%) of the recommendations being accepted by
management.

The service revisits areas it has audited around 6 months after agreeing a final report on the
audit, to test and report to management on the extent to which agreed actions have been
taken. Four implementation reviews and three 2™ implementation reviews were completed
during the 4th quarter of 2016/17. Appendix 3 details the implementation progress to date
for the 4th quarter of the financial year with 74% (43/58) implemented/partially implemented
at 1% implementation review and 62% (8/13) implemented/partially implemented at 2™
implementation review. Two recommendations not implemented at 2™ implementation
review were high priority and management have agreed revised implementation dates for all

Page 217



outstanding recommendations. Internal Audit is fairly satisfied with the progress made by
management to reduce the level of risk and its commitment to progress the outstanding
issues.

Year End Summary Information 2016/17 Target
Percentage of Audit Plan completed 95% 90%
Draft reports issued within 15 working days 100% 100%
Percentage of recommendation accepted by 98.7% 97%
management

Percentage of recommendations due implemented 84% -

4, INDEPENDENCE OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY

Attribute Standards 1110 to 1130 in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that
Internal Audit have organisational and individual independence and specifically state that the
head of Internal Audit Services must confirm this to the Audit & Governance Committee at
least annually. As performance is reported quarterly, this confirmation will be provided
quarterly.

The Head of Internal Audit Services confirms that Internal Audit is operating independently of
management and is objective in the performance of internal audit work.

5 DEVELOPMENTS DURING 2016/17
During 2016/17, Internal Audit has carried out the following:

¢ Completed the annual risk based audit plan in accordance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards;

e Produced a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme;

e Given an assurance opinion for each audit completed, and a revised opinion
on the completion of implementation reviews based upon Internal Audit’s
assessment of the control environment;

e Reported quarterly to the Audit & Governance Committee on progress against
the audit plan;

¢ Continued to work with management to develop risk management;

¢ Provided an opinion on the internal control environment for the Annual
Governance Statement;

e Continued to complete service enhancements mainly through the use of the
Covalent Audit Module;

e Continued to Provide Audit Management Services to Lichfield District Council.

6 DEVELOPMENTS FOR 2017/18

The work of the Internal Audit Service will continue to be driven by the regulatory
requirements of local government finance and the corporate and operational risks facing the
Council. The Service is always looking to continuously improve its service and add value to
management through regular audit to improve internal controls and identify efficiencies in
their services. During 2017/18 we will complete the following:

e Comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards; after the recently
completed external assessment of the service, complete the service
improvements identified;

¢ Complete the internal audit plan in accordance with the performance
indicators;

¢ Continue to work with management to improve risk management;

Page 218



e Continue to complete service enhancements to provide an efficient service;
e Continue to provide Internal Audit Management service to Lichfield District
Council.

OVERALL CURRENT INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION

“I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow us to
draw a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes.

Overall in my opinion, based upon the reviews performed during the year, the
Authority has:

- adequate and effective risk management arrangements;

- adequate and effective governance; and

- has adequate and effective control processes.

Specific issues:

There were no specific issues highlighted through the work of Internal Audit in the fourth
quarter of the 2017/18 financial year that would need to be highlighted as a corporate risk

Angela Struthers,
Head of Internal Audit Services

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Performance Report 2016/17

Report Type: Audit File Report
Report Author: Angela Struthers
Generated on: 20 April 2017

Tce abed

Title
NNDR

Audit Status Description

Mo Value = 3
(5%)

Cancelled = 2
(4%)

Completed = 286
(659)

Original Plan

| Started = 14
(25%)

Directorate Description

Finance

Audit Status

4

Revised Plan

Appendix 1

Tamworth

Audit Status Description

Mo Value = 3
(5%)

Completed = 38
(69%)

Completed

Audit Assurance Type

Main financial system - full

| Started = 14
(259%)

Audit Assurance Level

Reasonable @

Borough Council



Title

Bank Reconciliation & Cash
Collection

Housing Repairs QTR 4

Treasury Management QTR 4
2015/16

Community Development
IT Governance

QB Application Review

Q
%rporate Business Continuity

N

%ephony Project
Implementation Review

Tell Us Policy

Castle

Housing Rents

Payroll

Creditors & Procurement

Housing Repairs QTR 1

Directorate Description

Finance

Housing & Health

Finance

Communities, Planning &
Partnerships

Technology & Corporate
Programmes

Technology & Corporate
Programmes

Technology & Corporate
Programmes

Technology & Corporate
Programmes

Transformation &
Corporate Performance

Communities, Planning &
Partnerships

Housing & Health

Transformation &
Corporate Performance

Finance

Housing & Health

Audit Status

4

4
4

CeL €4 € € € € < K«

Completed

Completed

Completed

Started

Completed

Completed

Started

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Audit Assurance Type

Main financial system - full

Main financial system - interim

Main financial system - interim

System based review

Information Technology

Information Technology

System based review

Information Technology

System based review

System based review

Main financial system - full

Main financial system - full

Main financial system - interim

Main financial system - interim

Audit Assurance Level

Substantial @@

Limited g
o9

Substantial

Cancelled

Limited (A
Limited (A

None
Limited

Reasonable

Reasonable

Reasonable

O 00 P> @

Reasonable



Title

Housing Repairs QTR 2

Main Accounting & Budgetary
Control

Property Contracts QTR 1
Council Tax

Capital Strategy & Programme
Management

Debtors

Housing & Council Tax

Bﬁefits

@using Repairs QTR 3

¢)
l?.r\gperty Contracts QTR 4

N
dperty Contracts QTR 2

Property Contracts QTR 3
Treasury Management QTR 3

2016/17

Treasury Management QTR 1
2016/17

Treasury Management QTR 2
2016/17

Economic Development

Directorate Description

Housing & Health

Finance

Assets & Environment
Finance

Finance

Finance

Finance

Housing & Health

Assets & Environment
Assets & Environment
Assets & Environment

Finance

Finance

Finance

Communities, Planning &

Partnerships

Audit Status

CL QL0 € 4 <«

Completed

Completed

Completed
Completed

Started

Completed

Completed

Completed
Completed
Completed
Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Started

Audit Assurance Type

Main financial system

Main financial system

Main financial system
Main financial system

Main financial system

Main financial system

Main financial system

Main financial system
Main financial system
Main financial system
Main financial system

Main financial system

Main financial system

Main financial system

Risk based review

- interim

- interim

- interim

- full

- interim

- interim

- interim

- interim

- interim

- interim

- interim

- interim

- interim

- interim

Audit Assurance Level

Reasonable

Substantial

Reasonable

Reasonable

Reasonable

Substantial

Limited

Reasonable

Reasonable

Reasonable

Substantial

Substantial

Substantial

V)
Q9

v
v

Q000D

V)
Q9
Q9



Title
Health & Safety

Building Security

Income Management

IT Physical & Environmental
Controls

Freedom of Information
M&bile Computing/BYOD

Q
%Change Management

N
&stomer Services
Programme Management

Gifts & Hospitality
Standards & Declarations
Travel & Subsistence

Tenant Participation

Scheme of Delegation

Land Charges

Directorate Description

Transformation &
Corporate Performance

Transformation &
Corporate Performance

Finance

Technology & Corporate
Programmes

Technology & Corporate
Programmes

Technology & Corporate
Programmes

Technology & Corporate
Programmes

Transformation &
Corporate Performance

Solicitor & Monitoring
Officer

Solicitor & Monitoring
Officer

Transformation &
Corporate Performance

Housing & Health
Solicitor & Monitoring
Officer

Solicitor & Monitoring
Officer

Audit Status

CL Q€ € € €€ <o

<

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Started

Started

Started

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Cancelled

Started

Audit Assurance Type

System based review

System based review

System based review

Information Technology

Information Technology

Information Technology

Information Technology

System based review

System based review

Risk based review

System based review

Risk based review

System based review

System based review

Audit Assurance Level

Limited ()

Limited

Limited

Limited

D P

Limited

Reasonable @
Reasonable @
Limited Q
Q9

Substantial



Title

Risk Management
Housing Business Support

Street Scene

Housing Services

Customer Services
Transformation

Commercial & Industrial
Properties

Municipal Charities

Pension Contributions

T

ge Security

I€D i f Cult Ethi
IS/lew of Culture/ ics
@%abled Facilities Grants

Directorate Description

Corporate
Housing & Health

Assets & Environment

Housing & Health

Transformation &
Corporate Performance

Assets & Environment

Corporate

Transformation &
Corporate Performance

Corporate

Assets & Environment

Audit Status

CLL €4 € << <K«

Started

Started

Started

Started

Started

Completed

Completed

Completed
Started

Completed

Audit Assurance Type Audit Assurance Level

Risk based review
Risk Workshop

Risk based review

Risk Workshop

Consultancy

Consultancy

Transactional N/A
Compliance N/A
Additional Consultancy N/A

System based review

Additional System Based Review

Reasonable @



This page is intentionally left blank



Percentage of Management Actions Agreed 2016/17 Qtr4

Acceptance

/ze abed

Accepted = 31
(100%)

Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Implementation Review of Agreed Management Actions 2016/17

Quarter 4 1st implementation reviews

6¢¢ abed

Audit Recommendation
Code & Title

1617 IM 2.07 Haven:
Chip & Pin Devices

1617 IM 2.15 Spektrix:
Data Protection
Statement

1617 IM 2.17 Barcode

Audit Recommendation Recommendation

Status

»

100 = 42
(72%)

Priority

High Priority

High Priority

High Priority

Recommendation
Progress

p% |

p% |

p% |

Reason Not

Implemented

Reliance on 3rd Party -
Internal

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Appendix 3

Implementation Review Audit Recommendation

completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation

Completed Date



Audit Recommendation Audit Recommendation Recommendation
Status

Code & Title

Invoices

1617 ITPREC 1.02 GCSx i)

Accounts

1516 ITrent 3.2 Audit
log tables

d

1516 ITrent 4.2 System |4

Checker

1516 ITrent 6.1
Recovery procedures

TRN 6 ITrent 9.1
éntract

fB17 G&H 1.01
stitution

1?] 7 1M 3.01 Fees &
Charges

1617 IM 3.02 Financial
Guidance

1617 IM 3.06 VAT

1617 ITP&EC 4.01 End
of Life Assets

1617 ITP&EC 4.02
System Parameters

1617 ITP&EC 4.03
Disposed Asset
Locations

[?

SISV BRI N

Priority

High Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Recommendation
Progress

p% |
p% |
p% |
p% |
p% |
p% |
p% |
p% |
p% |
% |
p% |
p% |

Reason Not
Implemented

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Reliance on 3rd Party -

Internal

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Implementation Review Audit Recommendation
Completed Date

completed
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed

1st implementation
review completed



Quarter 4 2nd implementation reviews

B¢ abed

Code & Title Status
1415 R Access 05 Roles

& Responsibilities

1516 PSL 5.02 Monthly

Lease Payments

1415 R Access 01 ﬁ
Contracts/ Agreements

1516 V&L 2.02 Annual &4
Lettings Plan

1516 V&L 6.02 Decant (@D
Policy

100 =7
(54%) | |

dit Recommendation Audit Recommendation Recommendation

Priority
High Priority

High Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Medium Priority

Recommendation
Progress

p% |
% |
p% |
p% |
p% |

25 =1
(&%)

Reason Not
Implemented

Other Higher Priorities
Other Higher Priorities
Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Other Higher Priorities

Implementation Review Audit Recommendation

completed

2nd implementation
review completed

2nd implementation
review completed

2nd implementation
review completed

2nd implementation
review completed

2nd implementation
review completed

Completed Date



Page 232



Agenda Iltem 17

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 1 JUNE 2017

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS/QUALITY ASSURANCE &
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME

EXEMPT INFORMATION

None

PURPOSE

To report on the External Quality Assessment completed to ensure compliance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the Quality Assurance & Improvement
Programme as required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee endorses:

e The External Quality Assessment and the responses to the recommendations
made;and

e The Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) came in to force on the 1% April 2013.
The Standards require that Internal Audit comply with professional best practice and assess
themselves against the requirements on an annual basis and that an External Quality
Assessment (EQA) should be completed at least every five years. The EQA has recently
been completed and the report is attached at Appendix 1. The report identifies areas of
good practice as well as identifying some issues and recommendations to enhance the
service.

The overall assessment is

RESOURCES Excelling — Processes in this area are fully embedded within
every day practices and reflect best practice that is at least
consistent with PSIAS expectations.

COMPETENCY Established — Processes in this area are embedded within every
day practices, the EQA has identified a number of areas in which
further development is desirable.

DELIVERY Established — Processes in this area are embedded within every
day practices, the EQA has identified a number of areas in which

Page 233



further development is desirable.
The report also benchmarks the Internal Audit Service (identified in the report as IASS)
against other sectors for overall Resources, Competency and Delivery and includes a more
detailed benchmark analysis showing how we compare within Local Government to specific
standards. Both benchmark analyses show that the Internal Audit Service achieves above
average.

The report details some recommended action for improvements to the Internal Audit Service
which have been considered and the appropriate responses are detailed in Appendix 2.

Part of the requirement of the PSIAS is for the Head of Internal Audit Services to develop a
Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme (QAIP). Under the QAIP, quality should be
assessed at both an individual audit engagement level as well as at the broader internal audit
level. A well-developed QAIP will ensure that quality is built in to rather than on to, the way
internal audit activity operates. In essence, Internal Audit should not need to assess whether
each individual engagement conforms to the Standards, but that engagements should be
undertaken in accordance with an established methodology that promotes quality and, by
default conforms to the Standards.

The QAIP should conclude on the quality of the Internal Audit activity and lead to
recommendations for appropriate improvements. It enables an evaluation of:

e Conformance with Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the

Standards;

e The adequacy of the Internal Audit activity’s charter, goals, objectives, policies and
procedures;

e The contribution to the organisation’s governance, risk management and control
processes;

o Completeness of coverage of the entire audit universe;

¢ Compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and government or industry standards
to which the Internal Audit activity may be subject;

e The risks affecting the operation of the Internal Audit activity itself;

e The effectiveness of continuous improvement activities and adoption of best
practices; and

o Whether the Internal Audit activity adds value, improves the organisation’s
operations, and contributes to the attainment of objectives.

To achieve comprehensive coverage of all aspects of the Internal Audit activity, a QAIP must
effectively be applied at three fundamental levels:

¢ Internal Audit Engagement Level — self assessment at the Audit Engagement or
Operational Level;

e Internal Audit Activity Level — self assessment at the Internal Audit activity or
Organisational Level; and

o External Perspective — independent external assessment of the entire Internal Audit
activity including Individual Engagements.

Attached as Appendix 3 is the Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme (QAIP) for the
Authority’s Internal Audit Service. This gives an overview of the QAIP in place.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

Page 234



LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

There is a risk that non-compliance with the PSIAS will mean that an effective system of
internal control is not in place and therefore we are not complying with the Accounts and
Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers, Head of Internal Audit Services

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 External Quality Assessment

Appendix 2 Responses to the Recommendations from the External Quality
Assessment

Appendix 3 Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme

Page 235



This page is intentionally left blank



[ X OZ&Q&Q

L10Z yosep
Juswissassy Ajijend [eua)xy

9JIAI9G pabeuep Jpny jeussjul

A

11gnv TYNd3INI

EM
ajen

Page 237



‘g1oad sy 0} psebal yum Ajgeinoae) saedwaod
WIea) sy} JeY) SMOYS Yoiym A1isnpul Japim auj pue J0joas alji yioq ul uossinoid Jayjo Isutebe paxiewiysuag usaq sey swonNo syl

-Buyeaxa Jo paysiqelse '‘Buidojaaap st 80IAI8S 8U) Jay1aym o] SE uoluido Jno o} paje|al

ale sapesb ‘AloBajeo yoea ulym sabels aaiu) Jo 8uo je Buiaq se papesb wea) ay) pue Lealjag pue ‘Aousiaduio) ‘'s8dinosay
ay} 0} Buje(as seuoh3IED LIYIM PASLIBLULLNS LiSag 8AEY SUCHEPUSLILLOIS] puE suoleAI8sqo INQ "20IA1S pabeuey] Ipny
jewsaju] ay) Aq padruas safuoyine [E00| 8U) pue Wes) sy} ‘JE}S |enplAIpul 0] Jjauaq JO 84 ||IM 1SN} am Udium ‘(SVISd) spiepueig
PNy [BulSlU| 101988 JNqnd ay) Jsuiebe painseaw se papiacid Aua.ano saoines sy Buipiebal uoiuido sno sjoaya) Hodai ayy

‘siseq [eqo|B & uo Sa2IAIBS JIPNE [BulBjU| AG PaSN SJEMYOS pasiubooa) 'JUeiBA0D JO 3sn 3y} yBnouyy pasanlap st SIUL ‘A[JUB)SISU02
MHOM WED] JIPNE [BUIBIUI 8L} YIIYM O) sassaooid pajdanoe pue sale|dia) pIEPUE]S JO dIoMaLuel) B Aq papoddns si pue

Wom sy 1no AL1ed Jim 891aes paieuew sy} Yolum o} SpIEpUE]S SU) SBUlSP AIBAI0BY2 YoIum JSpUByD HpNY [BUISIU| LE Jo souasaxd
au ybnouyy paysiaeIsa si S|y} ‘[2aa) ajesodion e 1y "spaau Bujujel) pue uoisiniadns pajeIdosSsE 810jalay) pue Buipodas 'seonoeud

BuiyIom ‘sjuale Yim uonesiunwiod Buipiebal jeioyausq si si) se ‘gouelnsse Bulsalep o} yoeosdde Juaisisuod e ansus

0} paau e si 218y} jeyy pesiubooas uasq seu §) pue suoneoienb jueaaal Jo abuel e yum ‘aousiiadxe weaiubis aaey swea) ay |

‘papiacid Bulaq ao1Aes Ay} JO aN[eA 8y} 8dUBYUS O} SpeW aq ued yuswdoaaap Jaypny aisym o} se sjybnoy) ano pasueLIwns se
jlom se aonoeud )saq se psebas am jey) 8dnes auy Jo sjoadse payybiybly os|e saey pue asI219xs aoug)dwoo e Aj2.1aW Jou se sy}
99S S/\\ 'ZL€ | PIEPUE}S YIM SOUBPIOIDE Ul MBIAS] Ajijenb yuapuadapul pue jeuia)xs ue apiacid o) S| Maiaal SIL) JO asodind ay

‘sBuneal aspIuwos Aluoyine Jaquisw

0} papinoid spodal ajeldosdde pue siseq |BNUUE UE UO PSSSISSE-}9S uaaq sey piepuels ayj ysulebe soueulopiad '9oIAISS
pabeuew e Huiwooag aduls S3IIAISS JIpne [ewsiul jo Aianap Joj ABojopoyialu UOWILLIOD B 0] pa)Iom ABuisealoul eaey pue
SpJEpUEIS IPNY [ELUSIU| J10}935 olidnd 8y} JO UononpaJiul a3 0} papuodsas saey Wesa) ayl "Od PIdlYaIT Je sebeueiy Jipny se o)
pausjal pue ‘(YioH) Jolpny [Bulaju| Jo pESH SE SIaYIniS gjabuy Jo diysiepes| ay} Japun Yolum weawsabueue aonuas pabeuew e
Aq papiacid ai1e sHoUNOY 10UISIQ PIRYLDIT PUE |IDUN0) yBnoJog YUOMLLE ] JO S@NIOUINY [EI07 B4} JO} SBOIAISS JIpNY [BUIajUl SUL

juswubisse jo esodind >m§

81D

Page 238




'$3A1193[0 ,[19UNCY YIES JO JUBISABILOR BY) SPIEMO} SBINQLILO A|9AI08y9 1Bl @dIAIes e sapinoid Y

1EU} SSjelISUoWSp Jnsal e se pue sesie sjeldosdde Jsow s} uo S3sND0j )l Jey) aINsUS 0} JepIo Ul 'yoeoidde umo sy pue S{I0UN0YD
U} LI0q 0} sl Jo aoueAS[al BY) o Ssaudleme Jajeaib uBnoiy) Aisniiep si 8dUBYUS 0} BNUIUOD 0} SDIAISS BY) JO§ PSBU E S| asaL)
*ysis Buiseasoul )nsas e se pue Asaiep aoiaiss o) aBueyd Jueoyubis ‘s1abpng 1PUNOY uo saInssaud Buisealout yym ssajsypsnaN

‘SYISd 3y} yim soueljdwod ajesjsuciuap

0} 80IAI19S 8y} pamolle sey siy | “wes) padusiiadxe ue Buisn palenisp pue psulejulew USaq 210j2IaY) SeY pJepuels ypne
[euBjUIsnqol iy “Jpne || 0} uoiejai ul Asejnodiled ‘'spssu soueINSSE Jipne |2uldjul jo Aiaasp ainsus o} ajeudoidde uaym poddns
[EUISIXS JO 85N S3)EW |OH 3y L "Pa1apIsu0d aq 0} AJLOYS S| 19A00 puE aABS] AUIBIEW L0 AJUS.LIND S1E YE)S JO SIaguIBLW om}
ubnouy(e ‘Jusisisuod pauiewas aAeY Yels yolym Buunp Apigess jo pouad e wo.y papyausq sey aoiauss pabeuew yipne jeusaiul ay |
‘PaAjoAU

SHounod sy} uiyim jsixe sypadde ysu 4o suondaasad Juaseip ybnoyjje ‘siapiaosd souBINSSE JBYI0 Uynm pue siabeuew yym
uoHEdIUNLUIWOD Joj Siseq 1Snqo e apiaoid aiojassyy) pue sjosuoo Bunebniw Asy pue sysu suyep ALes|o o) HPNE [BUISIUI MOJ|B PINOM
8|qe|ieAe saoueInsse asoy) uodn pue paoey Buieq sysu Jussayur ay) Buipsebal swaisks founog ay} uiyiim Aosualedsuen Buisealsu)
‘Ajuoyiny yoea uiyim suoniuyep

S paysiiqe)se 0} A1oauip ajeje) SUOIIEPUSLILICIS) PUE SuojUIdo 21NNy JBY} PapUSWLIcoa) aney am ‘Jasdsal sy up ‘Buipodal

10} SISEQ 8Y) S sl 8sn pue ,SIeRBW Aj|eal JEUM, UO JI0M JIPNE S1NJONAS ‘UCHEIUNLILIOD SANDEYS Bjowoid pInom siy} se Ajoyiny
150y ay} Jo ssoy) yim sesssooud sy uble A|Buiseassul o) Jpne [eusaju) 1oy [RIoYBUSq aq pinom ) ‘@ousnbasuos e se ‘SyJomalueyy
pejenosse pue salbajesis Juawabeuew ysu Buidojaaap aney paajoaul s) aoinias pabeuew 3U} YoIym Liim sanuoyiny au jo yiog
‘80ualajal jo swis) pue sjuawnoop Bujuue|d #pne uiym WEs) Ipne jeusaiul ay) Jo

doualsadxs ysi J0joas Jopim Bunoayas Jo suua) ul pue ysi Jusseyul BuisiuBooal JO sulia} Ul yiog [eloyauag aq pinom juswdolaaap
asyuny ybnouye ‘seNpayss Bunsa) ul pue U0 is)sIBal ysu Jo uouBoos) yBnouyy 19as) Juswubisse ue je ‘jeas) Buivued
olbsieNs & Je Juswssasse ysi umo s Jo Juawdojeasp ay) ubnoiy) yoeosdde paseq ysit e jdope saop so1/8s pabeuew ay |
‘Buipodal ui se |jam se jaas] Juswubisse pue oiBajens e je Buuue|d oy uonejas ur Ayuesyiubis — suom ypne jeuwssiul jo sppadse e

0] yoeouidde yipne jeussjul paseq ysu e Jualugdw 0) Juawsalnbal e uo SNJ04 8l S198)j84 SYISd au} uiyiim abueyo jueoyubis ay |
'SVISd 8y} yym juaisisuod s| jey} yoeosdde uowwos e spiemo) Buinow

9Je swies] om} au) yaiym ul uswabuelre sonias pabeuew sy) Jo uononposul ay) o} papuodsas sey B0IAI9S JIpNEe jewsiul 3y )

Alewwins aAlnoaxg KB
alen

Page 239



s|jons| oI6ajel)s pue Juswubisse je buipoday ‘suoiuido Aiosinpe

pue aoueinsse Jo uoissnosiq ‘(jaug JuswiuBissyIpny) Juswabebu]

JO swa | ‘9oIAIas pe| pajoallg ‘diysuonelal pue Juswebebua jusiD
AlaAljeqg =

wawdojeaaq pue |esiesddy ‘(jeoluydoa]

puUE jeuoIssajo.ld) Bulurel] ‘(s|pis pue SlaquinN) Juswiinioay

‘Bulye)s Jo uoneodo|ly pue Buluueld ‘[enuep Hpny |eusiul IslUeyd
Aoudladwion =

1ONPUOD SSBUISN] pue soiylg ‘luswabebul Jo swis |

‘uoisinIadng pue sainpadold ‘@oueping ‘spiepuels Jo uoniubooay

‘sjuswabuelle a0UBUIBAOL) ‘UOISSI| PUE UOISIA ssaulsng
S92IN0S3Y =

SVISd Uym eoueldwod

VO3 10} siseg KB
. a1ex

\§

Page 240



"uoneoIUNWWOD Juanbasqgns
SE [|9m sk Buluueld ypne Jeulsiul JO 1ONPU0D 8yj Joj 99uanbasuod
E 9ABY ||IM 8s8Y] se s]sIxd Ajuaiing jey) AJunjew 3su JO [9A8] ay) 4O
JUSLUSSSSSE N0 Sk ||om se ade(d Buniey Ajualind si Jey) uonewioisuel)
JO 831b9p 8y} Yioq Jo swis} Ul (I0UN0Y 8yl UIY)M JUSWIUOIIAUS .
19PIM BU} PaIspISU0D 8ABY oM ‘suoljiepuswiwodal Jno Buipelb u| =
S92IAI9S jJO AJaAlep

U} Jo ssausAlIsYye pue Aoualoyle auy) anoidwl 0} JOpIO Ul UoUSHE SjusLW
yoeoudde s} JO UOISIABL JBYI3UM JSPISUOD PINOYS UOISIAID BpNE |eUISiUl B[

'SVISd 2ui Jo uonesydde auy josyes |
Jayieq 0} eale S|y} ul yoeosdde sj) mejAs) PINOYS LOISIAIR Jiphe feweju ayy MIIADY

‘lonu02 pue aaueusanob ‘Juswebeuetu ysu 0} uonejRl ul saAnalqo
suonesiuebio ay) jo Juatuaasiyse ay) 0} UCHNGUIUCD B S)esjsuowap

0} J8p10 U SY(Sd UeAs|al ay} ypm jusuwiubie Jusledsue.) ajensuoweap
0} Jap.o u) aanoeid sy @2UBYUS Jsnw 301AIas paBeuew ypne [ewajul ay )

Page 241

Buipeib

uoneue|dxg UOIBPUIWWOIDY

'(SYISd) spJepuels Hpny
|BUIBIU| JOJOBS DlIgnd 8y} ulyim plepuels jueaslal ay} 0} aouenoduwil
SAllE[al 8y} JOB|}a. 0] pspusiul si suoljepuswwodas jo Buipeib ay| =

suoljepuswiwodal Jo Buipelo ABAA




UONUSYE SBIIWIOD NPNY Joj paonpold

sjeudoidde ) asaym sbupaaw uswabeuew |euolesado
0} pajuasald aJe SuUolEpuBWWODa) Juedyiubis
alow Buiejuos spodey ‘sispjoyayels 4q poojssapun s

Buiaq SaLBWWNS Yim 'siseq Awi e uo paonpoid ase syoday  Jey) Jauuew e u suojudo ssaidxa pue Jes|o sie spoday 0ove
‘paulen; A|9Al0aYo ale pue uoisiAIadns aaladal ‘sassooold piepuels pajdde Aguajsisucd
8y} puejsiapun Wea} JIPNe [eulaju] 3U Jey) malA e suoddns syt s| yoium yoeosdde ue Buisn pasuuopad aie sppny 00EZ
‘Jpne ue Jo Janpuo3d Buimojjo) paulelqo
aspIwIwo Jpny ay pue juswabeusw Aq panadal ||om s Ajaunnol s1 }oeqPaa) Jawoisny paljdde Ajualsisucd .
YOIYM UONEIUNLLIWOD 10} Yoeosdde Jua)SISUoD B JO UOREASUOWRJ  SI YduMm ajeidws) prepuess e Bussn paonpoud ae spoday 090¢
saje|dwa) Jo sauas e Ybnoiyj palaalap alemyjos pasiubooal Aq papoddns Agjeudoidde
S| SIU) SSVI 24} uypm ‘ABojopoisw Jua)sisuod B 10} SapIACld s| pue aoe|d Ul S| |ENUEW }IPNE |euJaul pajielsp v o002
poddns |ewwa)xs JO 3sn aU) SE ||9m SE Spaau Juawinios) J9o0 LGS Ui Yum sluawsannbas sassnosip
pue Buiuies; jo UOHEIBPISUDD BU) 10} Siseq Wy e sjussaldal siyl pue spaau Buluies sy sassasse Alpugnol SSY) eyl 0€02
"S1301J0 Woy) Noeqpaa) aamsod yum uonoessjut ybnoiyy sensst .
£33 Jo Buipue)siapun poob e Jo juswiysliqelss auyy sjuasasdey [9AS] JBqIBL PUE Jad1Yo 18 Juawabebua amioy 0z0¢
‘sanoyine 1soy ayy Aq paalbe s
eajiwo Ipny Aq palapisuod si YoM uswaaosdwl  yoiym ueyd yuswdojpaap [enuue ue Ul Bupnsal sasidiaxa
SNONUIUOD 0} JUSWIWIWOD pue s$a20.d e sajesisuowa JUSLISSISSE J|9s [enuue pajonpuod sey SSyi ayl ZLEL
‘paIaAap 8q UED S3DIAISS JIPNE [BUIBiul Yolym Jsulebe yiomowely Auoyiny yoea uyim poasbe
sjeudoidde ue saysiiqelsa pue aasuayaidwoa st JeNeuD ayl pue paysijgejsa usaq sey Jayeysd Jipny [eulsiu] uy 000)

UoREBAI3SGO

pauap! #3139e.d poo E

Page 242

AEBM

VO3 Ulyiim ~a1en

paiijuapi aspoeld poob jo Alewwng




uoIDE PAPUIWLLOIDY

JoNpuUod ssaulsng pue solyix yuswabebus jo suua] ‘ucisiuadng pue sainpasold
'80UBPING 'SpJEpPUE)S JO UOUB02aY 'sjualusbuUBIIE 9OUBUIBACEL) ‘LOISSIP PUE UOISIA Ssaulsng

S92.1N0S9Yy

SUOIleAIaSq0 ON L

payiuapl anssj

AEMm
_a1en

Page 243



O .
epuafe

2ouBINSSE a3y} 0] S)NQLIUCD D) SDILUWIOD JPNY AY) Jo siaquisi
j0 Auqe pue Buipueisiapun ay) Guipie Agassy) ‘pajybiubiy
sjonuod Bunebniw Asy ay) pue Jaisibal ysu s Auoying

BY) M Huif J981Ip B JO UORBULIOJ 3y Ul jNsal pinoys siy L

"palilusp! OSIE SI19M MBIARI J13pUn BaJE
ay) Jo} saapoalgo uswabeuew ay) i ‘Buiuueld Juswubisse pre
Aew J1 1snqod 210w a4 pjnod ssacosd SIy1 ‘malaal Japun esle

JIpNE aL) 0} JUBAG|B] SHSU [ENPIS3I pue Juaiayul sl Buipiebal
wawabeuew yum uoissnosip Aeuaid e si soualsjay
10 suua] ay jo uatudojaasp au 104 juiod Buiers ayL

@)

'g5800.4d SOUBLISAOS) [ENUUE 23U UIYIIM PapIooal Ajjeuwo §i
ajqejieae aq ABw yoiym '9oUE![a) 90e|d UBD S|IoUNOY YaIum uodn
pUE S|GEJIBAR 3J€ JBU) SOUBINSSE JO S30IN0S JAYJ0 JusLwnoop
pue Amuapi Jayuny pjnoys ssasoxd Buiuueid ppne [eussiul ay )

O quswsbeuew ysu o} yoeoidde spm 1oUNOD 34 YIm
awubije juasedsuey) ybnosy) 1DUNOD YOES JO SPABU Souelnsse
ay} 108y1 0} paubisap aq pinoys ssadosd Buuueld jipne

8] "JepeyD upny |BUISIU| SU} Ul IN0 }as SE 3JIAISS 3U)

JO S2AIPBI]O B} SBABIYSE UDlyM $59001d JUBLISSSSSE

spaau Jipne ue Buisn ybnouy) pajonsisuos aq pinoys suejd Jpny

UOI}OE PAPUAWIIOIY
1

Jusllaielg
3ouBLIAA0S) AU} Hoddns 0} Ssa00id JUSLWS)ElS AoURINSSY

siaBeuepy, |ENULE UE 35N Y)og D PI2YUSI] pue 5 yuomwe|

‘1aunog auy) pue juswabeuew

0] 9|qEjleAR SSOUBINSSE PUE S|OUOD L) JO SS3UISNQol 8y) uodn
paseq uoluido Ue JNsal B SE PUB YsH |04U09, 3U) JO anjeA ay) 0}
ajejal Aoaup 0} UMOYS aq alojaiay) ued sjuswubisse Joj snooj ay ]

uawubisse yoee
10§ 90USIDJB) JO SWLIA) BY) Jo uoneledald ay) AUP PINOYS S Wwinj Uy

"SI[8J [IPUN0YD a4} udiym uodn saoueinsse
pue sjonuoe? ‘sainpadold ‘saiood Aay Buipsebal aoueinsse
yuapuadapul Joj saiJed ||e jo spaau paaaasad ay) uo snoaoy

pinous paaosdde Ajjeuy ueid ay se ueid ypne ay) Ul judwubisse
ay} jo uoisn|oul 1o} Buluoseal paseq ysi Su} pue SIBPILUWOD
1pny ay} pue juswabeuey yum passNasp Juajuod ueld ypne
{ELISIUI 34} USIMI2] HUI| PaYNUSP] pue Jo31Ip B 84 pinoys aay L

‘ABajens juawsbeuew ysu s IoUnoD Yoes wiypm pasoidde
asoy) 0} }oeduw YSu jO SUOHIUYSP JUSIONIP SasN sisAleue ay |

IoUN0D Yoea Aq payiuap! sanssi ysu Japim Bunaaya)

UBey) Jayles ‘Jipne jewajul Aq pasIASP JUSLLISSaSSE Ue uo juasaid

1e spuadep Ajebie| ssaooid ay) ‘SyISd 2y Aq pauinbal se |apow
ysu e uodn paseq AjBuisesiou; Hulaq s Buluueid Jipne |euwsaiul ISiium
Butuue|d Jpny |eussjuy

payuap| anssj

yuawdojaaa( pue |esieiddy ‘(jesluyoa] pue |euolissajold) Butuies] ‘(s|s
pue siaquiny) juswinioay ‘Buless jo uonedso|ly pue Buluue|d ‘[enuey JIpny [eussiu ‘“Japeyn

Aouajadwo)

ABM
S1eD

Page 244



O

'ssas0.d 3y o} Jndul spiaoid 0] SEaPILLLIDD JIPNY ‘Aaijod panosdde ayy yum asuepsoaoe u juno? ysnosog yuomwe |
OM] 3U} JO SIHBYD SU} PUEB |I9UNOY JOMISId PIBYYDI 18 18910 1e 12040 LGS se Jabeuew auy ay) Aq usyelapun aq 0] S) S20IAI8S
LSS 3y Buniau Aq paunojur aq pinoys ssagoid ¥ad syl IIpPNY [eWa)u) JO peaH 8y JO malas) aduewlopad [enuue ay |

(dMad) ma|aay juswdojaasg pue asuerLIOMad

@ §IEET

2g pnom sanuoyine [eoso) Jusio sy} jo sjlsdde pue saijjod
Juswabeuew ysu ay; yum Juawubije Jajeaib jey) ¥y s! )i
199dsal siy) Ui pue y1om JIpnE [Bula)ul 0} yoeoidde paseq ysu
B JO 8sn a3y} s]99)§a1 SY(Sd 9yl Jo siseydwa jueoyubis ay |

‘apinb Jasn e sjos|jal Yyoiym

YOI ay) uiyim paiuapl uaaq aaey jey) (suoiuido WwLIoj B Ul SisIXa 0S| Juajeao) Jo asn ay) Buipiebal uojonsu|

pue suonepuawwodal jo Buipess) Suipodas pue Buivued o) ‘
Bunej) sjoadse snouea ay) 0} uonejal ul Apejnonsed sshuoyne SVISd ayi yim
uaip ay) Jo satljod Juawabeuew ysu ay) yum Juswubie subije pue yejs jipne jeussjul Aq pamojjo) aq o} saonoeld ay) jo
J19jeasb 1os)el 0} pajepdn aq pjnoys [enuew Jipne [ewsjuiay] ‘e PJOD3J SAISUSYRIALWIOD B sjuasaldal [enuew Jipne [eussiul ay |
jenuely Jipny

‘ssaooid Buiuue|d paseq ysu Buidojaaap ay) uiypm asay) o) uanib aq Jipne [ewalul jo aosuapuadapul
PINoys uopuaye Yaym o} sa1bap ay) uo Joayal pue FAPILIWIOD JpnYy 8y} suiejai Ajuepodun siu; ‘ueld yipne |ewsajul auy Joa0p Jou Jng
Je passnos|p s1e Jey) sanuold aAI8sSqo 0} 2NUKUCD PINOYS YIOH 83Ul ‘sAla0al, 0} BajILIWLIOD NPNY aU) 4o apiaoid sjuswabuelie Juauny

sue|d }pne jeusaiuy jo jeacsddy

UO1}OB PAPUALLILIODDY paiiUapI anss)

panunuos Asuayadwon >m§
oo

Page 245



‘§|0AU0 A3y pue
ysu O.__cm_m uD $NO0} 0} JusWIBEUBLI YY) UOIEDIUNWILLIOD
npne-aid dojaasp 0} aNURUOD PINOYS 0IAIBS BU |

"MaIADI
1apun BaJE 9y} 0] YSU (0L [BUSJEL SO AU} 1033
L2IYM SSOURINSSE PUE S|oJjuod A3y Y} U0 SNOOJ 0} Siojpne
MOJE [[IA XUJBLU |OJJUOD U} JO} SISEQ B SE XS JO 35N 3y

O "y xipuaddy je papiaoid s sjejdwa) sjdwexa uy

‘uoindo [|eJan0 ue BuneiNuLIC) USUM JEIS PIE JiiM SIU} SB
Jswubisse yoea ul abejs APEa Ue je djge|IeAe SSOURINSSE
JAUI0 aY) p102al pue AJRUapi 0) 23S OS{E PINoYs 81AJ8S 8l |

XUIEW [0)UO0D), S} UIYUM palijuspl s)ysU

sy Buipsefal asueinsse 109y Ajjeinjeu o} ipne ay) mojle
M SIyL sjosjuod payoadxa jou pue paynuapl sysu [ediouud
3y} uodn paseq pajonsuod aq PINoUS 8oUsIajaY Jo Sulal

{(wayshs juawabeusL JsU 3y} Um pepiodal Ajleayoads
aJe asay) Jayjaym Jo ssajpiebal) eale yoes ul sysu

JuaJayu| SU} JO JUSLUSSSSSE UR BpNIOUI PINOYS S ‘salpne
9U) Yum passNosIp pue pSLNUap] Usaq SAeY JELj 12UNOD Sf
o} sysu Jolew uo snooy pinous sisded Bujiom ypne [ewsiu

UOi}oB PapPUAUILLOIDY

‘ma1Aa) 0] Joalgns eale ay) o) Bunejai sjoadse ySuU JapiMm JO UOHBISPISUOD
PaoUSWIWOD AJUS32) SI0W SBY 32IAIBS BU | "PBAJOAUI ¥SU JUBLINT BY)

J0 Aileusiew sy} Josyal o} pajelsuab aqg uey) Jayies yiom jipne snojald
WoJj @S0y} JO S|0J)U02 paseq JOTH J981ad 0) 8sau) Joj Aouspus) e

sI 818y} 'S|0ju02 0} adualayal Aq uayepapun Ajuauno ale sjuswubissy
sjosyuod pagijuapl-aid vo snaod

‘Juswabeuew yym pasapisuod
USaq SABY LDIYM SXSU 0} paje}al Aj@soo| Si YdIym pue S|ojuoo
pajoadxe JO HIOMSWEY B pUnole paInjon)s uay) s| juawubisse ay)|

"wa)sAs Juawabeuew ¥su spouna?) ay) o} Ajjoaap
paubije Ajuessadau jou aie asay} Jagie ' JuSWNoop ja8w aid au u umop
Ul ple| pue peulwd}ep e suohepuswwodal Auoud pal Jussaid 1y

‘Jpne ay) Joj siseq paaibe ve se juawebeuew yim paseys uay)

S| SIU} ‘99UsJaj@Y JO SULS) JO uonEalD Joj sapiroid Yaym JuswabeueL
yim Juswabebus ybnosy) ypne yoea sajeniul Auaund aiAIes ay |
Buiuue]d juaiubissy

b

payuapi anssy I

sjaaa| oibajels pue

awubisse je Bujpoday ‘suoiuido AJOSIAPE pUE 20UBINSSE JO UOISSNISI] ‘(yaug uswubissyapny)
juswabebug jo swis) ‘eainiss pal pajoang ‘diysuonelas pue juawabebus jus)|D

INEYN[ETdl

AeM
91en)

Page 246




@ ‘uodal

3y} Jo uonesyeuy pue uononpoid sousping pue doddns
0} JepJo ul Bunaal Jixa sy) jo Jed se uaye) Sajou AUE ) Ueds
pinoys siojpny 'Bunsaw yxa ayj Joj siseq ayy se podal yelp
8y} Jo uononposd Buisn i JaUIaUM JBPISUOD pINoYS WIOH 3yl

o .
Hodal yelp ay)

Buinoidde uaym sisixa Ajjusno Jey) plooal JBULIOY BU)
0} uolIppe Ul ‘lews Aq acuapuodsallod pue SucissSnasip
0] §ouala)al SS0IO PUB JIpne ay) JnoyBnory) uoisialedns

10 [1e]] pajuaLwINoop e apiaoid o) 8JeMYyOS JusjeAn )

ay) Jo Aleuonouny ay} asijgn pinoys saaates pabeuew ay |

‘saonoeld paiinbai Buipsebal Yeys 0] uonanysul
ajeudoidde apino.id pue aoioeid [ED0] 1S90 JO SULS)
ul pajoadxa st jeym SSnasIP pinoys aolnes pabeuew ay |

"gonoeld poob se papiebal s| smauziul
10 [IEJ8p [ERUBSSA DY) puUE LG} Sjou Ul WalsAs ay) Buipiosay

UOIJOB PapuUaLULLOIY

s|aas)| oibajel)s pue

JuswubBisse je Bunoday ‘suojuido Aiosiape pue SoUBINSSE JO UOISSNosI] '(Jaug JuswubIsSsyapny)
juswabebu] jo swia] ‘soimss ps| pajoaiq ‘diysuoiiejal pue Juswabebus jusi )

INEYNIETe

‘Juawabeuew ypm
Bunoaw! yxa ue Joj siseq e Se pasn st podal ypne yeup ay) Juasaid Jy
sBupesw Guysoln

"sassaubold Jipne Yyoea se uoisiAladns s)E)jSUoLIap 0} JOpIO W)
1SIX8 p|noys ssa20.4d JUS)SISUOD PUE [BLLLIO) ‘LOLWILIOD B 3JOM U0 ssaiboid
Buipsebal Jayjo yoea ynsuod ueo yejs sy Jey) pasiubooal si )l ISIIYM

"ABojopoylaw ypne |eussiul ay) jo Aaa|sp ay) Buipiebas yeys

o} uononnsul seudosdde apiaoid pue maiaas ay) Jo Aljenb ay) ainsus
yioq 0} Japlo w Aessaosu S| uoisiuadns aa)oays Jo uonensuowag
uoisiatadng

‘pasl|eal 3q 0} aJe ssaUaMdBya/Aouys Buipiebal suoneadxe pue
SPJEPUE]S |eUoISSaj0sd LJoq §I PAPIOAR 8( 0] SIB SSUSHNS JSASMOY HIOM
Jpne [euws)ul Jo joadse juelodw ue S| aduapiaa Juaioyns Guipiosay

" aAasuayaldwio, 0y jaug, woy A|qeiapisuod ssueA
SpeL aJe sajou 3SalY) YoIym Ul [IBJap PUB JBUURLL 8y "S|0JuoD [enjoe
Buipnjoul uonewsoju 8y} Jo prod3J B SUIBJUOD UBY) XUIEL [0U0D 3y ).

‘s)iom wajsAs ay) moy o) Buejal pasayeb si
UOIIELLIOIUI LJIym Je S1aoijo ypm sBuijaaw yym sousluwioo sjuswubissy
saje|dua) XuUjew jonuon

AeM
ajen

Page 247



O ‘sajojjed juswsbevew
HSU UM paulep Se ysu Jueaijiubis o) uonejal w Jspew
fl1eas 1ey; sbuiy uo Buenuasuos ybnoy) Jipne [eulsl

Jo apyoid auy) pte pjnom siy | “1abeuew ay) o} lews io Japs| "suoIuIdo SDUBINSSE ||BISA0
apIs e ul pauuyuo pue Gunasw ainsod 3y Je UoISSNISIP pue suoepuawwosal jo Buipeib o) piebas yum salousisisuooul
ut @say) uo Bunosyes AjpAneuwIsye ‘0Q plRRYoIT 18 sHodal 0] pes| JeAsmoy saop siy| ‘suojuido [je1eao sy pue apew buiaq

JIpNe JeLULIO} Ul SUOEPUSWIWIODD! pajes M|, apnjoul suoRepUSLWILLOsa) 9} Jo Buipelb ayy auLusiap 0) YD 2y) Joj Anqixay

o0} paau au; Bujaowa) 0} uaaib aq pinoys uonesspisuod  (q sapinoid yoym siseq e ulejal o) si1ajaid aanas sy Juasald jy
O ‘pappne Bulaq asoy) pue wes) Jpne jelwssiul 3yl yioq uiim sbuipuy Jo
‘Bunasw aouepodw) aAne|a) ay) jo Buipuejsiapun JUS)sisuod e sapiaosd wajsis

JIx@ 8y} e asyjipne yoes yim pasodxa s| uohesiuebio JuswabeueL ysu siounod ay) uiyim sbuipelB pooyiesigoedun

3} YIIUM 0} YSU JO [SA3] U} SSNISIP PUE UOREPUBLLLIOIS] 3Y) YIM SUDHEPUBLWILWIODAI Jpne [eusajul jo Buipelt ayy Buiubiy

au) apeib o} Joypne |ewajul yoea Aq pasn aq pjnoys asay).
 @oueinsse pajiLui, jo uojuido yipne aanebau

"wa)sAs JuswabeueLu ysU S |I2uno) ayy o) payul SiNojad e 1ab6u) Ajjeonewolne pinoys anjeu siy} Jo ysu Auy ‘padnpal
palEl ©YY Uiim siy) Loddns sdeyad pue uoijushy sjuaiy 51 uanb |aAa] aaueInsse Y} uay) {00S3 ueu) Jojeslb sso| ‘yieap
pue juedyubis ‘|eyuswepund Jo moT pue wnipsiy ‘YBiH 10} |lenuajod) payiuap si Alobayeo Joedwi jsaybiy au) Jo uoniuyap e
se yons ABojouiwia) @sn o} aopoexd Jsaq pasiubooal st ) ojui Buijes ysu e J1 adwiexa Joj ‘Ajoalp Jpne yoea 104 uoiuldo ||2JsA0
3y} aouanyul PINOYS suofjepuawwodal jo buipelt Joy siseq ay )

‘syodal jie ul
papnjaul aq pinoys sBuipelb asauy) Jo asn ayy jo Loheue|dx3 'S|12UN0D OM] aYj JB JIpne [ewau Aq
‘1ounog ayy Ag pasn pooyiaxy pue joedw jo suoiiuyap pasn aJe sainjoruys Buipelb yusiayg ‘spew Buieq suonepuawiwodal
ay) pue ‘uonesiuebio yoes uypm aadde ysu au) 10821 0) auy) Jo 6uipesb e apnjoul Yoym pue podal Yelp ay3 Jo asesial 0} Joud

padojaAsp aq pinoys Jipne |ewaju AQ pasn suoiuyap ysiy (B 'Jojipne jewsjul yoes Aq passasse pue padojsasp ApuaLing Je asay )

suofepusWILIOIBY - suojuidp upny 9

UOHOE PIPUIWIIOITY paluapl anssj

panunuod AiaaljeQg ABM
Wo1en

Page 248




“JOISIUILLPE 0] JJE]S Jipne [Buisjul 10y Yoreoidde

Jusisisuod pue piesuoj-}ybiess asow e juasaidal pue papircid
Bureq @oueinsse ay) Jo uoneoIpul Ja1ea|d e apircid pinom
SHOUNGY Yyloq je aaiy; o) uoiuido Jo sjaaa| ayy Bulonpay (q

O 0 xipuaddy se adwexa apiaold

"UaAB s| SoueINSSE [BRUB)SqNS pue Hodal By} Ul 0} pauajal jou
ale asay) paynuapl ase sysu (uaalb) uojuape spusw, sJayp -
pue ‘uanib s1 scueinsse

ajenbape uay payjuap) ase (Jaquie) sysu Jueayiubis aseypp -
‘uanlb s) souelnsse

PajiLl 1eY) paiuapl si (pal) ySU [ejualuepun) e S18UAA -
Joajjas pinom aanoesd jseg

‘uodn psuodas Buleq uonepuswWoda) payues

1saybiy ay) jo8)ja1 puB M3IA3I BY) UIIM paYNUSPl 8INSodxa
%Sy Jo |2A3| 8y) uodn paseq aq pinoys spodai jo Buipel ay| (e

UC|}IEe PapUWILLI0IaY

panunuod AiaAijaQ

‘pew

Bulaq suoliepuawiwosal asoy jo buipesB ay) pue payyuep Buieq sysu
ay) jo ainjeu ayy yim Ajjoanp paubije aq usy) ued uoluido siy| ‘pauieb
9Q UBD Jey) SOUBINSSE 0 [8A3] SU) JO SIap|oyaXe]s 0} LonedIpul

190 €& sapiaoid siy) se pajiwy o (siqeucsesal) ajenbape '|ejueisqns
Buiag uoiuido jo sjaaa aauy) Jo} sapiaoid aopoeud 1saq JopIM

"Paynuap! ysu JO |aAa] 84} Jou pue saaslqo |o4uod
8y} uo suoluido ay; jo ejebaibB6e ay) uo paseq S| uojuido |lessao auy |

‘aseajal 0} Joud yoda) yesp ay; Jo v pue sosiaadns sy Aq mainel
0} Joeigns pue Buneja: se payads suopuyap sy LIYIM Jojipne
yoea jo juawabpnl jeuosiad ayy uodn paseq Ajua.uno aie aseay |

suojuydo jjeseAQ - suouido upny

paynuapl anss|

Aem
_a1en

Page 249



‘g xtpuaddy ul papinoid
uaaq sey pasn aq ABLU YoIyMm Spiom 3y} Jo ajdiexs uy

-adoos Japeoiq

14} 193l 0} JOPIO U) [BUDISSD S| SGE|IBAE SSINOS SoUeINSse
jo abuel ay) Aq pasies Bulaq senssi Jjo Buipuelsiapun ue pue
)M UONELIPIC-0D B10j218Y) puk s)sU Juesyiubis (e o} soualsjal
uIEjuod os|e pjnoys poday [enuuy ayl jeuy) st aapoeud jsag

quawalels aoueusanob

ay} Jo poddns ul Auoyiny yoea o} asueINsse JOpim apiaaid o)
9|qe S1 WY SYl Jeu) 0s 9|qe|IRAe SBOUBINSSE JAYI0 3} Pue ysi
01 Ul yiondxa e apiaoid 0} pajonisuod aq pinoys ueid Jpne
[ELIBILI BY) JeIES SPEL SUOHEPUSWLIND3) YjIm Juawubije uj

UOHOE PAPUIWILIOIDY

panuiuod AlaaljaQ

‘SYISd 24 Jo sjuawalnbal sy} 1esw o}
panonss Alieioysuaq aq pinod )l uonised Janaq e sioayal siu) ISIUM

. usalb aq ueo aoueinsse

ajgeuosea., alyj S1 japenb Siyj 10§ JUSLLLONAUS [03U0D &Y} U0 uoiuido
[{eian0 ALl ‘8ouRINSSE PUE UOCIBLLIOM JO SBIINOS 18Yj0 pLie Jipny
[ewejuy Jo jreysq uo pue Aq no paiuea siom Buiobuo ety uo paseg,

‘se passaldxe sem uoiudo ay jounog ybnoiog yuomwe) Iy

‘paaibe suejd UORIB PUR SMBIASS JO Jaquunu & Ul PaiRUBp) 8Jom
Juawianosduy Jo} Sease ‘podal sy} 0] peyoeye ‘g pue D seapusddy
Ut UOAIB SI PBJONPUOD MBIARS DB J0f LOILIdO JIBIBAO 3Y] ‘Pajj0Iju0d

Ajgjenbape sem )l jey] si sjuswabueLie j0Auos pue jJusweabeuewt
)SU ‘aouewWenob ayj Jo SSeUPUNOS By} U0 UoILIdO jjeisno
1no “1eaf ay) Buunp uexeuspun som Jno Jo sbulpui sy uo paseg,

:papI09a) §1/GL0Z Ul 10UNCD 10UISIA PIBYYDIT 20j Hoda) 8y L

- pIeoq ayj pue Jusiabeuew 1oiuas Aq pajsanbai

O papaau SIeleu Jayj0 pue 'sanssi asueulsAob ‘'sysu pneyj buipnjput
'SeNsSs! [Q/jL0I pue sainsodxa ysu juediubls epnjou osie jsniu,
‘2J0J8J8U} pUE Y 8L} 0} S|E|IEAR SOUBINSSE JO S32IN0S

PUE UOIJELLIOJUI [[B JO JUNODSJE SS8HE) Jey) JeLLID) B 13331 pInoys
uoiuido 3y ‘souewopad jo sisAleue sapnjoul pue ylom sieak auy)
S3SUEWIWNS YoIum Modal JIpny [ews)u| [enuuy ue sadnpoid 1D 8y
Hoday |enuuy

6

palyuapl anss| .
Hany TyNYIIN!

m>>
ae

Page 250

e —————— e e AR (S5 S S



[Bloyauaq ag 0} uaas aq pjnom Buiuue|d ul aaLIWIOY) NPNY JO Juawaaoad] (p
sapwwo) upny Aq pauonsanb uaaq asey s|aAa) sauelnssy (9

slabeuep Jouag pue sjuswpedap ypm oejuos Jenbay (q

siseq Jeinbal e U0 |G| S YIm JOBJUOD POOS) (e

SUOIIBAISSCO JUBA3|3) JBYI0

sanuoud pue Buiuued aAnosy]

aoueuuouad aAoayg

UONIESILUNWLIOD SAI}08YS pu. §j|Iys ‘@ousuadx]y
snjeis

sBunesw Jo apisino JoBUOD Yym asuapuadapu|
papirocld asuelnsse ajenbapy

sjuswalinbail ivunoy jo Buipueisiapun

S S BSE S B N BRSE S
ST ST RN CS RECS

asoding

Moeqpaesy JaoiyO LGS Alewwng ABM
ajen

Page 251



‘g|qelisap si Juswdojaasp

Jaypny yolym ui seale Jo Jaguinu e paiijuspl sey

vO3 8y} ‘saonoeld Aep AlaAs uiyim psppaquia
9Je eale SlIU} Ul S8ssa00.d — paysliqeisy AY3IAIT3A €

‘g|qelisap s| juswdo|ansp

Jayun} Yyoiym ul seale Jo Jaquinu e palijuspl sey

w3 2y ‘saonoeld Aep Auaas uiyim psppaquia
aJe eale sly] Ul sassad0ld — paysl|qe)sd AON3L3IdINOD [

‘'suolje}oadxe SvISd

)M JUS]SISLIOD 1SE| Je SI Jey) aoljoeld 1saq
108|jaJ pue saoioeld Aep Auaas UIYlIM pappaquis
A||n} aJe eaie Siy] Ul $9s$9001d — Bul||@ax3 S323N0SIN L

Page 252

1any TyNSIINI

JUSWISSASSE ||BJOAQ ABM
ajen




IV =
2leAlld m
SUISNOH m

SSVIi m

- JUSWUIBA0EL) |BOO W
_

Buleox3gy - ¢
paysliqels3 - ¢
Buidojana(g - |

|9AB] JUSWIBABIYDY

Alanijag

>u:mmma Eou

S93IN0S9Y

sisA|eue 10)08g
Bunlewyosusg

Page 253



0StZ00t¢00€2002209020S0C¢01020€0Z0C0Z0TOCO0TTO00T

L | |

SSvI =
JUWUISA0Y |B20T W

Buljjeox3g - ¢
paysiiqelsy - ¢
Buidojenaq - |

|OAS| JUBWIBABIYDY

sisAjeue Aisnpuj ABM
Buijewyouag %ﬂmw

Page 254




"UGIIBWAIOHUN |NJASN pue ‘Jueaajel ‘elqelja: "Jualoyns AQ papoddns 8q jSMy pue SISPIOYINE}S
layjo pue ‘pieoq 3y usWBbRUBL J0IUSS JO SUDNEIIEdXS ) JUNDIE O Y} ISNW ) ‘pansst 1 LIS |EIFA0 Ue USUpA

sjuawebebus Jo s)nsal s AJEDIUNLILLOD JSNL SIOPNE [eulaju)

“saanoalgo s, ualwabebua ay) aasiyde 0] LOIELLOJUI JUSIDIYNS JUSLUNJOP PUE 'SIENjEAS ‘asAleuE ‘Auap) 1SNW SIO|IPNE [ewaju|

"SUOHEDO||B 92JN0SA) pue
‘Buiwy ‘adoos ‘saaidalqo sjuswabebus ay) Buipnjsw uswsabebue yoes Joj ueld B JUSWNDIOP puE dojsaap 1snw sioppne jetssiu|

‘pieoq ay) pue Juawabeuew Jowas Aq paisenbas jo papaau sialew Jaylo pue 'senssi aouewaaot ‘sysy pnely Buipnioul ‘sanss)
lonuoa pue sainsodxa ysu Jueaubis apnjoul osje 1snw Buipoday) ‘ued sy o) aaejas ssueusopad pue ‘Ayjiqisuodsal ‘fluoyne
‘asodind s Aunijoe upne |ews)ul sy} uo preoq ay) pue Juswsbeuew Joiuas o) A|leaiponad Podal JsNW aARNDaXa upne JEINLETTT]

"SHOY Jo uoijed|jdnp sziununu pue aSeianod Jadeid aunsua o) sediues Buynsuod pue soueInsse
Jo siepiacid |BWBIXS PUE |ELWSIUI FRYJ0 YEMm SOIIANDE S)BUIRIOCD PUE UOEULIDI BIBYS PINOYS SANNDSXS HPNE JEI0 By |

“Aynioe ypne jeussiul ay) apin o) sainpadosd pue sa1210d YSHOEISS 1SR BANDBXS JIPNE JOIYD By )

ueyd panosdde ay)
aas|yoe o] pakojdap Aioandaye pue ‘lusioiyns ‘asjeudosdde 218 520IN0S8I JIPNE [ELBIU JELY) SINSUES |SNUW SAIN23X8 JIPE J8IYD BY i

“SUCHJEJILLI| @3Inosal Jo 1oedwr By
S]EJNUNLILIOD OS|E JSNLU 3ANJX3 JIPNE Jaiy2 2y ‘feacidde pue maiall 1o pieoq ay) pue juawabeuew Jowas o] ‘sabusyd wuam
eayubis Guipnjous ‘stsLwannbes eoinosa) pue suejd sAPAOE PPNE [EUIBIUI U} B]EJIUNLUILLOD JSNLY SAGNDAXS )IPNE JaIYD B )

‘s|eob s,uoyesiuebio ayy
im uesisuoD AiAOR Jpne jewsjul ay) jo senuoud ay) aulwuaiap of sueld PASEY-YSI YSIGe)SS ISP AANNISKD UPNE JOID S|

“W10m J1ay} Bujuuopad w anosiqe aq JsSnw sIolpENe [ewaju) pue ‘Juapuadapul aq jSnwW AJAIDE JpNE [BUIRIW 3}

‘|eaordde soj preoq ay) pue swabeuew Jojuas o} )l Juasexd pue Ja)eyd RPNE [EWRYL] Sy} MaIAa) AjEStpouad
JSriu SANNDAXa JPNE JRUD JY | SPIBRUBIS Bl PUE ‘SOIYIT Jo 8pog) ay) ‘Buiipny [eueU| JO UOIIUYBC BY) YUM JUS]SISUCD
“Jayeyd JIpNe [Bwsiw Ue ur paulsp Ajleuno) 8q 1snL AJMIae JIpne JBLISI Sy} Jo AYjiqisuodsal pue ‘Ajuoyine ‘asodind sy )

(sesodind Buyiewyouaq Joy)

passasse spiepuelsS SY|Sd Ao

suoudo ||e1aA0
s)insal Bugesunuion
awweibod yiopa

Buuued yJuawafiebug

Buiuoday
UOoIEUIpIO-00)
S23101|0d

uawabeuep acinosay

|leacidde
pUE uonEIILNLILIOY
Buiuuerd

Aanoalqo
pue asuapuadspu|

Rliqisuodsay
pue Auoyiny ‘asoding

052
00¥T
00€Z

0oce

0902
gsoc
ovo.N
0e0e

0c0c

0102

0oLl

oocl

pJep
uels

HanY TeNSIINI

ABM
olen

Page 255



‘papincid Bulaq asueinsse
auy} Jo Aoualedsuel) pue Aousioys Buiaoidw jo swus) ul jelolyauaq aq Aew sessadold JIpne [euselul SU} 0] SUOISIASL BUI0G .
'$8920.4d SjUBLUB)RIS SoUBLIBA0D) B} Hoddns 0} JapJo ul PajeulpJo-02
aq PINOUS HOYS JIPNE [ELIBIUI YOILUM U)iM 3OUBINSSE JO S32IN0S JBUI0 8y} pue sjonuod Bunebniw A2y 10 uoniubooal iajealb
3|qeua PINoM }IOMSLWEL SOUBINSSY UB J2aJj2l 0} S|IoUn0d Ujog uiyim swiaisis Juswabeuew ysu jo juswdojanap Jaypny sy .
‘19uUnoD ay) Aq paoce) Bulag sysu ueaubis
3y} JO SSBUIEME 0) PAJE|SI OUBINSSE JI8{Jal O] PadUBYUS 8] PINOYS JOJIPNY [BUISIU] JOIUD AU} jO Hoday jenuuy ay) -
‘swalsAs Juswabeuew xsu SNOJBA ay)
UIyIM Jaquie, 10 pal, se papelB suomiiuyap ysu yojew jey) juesyubis se pape.td sUONEPUSILIODaI JO UOHE[BOSS pue
LOIIBDLIIUSPI 108]38] PINOYS pue |1ounoD ay} 40 ayjadde ysi au) 19a|§81 19)13g 0] pamelasl 8q pinays suoluido jo asn ayj -
‘sjuawubisse Bunonpuoo usym pue |aag| Buluuerd oiBsiels e e Yioq sjouno) ayy Ag pasiubooal
s10}08) ¥SU 3y} 40 uonubooas |iny s}98|ja1 Jeyl yoeoidde ue 0} SAOW O} NUNUOD PINCYS 30IASS dY} -
:SJUaI|2 WOy paaedal S| jey)
yoegpaa) Juanbasgns ay) pue ajyoid s)i Buiroidwl u| }SISSE puUE S|12UNOY 3l 0} SOUBINSSE JO 5|8A3| PasEaldul apiaoud im
yoiym Buippne paseq ysu Jo asn ay) 0} Uoneal ul psaocsduwly Jayping 8q UBS 30IAI8S 8} UJIYM Ul SESJE JO JSqUINU B 3Je aisy ] .
"Juswabeue
BAIN0aXT WOJ) }0eqPaa) anjisod SaA1a2al PUe S[IDUNOD Yjog paljausaq sey adIAes pabeueLs ayy J0 UCHONPOJIUI Y| .
"Splepuels Ipny |ewlsiu] 10joag alignd sy}
10 suoljeioadxa ay} yim saidwiod [1punog JoLISIa PIayyoI Pue |1punog ybnoiog yHomwe ) Uiliim uoisiaoid ypne |BUISIUL BY | .

Hanvy TYNYZING

UOISN|ouU0) >W®W

Page 256




Vv Xipuaddy

Page 257



‘$9$$320.4d |05jU0D BADaYS pue sjenbape sey -
pue ‘aouewaach aaljoaye pue sjenbape sey a
‘sjuswabuele Juswabeuew Ysu aAljoaya pue ajenbape sey s
:uonesiuebio sy} ‘Jeah sy} Buunp pewoyad smainal ay) uodn paseq 'uoiuldo INo Ul J[BIBAQ =
'sassaoold
aoueusanob pue jonuod ‘uawabeueul ysu s,uoijesiuebio ay) Jo (ssauaandayoul pue Acenbapeul Jo) ssausaoaye pue Aoenbape
8U) 0] SE UDISN{OUOD S|QBUOSES! B MEJP 0) SN MO||B 0} USYEUSPUN Ua3aQ SEY YJoM JIPNe |BUISIUI JUSIDIYNS 1B} pasiEs aJe SAA «
‘(aj0eaydde J1) sio)pne JUSLWS)E}s |eISUBUY BUJ J0 yiom au} Buipn(ou) siapiaoid soueinsse Jayjo Aq pauuopad yom Jo synsal ay) .
pUE ‘8}ep 0} palaaod uaaq sey pasau ypne s uoljesiuebio ay) jo uoiuodoid JBUAA .
‘uonesiuebio
ay} Jo spaau JIpne ||n} Y} 1oaLW o} AJijIqe SJIPNY [ELISiu| Jo peaH ay) uo abuidwi Aew sjuiesisuod Sa0JN0sal YoIum o} Juaixs ay | -
‘Npne jeuwsajul jo adoas ay) uo paoejd usaq aaey Aew yoiym suonepw| Auy -
‘uonesiuebio ay) 0] suodai snoaaid woly Buisiie sianen -
'swajsAs Jo sanoaiqo s uonesiuebio ay) ul sabueyo Jueaubis Aue jo spaye ay | .
'sys1t Juanbasuoo ay) pue uodn pajoe Jo Juswabeuew AqQ pajdedoe Jou suolepusWWoDal JuediubIS .
‘spowad snoianaid wolj sipne Jo adsas Ul uaxe) uonde dn-mojo) Auy .
Jeak ay) Bunnp uayeuepun s)pne |y =
1 JUNDJ2E O)ul Uaye] uaaq aaey Bumopo) auyy ‘uaalb aq o) soueinsse Jo |8As| ay) Buissasse U «
‘sassanoid asueussnob

puE [0ju0d ‘Juswabeuew ysu s,uopesiuebio ay) U sassauyeam Jolew ou ale s1ay) sourINSSE 3|qeuoseal e s| uofies|uebio ay)

0} 9pIA0Id UED 921A18S JIPNE [BUISIUI BY) Jey) ISOW By '9)N[OSqe g JSASU UBD 9IUBINSSE JEU) PaJou 89 pinoys ) uoiuldo ue Bulnb uj =
‘5955a20.d aoueuIanob

pue j0ju0d 'Juswabeuew ysu s,uolesiueBbio sy} Jo SSaUSAIIOaYS pue Aoenbape ay) Uo JUBWSIESS & Ylim SARN28X3 JaIYD B

pue uonesiuebio au) spinoid 0} JpnY [BUISIU| JO peaH au) se pasinbal we | ‘uohesiueBio auy o) 1opiaoid 90IAISS JIPNE [EUISIUI BY) SY =

uoiuldo [enuue aalsod 10} Buipiom ajdwex3

Hanvy TNYIINT

g Xipuaddy >m>>
)

Page 258




LB anEl o) ARNE A PEACTL J0U I GORM SEURNOY) pasodte s vogesueilo 3wy toum o
P ugexddy pUE YOMAURL S LOG JO JBIp8 O DY5U (BN S5aursng ap Do O g1 AR PUR pauBwERL
sengme (sjuogepuaunnca) Eusuepuy ae amy)  Apood 3 uOREaKdY S PUE OQUOD 0 LOMBUELS U HOg
HOQUD)) J0 YIRS U 0 SN PRILSM Si5U ay) aleuew
SUOGEPUBLLALCOR pEnculis oM LRy 20w AP 3yl o pEynsu s pagdde qepns Bureg spdsap pomauwey januon ayy
‘pasnda 5 vogesuefln ag Yo oy Sysu g BuBeuna

SaRo) jo wnexpidy ap QagEngne  AQEns pUB SaARakp Sy BuASpe Ny QY P HOMILEL]

x YSU )0 Sfand) paseass ) Logesueilo au asoda
SUDEPURULICO3) LU OU 3P  any] YoM SoUriino-uod 0 SEAR PRRUSDT JPNE ) SAIMDY SAOE Sy
PRIOCE AJLRRRTI00 A SELRI0D DNSOMD

PAUO) J0 JOMALEL] 3 O} SQINAME  ¥SU WSO S SDBLEW SNy O] PIYIUDP IWELLBAGKLE JO
EEE“EE%EEEEEEEE

(BEMINIY WILSAS FHI Gl NOLLYTIN NI SNOLLVONTAWOITY 804 AN

Suoluido Jioj sisegq, s|dwexs ue -
D XIpuaddy

AeM
a1en

&

Page 259



Page 260



Responses to Recommendations from the External Quality Assessment
Generated on: 11 May 2017

Appendix 2

Tanmworth

Borough Council

PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

Area Findings Recommendation Priority Management Response Date Assigned To
Audit Planning
Whilst internal audit planning is being
increasingly based upon a risk model as
required by the PSIAS, the process
largely depends at present on an .
assessment devised by internal audit; ?gr?slttrzlggz ?E%ﬂdhbe
rather than reflecting wider risk issues using an audit negds
LY identified by each Council. assessment process Agreed
Q The analysis uses different definitions of X : '
Q risk impact to those approved within which achieves the
@ each CF:)unciI’s risk mgga ement objectives of Where risk registers are in
N strate 9 the service as set out place, they are included in
g Thereggﬁould be a direct and identified in the Internal Audit the audit needs assessment.
. . Charter. The ) .. |Itis recognised that this is the Angela
Competency link between the internal . . Medium Priority 31-Mar-2019
audit planning correct way to assess the Struthers

audit plan content discussed with
Management and the Audit Committees
and the risk based reasoning for
inclusion of the assignment in the audit
plan as the plan finally approved should
focus on the perceived needs of all
parties for independent assurance
regarding key policies, procedures,
controls and assurances upon which the
Council relies.

In turn this should drive the preparation
of the terms of reference for each
assignment.

The focus for assignments can therefore

process should be
designed to reflect the
assurance needs of
each Council through
transparent alignment
with the Council wide
approach to risk
management.

audit needs, but until all risk
registers are in place, this
cannot be achieved. This is a
long term objective to
improve risk registers.




PSIAS Compliance
Area

Findings

Recommendation

Priority

Management Response

Implementation
Date

Assigned To

be shown to directly relate to the value of
the ‘control risk’ and as a result an
opinion based upon the robustness of
the controls and assurances available to
management and the Council.

Tamworth BC and Lichfield DC both use
an annual ‘Managers Assurance
Statement’ process to support the
Governance Statement.

29¢ abed

Competency

Audit Planning

Whilst internal audit planning is being
increasingly based upon a risk model as
required by the PSIAS, the process
largely depends at present on an
assessment devised by internal audit;
rather than reflecting wider risk issues
identified by each Council.

The analysis uses different definitions of
risk impact to those approved within
each Council’s risk management
strategy.

There should be a direct and identified
link between the internal

audit plan content discussed with
Management and the Audit Committees
and the risk based reasoning for
inclusion of the assignment in the audit
plan as the plan finally approved should
focus on the perceived needs of all
parties for independent assurance
regarding key policies, procedures,
controls and assurances upon which the
Council relies.

In turn this should drive the preparation

The internal audit
planning process
should further identify
and document other
sources of assurance
that are available and
upon which Councils
can place reliance,
which may be
available if formally
recorded within the
annual Governance
process.

Medium Priority

Agreed.

Other assurance sources
identified are recorded on the
audit needs assessment. Will
review the assurance
gathering process for the
Annual Governance
Statement to ensure that
additional sources of
assurance are identified.

31-Mar-2018

Angela
Struthers




PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

Area Findings Recommendation Priority Management Response Date Assigned To
of the terms of reference for each
assignment.
The focus for assignments can therefore
be shown to directly relate to the value of
the ‘control risk’ and as a result an
opinion based upon the robustness of
the controls and assurances available to
management and the Council.
Tamworth BC and Lichfield DC both use
an annual ‘Managers Assurance
Statement’ process to support the
Governance Statement.
Audit Planning The starting point for
the development of
=y Whilst internal audit planning is being the Terms of
Q increasingly based upon a risk model as |Reference is a
(@) required by the PSIAS, the process preliminary discussion
@ largely depends at present on an with management Agreed.
N assessment devised by internal audit; regarding the inherent
8 rather than reflecting wider risk issues and residual risks Risks are identified on the
identified by each Council. relevant to the audit prelim audit assessment and
The analysis uses different definitions of |area under review. the audit pre meet document.
risk impact to those approved within This process could be Whilst some risk based Angela
Competency each Council’s risk management more robust. It may Medium Priority |audits are being completed, it [31-Mar-2018 Struthers

strategy.

There should be a direct and identified
link between the internal

audit plan content discussed with
Management and the Audit Committees
and the risk based reasoning for
inclusion of the assignment in the audit
plan as the plan finally approved should
focus on the perceived needs of all
parties for independent assurance
regarding key policies, procedures,

aid assignment
planning, if the
management
objectives for the area
under review were
also identified.

This should result in
the formation of a
direct link with the
Authority’s risk
register and the key

is recognised these need to
increase. The audit templates
will be changed to show the
risks to the area being
audited rather than control
objectives




PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

Area Findings Recommendation Priority Management Response Date Assigned To
controls and assurances upon which the |mitigating controls
Council relies. highlighted, thereby
In turn this should drive the preparation |aiding the
of the terms of reference for each understanding and
assignment. ability of members of
The focus for assignments can therefore |the Audit Committee
be shown to directly relate to the value of |to contribute to the
the ‘control risk’ and as a result an assurance agenda.
opinion based upon the robustness of
the controls and assurances available to
management and the Council.
Tamworth BC and Lichfield DC both use
an annual ‘Managers Assurance
U Statement’ process to support the
f% Governance Statement.
@ The HolA should
N continue to observe
(o)) Approval of Internal Audit Plans priorities that are
& discussed at Audit
Current arrangements provide for the Committee and reflect Agreed. Angela
Competency Audit Committee to ‘receive, but not on the degree to Medium Priority Struthers
direct’ the internal audit plan; this which attention should Already in place
importantly retains the independence of |be given to these
internal audit. within the developing
risk based planning
process.
Audit Manual The internal audit
manual should be
The internal audit manual represents a |updated to reflect Agreed
comprehensive record of the practices to |greater alignment with Angela
Competency be followed by internal audit staff and the risk management |Low Priority The manual will be updated |31-Mar-2018 Struthers

aligns with the PSIAS.

Instruction regarding the use of Covalent
also exists in a form which reflects a user
guide.

policies of the client
authorities particularly
in relation to the
various aspects

to reflect the risk
management policy




PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

Area Findings Recommendation Priority Management Response Date Assigned To
The significant emphasis of the PSIAS  |relating to planning
reflects the use of a risk based approach |and reporting (grading
to internal audit work and in this respect |of recommendations
it is felt that greater alignment with the and opinions) that
risk management policies and appetite of [have been identified
the client local authorities would be within the EQA.
beneficial.
Performance and Delivery Review The PDR process
(PDR) should be informed by
inviting the S151 Not aareed
. Officer at Lichfield 9
Competency The annual performa_nce re_vlew_of the District Council and Low Priority L .
Head of Internal Audit Services is to be ; This will be too complicated
. the Chairs of the two
undertaken by the line manager as S151 ; . to complete
. -7 |Audit Committees to
Officer at Tamworth Borough Council in rovide inout to the
Y accordance with the approved policy. b P
Q process.
Q . .
o) Assignment Planning Internal audit working
NG papers should focus
8 The service currently initiates each audit ggm?i?:r:;kﬁ;\?ethe
through engagement with management been identified and
which provides for creation of Terms of ) )
A . discussed with the
Reference; this is then shared with auditee: this should
management as an agreed basis for the include ,an
audit. assessment of the Agreed
Deliver At present red priority recommendations inherent risks in each | Medium Priorit 31-Mav-2017 Angela
y are determined and laid in down in the Y| The terms of reference will be y Struthers

pre meet document , albeit these are not
necessarily aligned directly to the
Councils risk management system.

The assignment is then structured
around a framework of expected controls
and which is loosely related to risks
which have been considered with
management.

area (regardless of
whether these are
specifically recorded
with the risk
management system).
Terms of Reference
should be constructed
based upon the
principal risks

updated to reflect this




PSIAS Compliance
Area

Findings

Recommendation

Priority

Management Response

Implementation
Date

Assigned To

99¢ abed

identified and not
expected controls.
This will allow the
audit to naturally
reflect assurance
regarding the risks
identified within the
‘Control Matrix’.

The service should
also seek to identify
and record the other
assurances available
at an early stage in
each assignment as
this will aid staff when
formulating an overall
opinion.

An example template
is provided at
Appendix A.

Delivery

Focus on Pre-identified Controls

Assignments are currently undertaken by
reference to controls; there is a tendency
for these to reflect KLOE based controls
or those from previous audit work rather
than be generated to reflect the
materiality of the current risk involved.
The service has more recently
commenced consideration of wider risk
aspects relating to the area subject to
review.

The use of risk as a
basis for the control
matrix will allow
auditors to focus on
the key controls and
assurances which
reflect the most
material control risk to
the area under review.
The service should
continue to develop
pre-audit
communication with
management to focus
on significant risk and

Medium Priority

Agreed

Development in this area will
continue

31-May-2017

Angela
Struthers




PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

indings ecommendation riority anagement Response ssigned To
Area Find R dat P t M t Resp Date A dT
key controls.
Control Matrix Templates
Assignments commence with meetings
with officers at which information is Recording the system
gathered relating to how the system in note form and the
works. essential detail of
The control matrix then contains a record |interviews is regarded
. O ; ) Agreed
of the information including actual as good practice.
controls. The manner and detail in which |The managed service L .
. . . . : .| This will be reviewed to Angela
Delivery these notes are made varies should discuss what is |Medium Priority - 31-Aug-2017
; G o . ensure that the most efficient Struthers
considerably from ‘brief to expected in terms of and sufficient detail is
‘comprehensive’. best local practice and recorded
Recording sufficient evidence is an provide appropriate
important aspect of internal audit work instruction to staff
Y o . :
Q however extremes are to be avoided if |regarding required
(@) both professional standards and practices.
@ expectations regarding
8 efficiency/effectiveness are to be
=1 realised.
Supervision The managed
P services should utilise
. . ... |the functionality of the
Demonstration of effective supervision is
) Covalent software to
necessary in order to both ensure the :
. . ; provide a documented
quality of the review and provide . L Agreed
S ; . trail of supervision
appropriate instruction to staff regarding .
. . ; throughout the audit ; -
. the delivery of the internal audit o The current practice will be Angela
Delivery and cross reference to |Low Priority ; ; 31-May-2017
methodology. increased to take into Struthers

Whilst it is recognised that the staff can
consult each other regarding progress
on work a common, formal and
consistent process should exist in order
to demonstrate supervision as each
audit progresses.

discussions and
correspondence by
email; in addition to
the formal record that
currently exists when
approving the draft
report.

account intermediate
supervision




PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

Area Findings Recommendation Priority Management Response Date Assigned To
The HolA should
consider whether in
using production of
the draft report as the Agreed
Closing Meetings basis for the exit
meeting, Auditors The draft report is used as Angela
Delivery At present the draft audit report is used |should scan in any Low Priority the basis for the exit meeting. [31-May-2017 St
. ; ; . . ruthers
as a basis for an exit meeting with notes taken as part of The notes taken here will be
management. the exit meeting in scanned and attached to the
order to support and audit file
evidence production
and finalisation of the
report.
g? Audit Opinions - Recommendations |Risk definitions used Not Agreed
(@) by internal audit
@ These are currently developed and should be developed The grading of
N assessed by each internal auditor, prior |to reflect the risk recommendations is included
), to release of the draft report and which |appetite within each in the pre-audit brief. High,
oo include a grading of the organisation, and the medium and low priority are
recommendations being made. Different |definitions of impact built into the audit system. An
grading structures are used by internal |and likelihood used by enhancement request has
audit at the two Councils. the Council. been made to the software
The basis for grading of Explanation of the use supplier to also include the
Delivery recommendations should influence the |of these gradings Medium Priority RAG rated colours. The risk 31-Mar-2018 Angela
overall opinion for each audit directly, for |should be included in appetites within the risk Struthers

example if a risk falling into a definition
of the highest impact category is
identified (potential for death, loss
greater than £500k) then the assurance
level given is reduced. Any risk of this
nature should automatically trigger a
negative audit opinion of ‘limited
assurance’.

Aligning the grading of internal audit
recommendations with the

all reports.

It is recognised best
practice to use
terminology such as
High, Medium and
Low or Fundamental,
Significant and Merits
Attention and perhaps
support this with RAG
rated colours linked to

management system are felt
to be too far from the audit
recommendations and as
such the majority of the
recommendations will be low
and therefore not followed
up. The risk management
appetites will be reviewed in
line with the audit
recommendations




PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

Area Findings Recommendation Priority Management Response Date Assigned To
impact/likelihood gradings within the the Council’s risk assessment and aligned
Councils risk management system management system.
provides a consistent understanding of | These should be used
the relative importance of findings within |by each internal
both the internal audit team and those auditor to grade the
being audited. recommendation and
At present the service prefers to retain a |discuss the level of
basis which provides flexibility for the risk to which the
CIA to determine the grading of the organisation is
recommendations being made and the |exposed with each
overall opinions. This does however lead |auditee at the exit
to inconsistencies with regard to grading [meeting.
of recommendations and overall
assurance opinions.
=y Audit Opinions - Recommendations |Consideration should
) be given to removing
(@) These are currently developed and the need to
@ assessed by each internal auditor, prior |include ‘low’ rated
N to release of the draft report and which  |recommendations in
8 include a grading of the formal audit
recommendations being made. Different |reports at Lichfield
grading structures are used by internal |DC; alternatively
audit at the two Councils. reflecting on these in
The basis for grading of discussion at the Agreed Angela
Delivery recommendations should influence the |closure meeting and |Low Priority 10-May-2017 Struthers

overall opinion for each audit directly, for
example if a risk falling into a definition
of the highest impact category is
identified (potential for death, loss
greater than £500k) then the assurance
level given is reduced. Any risk of this
nature should automatically trigger a
negative audit opinion of ‘limited
assurance’.

Aligning the grading of internal audit

confirmed in a side
letter or email to the
manager. This would
aid the profile of
internal audit through
concentrating on
things that really
matter in relation to
significant risk as
defined within risk

Already implemented




PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

Area Findings Recommendation Priority Management Response Date Assigned To
recommendations with the management policies.
impact/likelihood gradings within the
Councils risk management system
provides a consistent understanding of
the relative importance of findings within
both the internal audit team and those
being audited.
At present the service prefers to retain a
basis which provides flexibility for the
CIA to determine the grading of the
recommendations being made and the
overall opinions. This does however lead
to inconsistencies with regard to grading
Y of recommendations and overall
rg assurance opinions.
D Audit Opinions - Overall Opinions The grading of reports
N should be based upon
~ These are currently based upon the the level of risk
o personal judgement of each auditor, exposure identified
within the definitions specified as relating |within the review and
and subject to review by the supervisor |reflect the highest
and CIA of the draft report prior to ranked
release. recommendation
The overall opinion is based on the being reported upon. Not agreed
Delivery aggregate of the opinions on the control |Best practice would Medium Priority Angela
objectives and not the level of risk reflect: The current practice reflects Struthers

identified.

Wider best practice provides for three
levels of opinion being substantial,
adequate (reasonable) or limited as this
provides a clear indication to
stakeholders of the level of assurance
that can be gained. This opinion can
then be aligned directly with the nature
of the risks being identified and the

- Where a
fundamental risk (red)
is identified that
limited assurance is
given.

- Where significant
risks (amber) are
identified then
adequate assurance

an acceptable approach

10




PSIAS Compliance

Implementation

Area Findings Recommendation Priority Management Response Date Assigned To
grading of those recommendations being |is given, and
made. - Where ‘merits
attention’ (green) risks
are identified these
are not referred to in
the report and
substantial assurance
is given.
Provide example as
Appendix C.
Audit Opinions - Overall Opinions
These are currently based upon the
personal judgement of each auditor,
=y within the definitions specified as relating
Q and subject to review by the supervisor |Reducing the levels of
(@) and CIA of the draft report prior to opinion to three at
@ release. both Councils would Not agreed
N The overall opinion is based on the provide a clearer 9
I:l aggregate of the opinions on the control |indication of the The four opinions are felt to
. objectives and not the level of risk assurance being o b I Angela
Delivery . e . Low Priority be acceptable. Lichfield
identified. provided and District Council's opinions Struthers
Wider best practice provides for three represent a more h
- . . . ave been reduced from 5 to
levels of opinion being substantial, straight-forward and 4
adequate (reasonable) or limited as this |consistent approach
provides a clear indication to for internal audit staff
stakeholders of the level of assurance to administer.
that can be gained. This opinion can
then be aligned directly with the nature
of the risks being identified and the
grading of those recommendations being
made.
Annual Report In alignment with Agreed Angela
Delivery recommendations High Priority 31-May-2017 Strﬂthers

The CIA produces an Annual Internal

made eatrlier, the

The suggested opinion will be

11




PSIAS Compliance
Area

Findings

Recommendation

Priority

Management Response

Implementation
Date

Assigned To

2/ ¢ abed

Audit report which summarises the years
work and includes analysis of
performance. The opinion should reflect
a format that takes account of all
information and sources of assurance
available to the AM and therefore:

‘must also include significant risk
exposures and control issues, including
fraud risks, governance issues, and
other matters needed or requested by
senior management and the board’.
The report for Lichfield District Council in
2015/16 recorded:

“Based on the findings of our work
undertaken during the year, our overall
opinion on the soundness of the
governance, risk management and
control arrangements is that it was
adequately controlled. The overall
opinion for each review conducted is
given in

Appendices C and D, attached to this
report; areas for improvement were
identified in a number of reviews and
action plans agreed.

At Tamworth Borough Council the
opinion was expressed as:

“Based on the ongoing work carried out
by and on behalf of Internal Audit and
other sources of information and
assurance, my overall opinion on the
control environment for this quarter is the
“reasonable” assurance can be given.”
Whilst this reflects a better position it
could be beneficially structured to meet
the requirements of the PSIAS.

internal audit plan
should be constructed
to provide an explicit
link to risk and the
other assurances
available so that the
AM is able to provide
wider assurance to
each Authority in
support of the
governance
statement.

Best practice is that
the Annual Report
should also contain
reference to all
significant risks and
therefore co-
ordination with and an
understanding of
issues being raised by
the range of
assurance sources
available is essential
in order to meet this
broader scope.

An example of the
words which may be
used has been
provided in Appendix
B

used

12




Page 273

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3
Internal Audit Services
Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme

Introduction

Internal Audit’'s Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP) is designed to provide
reasonable assurance to the various stakeholders (the Board, Senior Management, the
External Auditor and Operational Managers etc) that Internal Audit:

¢ Conforms with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the
Standards;

e Has an adequate Internal Audit Activity’s Charter, Goals, Objectives, Policies and
Procedures;

e Contributes to the organisation’s governance, risk management and control
processes

o Has complete coverage of the audit universe

¢ Complies with applicable laws, regulations and other standards that the internal
audit activity may be subject to

¢ Has identified the risks affecting the operation of the internal audit activity itself
¢ Has an effective continuous improvement activity in place and adopts best practice

o Adds value to improve the organisations operations and contributes the attainment
of the organisation’s objectives.

The Chief Audit Executive (CAE) is ultimately responsible for the QAIP, which covers all
types of Internal Audit activities, including consultancy. The QAIP must include both
internal and external assessments. Internal assessments are both ongoing and periodical
and external assessments must be undertaken at least once every five years.

The QAIP is reviewed on an annual basis.

Internal Assessments

Internal Assessments are made up of both ongoing reviews and periodic reviews.
Ongoing reviews

Ongoing reviews provide assurance that the processes in place are working effectively to
ensure that quality is delivered on an audit by audit basis. This includes continuous
monitoring of:

= Engagement planning and supervision (preapproval of the audit scope, innovative
best practices, budgeted hours, and assigned staff),

= Standard working practices (including working paper procedures, sign off, report
review, checklists to ensure that the audit process has been followed)

= Feedback from other clients and stakeholders

= Analysing performance metrics to measure audit plan completion and stakeholder
value.

Periodic reviews

Periodic assessments are designed to assess conformance with Internal Audit’'s Charter,
the Standards, Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the quality of the audit
work and supervision, policies and procedures supporting the internal audit activity, the
added value to the organisation and the achievement of performance standards.

Periodic assessments will be conducted through:

-1Page 275



=  Working paper reviews for conformance to the definition of Internal Auditing, the
Code of Ethics, the Standards, and internal audit policies and procedures

= Self-assessment of the internal audit activity with objectives established as part of
the QAIP components — Governance, Professional Practice and Communication

= Review of internal audit performance measures and benchmarking of best
practices. Periodic activity and performance reporting to the board and other
stakeholders as deemed necessary.

=  Annual self-review of conformance to the PSIAS.

The periodic self assessment should identify the quality of ongoing performance and
opportunities for improvement and to check and validate the objectives and criteria used in
the QAIP. The self assessment will be completed on an annual basis and the results
reported to the Board and Senior Management.

External Assessment

The External Assessment will consist of a broad scope of coverage that includes the
following:

= Conformance with the Standards, Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of
Ethics, and Internal Audit's Charter, plans, policies, procedures, practices, and any
applicable legislative and regulatory requirements

= Expectations of Internal Audit as expressed by the Board and Senior Management
= |ntegration of the Internal Audit activity into the governance process

= The mix of staff knowledge, experiences, and disciplines, including use of tools
and techniques, and process improvements

= A determination whether Internal Audit adds value and improves the Council’s
operations.

An external assessment will be conducted every five years by a qualified, independent
assessor from outside the Council. The assessment will be in the form of a full external
assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external validation. The format of the
external assessment will be agreed with the Board.

Assessment Scale

The scale to assess the level of conformance of the Internal Audit activity with the
standards is as follows:

Generally Conforms/Partially Conforms/Does Not Conform
(IA Quality Assessment Manual Scale)

Reporting on the Quality Program

Internal Assessments — reported to the Board and Senior Management on an annual
basis. The internal assessment report will be accompanied by a written action plan in
response to significant findings and recommendations contained in the report.

External Assessments — reported to the Board and Senior Management. The external
assessment report will be accompanied by a written action plan in response to significant
findings and recommendations contained in the report.

Follow up — The CAE will implement appropriate follow up actions to ensure that
recommendations made in the reports and action plans developed are implemented in a
reasonable timeframe.

Page 276



Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme

Ongoing Monitoring of Performance

Activity Frequency Responsibility Reporting
Review of the audit Annual Head of Internal Audit | N/A
universe to ensure Services

complete

Identification of risks Quarterly Head of Internal Audit | N/A
affecting the operation Services

of the Internal Audit

Service

Review of audit Each engagement Head of Internal Audit | N/A

engagements

Services/Principal
Auditor

Progress against the Monthly Head of Internal Audit | Quarterly report to

audit plan Services/Principal Audit & Governance
Auditor Committee

Progress against Key | Quarterly Head of Internal Audit | Quarterly report to

Performance Services Audit & Governance

Indicators Committee

Discuss performance | Monthly Head of Internal Audit | Annual report to Audit

of internal audit

Services and

& Governance

activity Executive Director Committee
Corporate Services

Customer For each engagement | Principal Auditor Annual report to Audit
survey/questionnaire & Governance

Committee
Review of Internal Annual Head of Internal Audit | Annual report to Audit
Audit Charter, goals, Services & Governance
policies & procedures Committee
Personal Annual Appropriate line Documentation to HR
Development Review manager
Continuous Continuous Head of Internal Audit | Annual report to the
improvement activity Services/Principal Audit & Governance
and adoption of best Auditor Committee
practice
Identification of added | Continuous Head of Internal Audit | Annual report to the

value to the authority’s
operations

Services/Principal
Auditor

Audit & Governance
Committee

-3Page 277




Periodic Self Assessments

Self assessment
against the Public

Annual

Head of Internal Audit
Services

Annual report to the
Audit & Governance

Sector Internal Audit Committee

Standards (PSIAS)

Compliance with Continuous review Head of Internal Audit | Report to Audit &

applicable laws, Services Governance

regulations and other Committee when

standards that the applicable

Internal Audit activity

may be subject to

Benchmarking review | Every 3 years Head of Internal Audit | Report to Audit &

of Internal Audit Services Governance

Services Committee

External Assessments

Assessment against Every 5 years Head of Internal Audit | Report to the Audit &

the PSIAS Services and external | Governance
reviewer Committee

Page 278




AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEAgenda Item 18

THURSDAY 1 JUNE 2017
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 2016/17
EXEMPT INFORMATION
None
PURPOSE

To report on the Risk Management process and progress to date for the current
financial year.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee:

1 Endorses the Corporate Risk Register and Risk Management Plan
update.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

One of the functions of the Audit & Governance Committee is to monitor the
effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements, including the actions
taken to manage risks and to receive regular reports on risk management. Corporate
risks are identified and managed and monitored by the Corporate Management
Team (CMT) on a quarterly basis. Corporate risks have been assigned to relevant
members of the Corporate Management Team. Through regular review, risks may be
added or removed from the Corporate Risk Register. The Corporate Risk Register is
attached as Appendix 1 for information.

Work is continually completed by Internal Audit with Service Units to ensure that the
operational risk register entries are aligned to the corporate risks. This will also
identify areas where operational risk registers need to be updated to ensure that
operationally, the corporate risks are managed. The Risk Management Action Plan
for 2016/17 is attached as Appendix 2 and shows status to date.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND
None

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

None

Page 279



REPORT AUTHOR

Angela Struthers, Head of Internal Audit Services ex 234
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Corporate Risk Register

Appendix 2 — Risk Management Action Plan 2016/17

Page 280



Appendix 1

Corporate Risk Register 2016/17 Taﬁworth

Report Type: Risks Report Borough Council

Report Author: Angela Struthers
Generated on: 17 May 2017

Risk Title Risk Description Gross Risk - Assessment Current Risk - Assessment Last Review Date

[>

Corporate Risk Register -- enter risk details here —-
2016/17

Medium Term Financial Loss of Funding and Financial
Planning & Stability & application of
S-gtainability Strategy  uncertainties of Brexit

12 major - likely 8 major - unlikely 16-May-2017

@putation Damage to Reputation 9 serious-likely 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017
D

vernance & Failure to achieve adequate 9 serious-likely 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017
Ryulatory Failure Governance Standards and
H

statutory responsibilities

4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017
and Supply Chain shared services or supply chain
Challenges

Emergency & Crisis Failure to manage an external or
Response Threats internal emergency/disaster

9 serious-likely 4 significant-unlikely 16-May-2017

situation

Economic Changes Failure to plan and adapt services 6 serious-unlikely 3 serious-very unlikely 16-May-2017

to economic changes within the
community

o
&
VAN
Partnership Working  Failure in partnership working, N 9 serious-likely
VAN
VAN
)

& & & 600

Information Failure to secure and manage data 12 major - likely 6 serious-unlikely 16-May-2017

Management & and IT infrastructure



Risk Title

Information Technology

Loss of Community
Cohesion

Workforce Planning
Challenges

Health & Safety
Corporate Change

Safeguarding Children
& Vulnerable Adults

I&Bbility to manage the
iMpact corporately of
Government

Nsterity measures and

12 legislative
requirements

Taxi Licences

Implementation of
response to GDPR
Legislation

Risk Description

Failure to achieve community

cohesion

Failure to manage workforce

planning challenges

Failure to manage Health & Safety
Failure to manage corporate change @

Failure to safeguard children and

vulnerable adults

Inability to manage the impact
corporately of the Government
Austerity measures and new
legislative requirements

Taxi Licensing process not
followed, giving rise to licenses
being issued to persons who are

not fit and proper

General Data Protection Regulations .
(GDPR) coming into effect in May

2018 resulting in significant

change for the organisation,

including substantial penalties for
failing to adhere and breaches

- Assessment

12 major - likely

9 serious-likely

12 major - likely
4 significant-unlikely

12 serious - very likely

16 major - very likely

12 major - likely

12 major - likely

Current Risk

Ol O b

- Assessment

9 serious-likely

4 significant-unlikely

6 serious-unlikely
4 significant-unlikely

9 serious-likely

8 major - unlikely

4 major - very unlikely

8 major - unlikely

Last Review Date

16-May-2017

16-May-2017

16-May-2017
16-May-2017
16-May-2017

16-May-2017

21-Feb-2017

17-Mar-2017



Risk Management Action Plan 2016/17

Report Type: Actions Report
Report Author: Angela Struthers
Generated on: 17 May 2017

Appendix 2

Tamworth

Borough Council

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To

RM1 Risk Management Policy @ 1[][]“/4 30-Sep-2016 05-Jan-2017 Angela Struthers

Description Risk Management Policy Review

All Notes Angela Struthers 03-Aug-2016 1st review of policy completed.

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To
Risk Management Training . p% 31-Mar-2017 Angela Struthers

Roll out of e-learning risk management module

v
ﬂscription
[o)
gNotes
w

Angela Struthers 16-May-2017 No further action completed - delayed due to roll out of new system.

Angela Struthers 05-Jan-2017 Delayed due to roll out of other modules

Angela Struthers 28-Jul-2016 Roll out of e-learning module delayed due to purchase of upgraded package by HR. Will need to evaluate and test to see if the training we

have written can be migrated to the new system.

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To
RM3 Opportunities Risk Register . | 50% | 31-Mar-2017 Angela Struthers
Description Introduce an opportunities risk register

Angela Struthers 16-May-2017 To be rolled out with the training
All Notes

Angela Struthers 28-Jul-2016 A work around has been achieved so that an opportunities risk register can be recorded on the Covalent system. An opportunities risk

matrix has been set up and will be rolled out for use in relevant areas. Guidance on it use has been reviewed and updated

Action Code Action Title Current Status Progress Bar Due Date Completed Date |Assigned To
RM4 Benchmarking Action Plan . | 50% | 31-Mar-2017 Angela Struthers
Description Review the action plan arising from the benchmarking results and look at the viability of implementing actions




All Not Angela Struthers 17-May-2017 Analysis to be completed and reported to the next Audit & Governance Committee
otes

Angela Struthers 05-Jan-2017 Benchmarking completed and results received beginning of January 2017. Analysis to be completed to identify improvements

Action Status

Cancelled

Overdue; Neglected

Unassigned; Check Progress

Not Started; In Progress; Assigned

Completed

§)
v8c R |6l vl | @l



Agenda Item 19

Audit & Governance Committee Self Assessment 2016/17

Area Yes No Part

1 Terms of Reference

1.1 | Have the Committee’s terms of reference been | v’
approved by the full Council and do they follow
the CIPFA model?

1.2 | Does the Committee report to the directly to the | v’
Full Council on an annual basis?

2 Internal Audit Process

2.1 | Does the Committee approve the strategic audit | v’
approach and the annual programme?

2.2 | Is the performance of Internal Audit reviewed v
regularly?

2.3 | Are summaries of quality questionnaires on the | v
work of Internal Audit from managers
reviewed?

2.4 | Does the Committee receive the Internal v
Annual Report which includes an opinion and
information on conformance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards?

2.5 | Does the Committee ensure that officers are v
acting on and monitoring action taken to
implement recommendations?

3 External Audit Process

3.1 | Are reports on the work of External Audit and v
other inspection agencies presented to the
committee?

3.2 | Does the Committee input into the external v

audit programme?

3.3 | Does the Committee monitor management v
actions in response to the issues raised by the
External Auditor?

Page 285



Area Yes No Part
4 Regulatory Framework
4.1 | Does the Committee take a role in overseeing
¢ Risk management strategies and the v
actions taken to manage the risks
e Annual Governance Statement v
e Counter-fraud arrangements — including v
the Counter Fraud Policy and
Whistleblowing Policy
¢ Financial Guidance — including Financial v
Regulations & Contract Standing Orders
e Constitution v
e Complaints handling/ombudsman’s v
report
¢ RIPA Policy and updates? v
5 Accounts
5.1 | Does the Committee take a role in overseeing v
the annual statement of accounts?
6 Standards of Conduct
6.1 | Does the Committee exercise all the functions v
of the Council relating to Codes of Conduct as
provided by the Localism Act 2011 except for
those that may only be exercised by Full
Council?
7 Membership
7.1 | Has the membership of the committee been v
formally agreed and a forum set?
7.2 | Is the chair free from executive or scrutiny v
(chair) functions?
7.3 | Are members sufficiently independent of the v

other key committees of the council?

Page 286




Area

Yes

No

Part

7.4

Have all members’ skills and experiences been
assessed and training given for identifying
gaps?

Individual assessments felt to be useful and
to include all members. AS to email out to
all members

7.5

Can the committee access other committees as
necessary?

Meetings

Does the committee meet regularly?

8.2

Are separate, private meetings held with the
external auditor and internal auditor?

Can be completed when appropriate

8.3

Are meetings free and open without political
influence being displayed?

8.4

Are decisions reached promptly?

8.5

Are agenda papers circulated in advance of
meetings to allow adequate preparation by
members?

8.6

Does the committee have the benefit of
attendance of appropriate officers at its
meetings?

8.7

Can special meetings be organised to allow a
quick response to emergencies?

8.8

Does External Audit regularly attend meetings
and update members on their progress/external
audit issues?

Training

Is induction training provided to members?

Induction training provided to new members

9.2

Is more advanced training available as
required?

Page 287




Area Yes No Part
10 | Administration
10.1 | Does the authority’s s151 officer or deputy v
attend meetings?
10.2 | Are key officers available to support the v
committee?
10.3 | Do reports to the Committee communicate v

relevant information at the right frequency and
in a format that is effective?

Page 288




PLANNED REPORTS TO AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 2017 - 2018

Report Committee Date Report Of Comments

1 Role of the Audit Committee June Grant Thornton Presentation/training
2 Audit and Governance Committee Update June Grant Thornton
3 Fee Letter June Grant Thornton
4 Review of the Constitution and Scheme of June Solicitor to the Council and

—u | Delegation for Officers Monitoring Officer

&

«Q
5 @ | RIPA Quarterly Report June Solicitor to the Council and

N Monitoring Officer

0

(@)
6 Members/Standards x 2 June Solicitor to the Council and

Monitoring Officer
7 Internal Audit Annual and Quarterly Update June Head of Internal Audit
8 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards/Quality | June Head of Internal Audit
Assurance and Improvement Programme

9 Financial Guidance June Head of Internal Audit
10 | Annual Governance Statement and Code of June Head of Internal Audit

Corporate Governance

0¢ Wal| epuaby



1 Audit Findings Report July Grant Thornton
2 Management Representation Letter July Grant Thornton
3 Annual Statement of Accounts July Executive Director
Corporate Services
4 Annual Treasury Outturn July Executive Director
Corporate Services
5 RIPA Quarterly Report July Solicitor to the Council and
Monitoring Officer
o
QD
6% Risk Management Quarterly Update July Head of Internal Audit
N
7 g Counter and Corruption Fraud Update July Head of Internal Audit
8 Internal Audit Customer Satisfaction Survey July Head of Internal Audit
9 Internal Audit Quarterly Update July Head of Internal Audit
1 Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual September Solicitor to the Council and
Review and Report 2016/17 Monitoring Officer
1 RIPA Quarterly Update October Solicitor to the Council and
Monitoring Officer
2 Internal Audit Quarterly Update October Head of Internal Audit
3 Risk Management Quarterly Update October Head of Internal Audit




4 Annual Governance Statement Update October Head of Internal Audit

1 Audit Report on Certification Work February Grant Thornton

2 Audit Progress Report February Grant Thornton

3 Annual Audit Letter February Grant Thornton

4 RIPA Quarterly Report February Monitoring Officer Solicitor
to the Council and

5 Internal Audit Quarterly Update February Head of Internal Audit

6 ;? Risk Management Quarterly Update February Head of Internal Audit

7?‘ Counter Fraud Update February Head of Internal Audit

1 8 Draft Audit Plan March Grant Thornton

2 Draft Certification Work Plan March Grant Thornton

3 Audit Committee Update March Grant Thornton

4 Auditing Standards March Grant Thornton

5 Informing the Audit Risk Assessment March Grant Thornton

6 Review of the Treasury Management Strategy | March Executive Director

Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
Statement and Annual Investment Statement

Corporate Services




and the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
Mid-Year Review Report

7 Final Accounts — Action Plan March Director of Finance

8 Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan March Head of Internal Audit

9 Audit and Governance Committee Self- March Head of Internal Audit
Assessment

10 | Review of Financial Guidance March Head of Internal Audit

T

26¢ akd

Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance




	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Fee Letter 2017/18
	9 Proposed Changes to the Constitution and Scheme of Delegation
	10 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Quarterly Report June 2017
	11 Standard Allegation Complaint 1
	12 Standard Allegation Complaint 2
	13 Annual Governance Statement & Code of Corporate Governance
	Appendix 1 Annual Governance Statement
	Appendix 2 Code of Corporate Governance
	Appendix 3 Action Plan Arising From The 2016/17 Assurance Gathering Process

	14 Counter Fraud Update
	Appendix 1 Fraud & Corruption Risk Register
	Appendix 2 Fighting Fraud Checklist

	15 Financial Guidance
	Appendix1FinancialGuidancev1

	16 Internal Audit Annual /Quarterly Report
	Appendix 1 Internal Audit Performance Report 2016/17
	Appendix 2 Percentage of management actions agreed
	Appendix 3 Implementation of agreed management actions

	17 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards/Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme
	Appendix 1 External Quality Assessment
	Appendix 2 Responses to the Recommendations from the EQA
	Appendix 3 Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme

	18 Risk Management Update
	Appendix 1 Corporate Risk Register
	Appendix 2 Risk Management Action Plan

	19 Audit & Governance Committee Self Assessment
	20 Audit and Governance Committee Timetable

